Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Board Meetings
September 20, 2023 Regular Board of Directors Meeting

Agenda

2023-09-20 Regular Board Meeting Agenda .........ccuuinimmnmmmmmmmmennmmmmssssssssssssssssnns 2
Department of Homeland Security CISA Cybersecurity Assessment

[0 £/ N 2= Y7 =Y o1 = 1 { o] o 6

Revenue Cycle Report
Revenue CyCle OVEr VIEW ......iemiiiiiiiiiiiissssmsssss s ssnssssssssssssssssmssssss s s s ssssssssnssssssnnes 28
Chief Financial Officer Report

NIHD Financial Update July 2023 ... e 33
Financial & Statistical REPOItS ... 40
Capital Budget ReqUEeSt .......cccoociiiiiiimirr s sssssss s s e 49
Chief of Staff Report
MEC POlICIES ..iiiiiiiiiimmeeeennnnnnnnnennmssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnns s s s s s s s s s s snssnnnsnnnnnnnnnnns 50
Privilege FOIMS ... s n e e 95
11O = oY o o 105
Consent Agenda
7.19.2023 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Minutes ........cccc.cciiimniiiiiiiinennnn, 106
8.16.2023 Regular Board of Directors Meeting Minutes ........cccceeeiiiiiiciiccccneeennnnnn. 113
011110 2 = oY o T o N 119
Department REPOITS ....cuiiiiiiiiiiimmmmmmenennnsssnssmmmeeeesesess s 121
o o 1= 125

Page 1 of 153



NoORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

AGENDA
NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

September 20, 2023 at 5:30 p.m.

Northern Inyo Healthcare District invites you to join this meeting:

TO CONNECT VIA ZOOM: (4 link is also available on the NIHD Website)
https://zoom.us/j/213497015?pwd=TDIIWXRuWjE4T1Y2YVFWbnF2aGk5UT09
Meeting ID: 213 497 015

Password: 608092

PHONE CONNECTION:
888 475 4499 US Toll-free
877 853 5257 US Toll-free
Meeting ID: 213 497 015

The Board is again meeting in person at 2957 Birch Street Bishop, CA 93514. Members of the public will be allowed to
attend in person or via zoom. Public comments can be made in person or via zoom.

1. Call to Order (at 5:30 pm).
2. Public Comment: The purpose of public comment is to allow members of the public to address the Board

of Directors. Public comments shall be received at the beginning of the meeting and are limited to three

(3) minutes per speaker, with a total time limit of thirty (30) minutes for all public comment unless

otherwise modified by the Chair. Speaking time may not be granted and/or loaned to another individual for
purposes of extending available speaking time unless arrangements have been made in advance for a large
group of speakers to have a spokesperson speak on their behalf. Comments must be kept brief and non-
repetitive. The general Public Comment portion of the meeting allows the public to address any item
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public comments
on agenda items should be made at the time each item is considered.
3. New Business:

A. Ad Hoc Committee Reports (Board will provide this information)

a. Governance (Jean Turner)

b. HR (Mary Mae Kilpatrick)

c. Finance (Melissa Best-Baker)

d. Compliance (vacant)
B. Department of Homeland Security CISA Cybersecurity Assessment, Bryan Harper (Board will receive

this information)

Page 2 of 153



Page, 2, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, September 20, 2023

F.

G.

Revenue Cycle Report, Gloria Sacco, Revenue Cycle Director (Board will receive this report)
Chief Executive Officer Report (Board will receive this report)
a. Removal of Surgery Trailer
b. Urology and Surgery Update
c. Master Plan
Chief Financial Officer Report
a. Financial & Statistical Reports (Board will consider the approval of these reports)
b. Capital Budget Request (Board will consider the approval of the Capital Budget Request)
c. TAG Update (Board will receive this report)
Chief Nursing Officer/Chief Operations Officer Report (Board will receive this report)
Chief of Staff Report, Sierra Bourne MD:

A. Policies (Board will consider the approval of these Policies and Procedures)

1. Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory
DI — Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient
Diagnostic Imaging — Peer Review Policy

Infection Prevention Plan

A I

Standardized Procedure — Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or

Certified Nurse Midwife

6. Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

7. Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute Illness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

8. Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic lllness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

9. Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

10. Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

Medical Staff Appointments (Board will consider the approval of these Medical Staff Appointments)

1. Elizabeth Haun, FNP (family practice) — APP Staff

Maria Ramirez, MD (hospitalist) — Courtesy Staff

James Tur, MD (hospitalist) — Active Staff

Steven Arbogast, DO (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff

A

Swati Laroia Coon, DO (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff
9/14/2023, 8:28 AM

Page 3 of 1563



Page, 3, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, September 20, 2023

6. Aravind Reddy, MD (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff
7. Gautam Sachdeva, MD (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff
C. Staff Category Changes (Board will consider the approval of these Staff Category Changes)
1. Joy Engblade, MD (internal medicine) — change from Active Staff to Courtesy Staff
2. Monika Mehrens, DO (family medicine) — change from Active Staff to Courtesy Staff
D. Privilege Forms (Board will consider the approval of these Privilege Forms)
1. Cardiovascular Disease
2. Nurse Practitioner
3. Physician Assistant
E. Medical Staff Resignations in Good Standing (Board will consider the approval of these Medical Staff
Resignations in Good Standing)
1. Alissa Dell, NP (family practice) — effective 7/14/23

F. Medical Executive Committee Report (Board will receive this report)

Consent Agenda
All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine
and will be enacted by one motion unless any member of the
Board wishes to remove an item for discussion.
4. Approval of minutes of the July 19, 2023 Regular Board Meeting (Board will consider the approval of
these minutes)
5. Approval of minutes of the August 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting (Board will consider the approval of
these minutes)
6. Chief Medical Officer Report (Board will consider accepting this report)
7. Department Reports (Board will consider accepting these reports)
8. Approval of Policies and Procedures (Board will consider the approval of these Policies and Procedures)
a. Check Signing
b. Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District
c. Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

d. Nursing Certification

1. Reports from Board Members (Board will provide this information)
2. Public comments on closed session items.

3. Adjournment to Closed Session to/for:
9/14/2023, 8:28 AM

Page 4 of 1563



Page, 4, Agenda, NIHD Board of Directors Regular Meeting, September 20, 2023

a. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation. Government Code 54956.9(d)(1).
Name of Case: Claim # 23-000653M Pavlovsky

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to Government Code Section 54957(b)(1).

Title: Interim CEO

4. Adjournment

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you require special accommodations to participate in a

District Board meeting, please contact administration at (760) 873-2838 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

9/14/2023, 8:28 AM

Page 5 of 153



€61 40 9 obed ATNO 3SN 1VIOI440 J04

€20z ‘ST das

(ADOHANIN)
10111SIg aJedyijeaH 0Au| ulayloN

— 14Vdd —

Ja1g-INO
]1So] uolnjellauod 92l0Way

JUBWISSASSY AllunoasliagAD
VSIO
AINnoasg
puUR|BWOH JO 1uswuedaq




€61 4o / obed

"JUBWISSASSe 3] JO awedjawil ayl uiyim
yslidwoaoe pjnod AresiaApe ue suonoe jeym sajesisuowap
AJuo papinoid S32IAIBS By “lpne ue 10U SI | dY SIYL

'J811g-1N0 |el1d1)jo ue 10 podal [eul) ayl Jo uonealignd ayl

0] Joud payipow Apuedyiubis ag Aew pue ajels yelp ybnou
S11 Ul pajuasaid s11] ‘sbuipuly burredaid pue uonew.iojul
SIy) BuizAreue Jo ssadoud ayj ul [|ns aJe siabeuew pue
sJ19aulbug ‘pazireul} 10 payeplifeA Ajnj jou si pue Areuiwia.d
S| uoneuasald Ssiyl ul SMO||0} 1eyl uolew.ojul ay|

:40I11LON



€61 Jo § obed

suonsanQ .
sdals 1XeN

SuoneAlasqQ
sbuipui4

Buliayres uonewJsoju] 821nos uadQ
S|eoo

snjels pue syabie]

suolelwi] pue adoos

wea| % aweldawl] IUSWSSISSY

epusby



€61 40 6 obed

ysey axeld

weal 1dd

AOBSyp esio@[eaudw-1iagqol [eSNOIA gog
pea’] pad 1dd

B10 yiu@®@simal ueap SIMa7 uea(
(DOd) 10%1U0D JO 1UI0d Jawoisn)d

JUBWISSBSSY [euldIXg  80-60-£20¢ 01 62-80-£20¢
Aoy ared

wea| % aweljawl] JUsawssassy



€61 4o 01 obed

Swia1SAs uononpoud |fe
JO uoneluasaldal Jiej e ale swalsAs adoas-ul sswnsse BunNsa] .

Je1s dOHANIN yum Bupiom Ag swo213A0 - sweljawl 1oys .
suonenwi bunsa] ,

Bio yiumammw) aus Aued-piiyl «
S1augns [elaA3S SS0Jor sassalppe d| 99 .
sabuey d| [eussixy .

suolyeliwi] pue adoos



€61 Jo 1| abed

S[eo9)




€61 Jo Z| abed

salljiqelau|nA

Bunsixa Buizinn asiwoidwod 8|gissod Jo JusIxa aulwlia1aq «
s1osse asiwoidwod
0] pasn ag ued Jeyl SI0199A Moene [eulalxa dlj1oads Ajnuap)

aimsod AQ1unoas asealoul [|IMm Jeyl 1lodal ajgeuonoe ue apiAoid

JUSWIUOJIAUS 3U] UIYIM SYSLI Ajnuap

S[eo9



€61 Jo €| abed

palepifeA A||njssa2ons aiam S|enuapald JO S18S () «

PIIM 9y}
ul paynuapl (spiomssed pue s|iewa) S[enuapald Jo S18S /€ »

(aseqerep paumduaag|aneH 01 Bulpiodor) sayoealq erep
snoinaid ul bunsixs se paynuapl alam sjrews padeids /€

S93.1N0S 1aulJalu] SNOoLEBA WOol) U@Qﬁtom 9J9M S|lello 8¢ .
Buliayles
uoljew.oju] 321nos uado



€61 40 | abed

sbuipui




€61 40 G| abed

"uonoe areIpawwl
Aue annbal jou sa0p 1nq ‘10 JUezIUbod ag PjNOYS Wea) JIawWwoisnd ay) ey seale juasaidal
sBuipuly asay "panojdxa Ajipeal ag 10uURd TRyl WalSAS syl UIYIIM S9SSauyeam [enuslod

leuonew.ou|

"SI JouIW JO 10 ‘paljlidAuUN ‘feuoiewlojul
uao ale Aay) se uodal SIYl Ul papn|oul 10U aJe sj00] A1in2as Ag palodal swall mo| Auelp

‘a|qei0jdxa Ajrewou 10U aJe 1ng ‘1Salaiul Jo wal se pauodal pue palsan0ISIp sanljigelauina MO
S)J0MIBU palsnJ) 01 Ssadde Buiney SyJoMiau palsniun -
suoneInBIIUOISIW SNIIARUY -
sanjigqedes Bunispe pue Buibboj a1seq Jo yoe -
uoleW.IoUI [enUapPLU0I a1elodlod 01 SS829. peal |N} Ulelgo ued Japniul uy -
uoleWIOolUI JUNOJJE 1SN 10 UOITeWIOjUI J8WO0ISND SANISUSS paziloyineun Jo ainsojasiq -
'Se 1Jons 921Aap parabie) ay) JO |011U0D SWOS 3SIDIaxXa 0] 3|ge ag Aew Si1apniu| wnipa
Slasn pue uonessiulWpe alowal 10} spiomssed 3eap) -
1l Jo abeiuenpe aye] 0] 18UlalU| BY1 UO 3|ge|reAe Ajipeal S|00l skey Jeyl Sisixa AlljigelaunA -
pa120219p Joopxoeq Jo/pue uelol] ‘WIOM -
suoneINBIIUOISIW ISAISS/|[eMB.I/181N0J BI9ASS -
JEVNEINEN
B U0 S9|l} Jalsiulwpe Aja10wal 01 Aljige ayl Buirey Japnijul ue se yons ‘asiwoidwod yiomiau
Jo/pue walsAs ‘uonealdde a19|dwoo 01 pea| ued 1eyl sanljigelauinAa ajgeliojdxa Ajise] -
'Sk |yons adinap pajabiiel ayl uo |01JU09 [N} 3SI0IaXa 01 9|ge ag Aew siapniu| ybiH
‘Aj@1elpawiwil uonuane s,Jawoisnd
ay1 01 1ybnolg aq |Im swiall [eanitd -19edwi aiaAas |enualod Jo/pue iojdxa Jo asea
3} JO 8SNe2a( JUBWUOIIAUS 3U] 01 XSIJ 819A8S pue alelpawiwi ue asod sanijigeiaujnA [eaniid [eanud
uonduosag ISTTEVEETS

uonesijisse|d All1anas Buipui4



€61 40 9| abed

S91edlia) paubIS-j|esS .
[euoieurioju]

2Insoosiq ered
MO

sassauyeap\ Bulysiyd Jeads .
wnipaiN

== AdVNIANI'T3dd -

MB3IAIBNO SDBulpui4



€61 J0 /| obed

6790-000Z-3AJ=2weu¢Tho aweuaad /utq-163/buo ad3TwW aAd //:d33y :93S [,ZOZ°0°'TZ°OT. ST anleA
3yl "0 T/dllH J@A0 JUASBATIOY-JdAJUDS-140S0JITY/ 0} 3sanbau e eTA dJapeay aleoaTIuaylny-MMM @4yl UuT dI 1
8J JO 1BUJ3IUT 3yl 1e3Aad Aew (YMO Pue Sy3) swalsAs abueyox3y 140SO0JOT| :OUASAATIOY-JBAJDS-1J0SOJITH/ +

6790-000Z-3N)=8weu¢Tha aweuand/utq-1ba/buo-adlTw and //:di3y :88S [,ZOZ O°TZ OT. ST anleA ayl|'e°T/dl
1H Y3Tm 03} 3sanbad e BTIA Japeay UOT}EI07] 8y} UT I 1B8J JO 1BUJBIUT SIT 1EB3aAdJ ABW JBAJBS (am a3yl :/ +
G'8/SII-140SOJITY :JBAJBS +

(DLW9) 9£:00:02 Z1-60-£20C -3WT] 3jJels +
TV BZOZ 9STVHS VS¥ S1L 29 18Q019 34aJTBTIQ=NJ/2ul 348)TBTQ=0/SN=3/ -Janss]
9GZYHS-8ZTSIV-V¥SY¥-3HAI3 :sdaydt)
bJo*yturiood-zZp-qu-xa ‘BJo°yTu‘300J° TE-qu-Xa ‘bJuo°yTu
JanodsTpolne ‘buo°yTurJdanodsTpolne ‘bJoryTu‘lood- ) TEwgam ‘bJo°YTu-1TEWgaM :Saweully
buo*ytu-Tewgam=NJ/1e3Tdsoy oAul udayjJopn=p/doystg=/ETUJOLTIEI=1S/SN=3/ :39alqns 104Ul 1SS +

:}Jdod 3}a8bue] +
bJo*yTu-TEUWgaM :aweulsoy 3abue] +
6T 781" 92 661 :dI 18bue] +

3Inso|asiq eredg

MO



€61 40 g1 abed

31B0T4T1482 B1EOT4T1Ja0 5 5T 81BIT4TI4a)
1E3T4T1422 ' ] IEIT4TIY
81E3T4T348D DTS 1 Jd] T 31E3T4T148
31BOT4T348D ; 3 . 1EIT4TIJS
31B0T4T1 81B2T4T1480 paubTs . ] 5T 831EI0T4TIJa)
Saydlel al1BI3T4T3d

utTeys

UTBYD 81BIT4T1

sajeolia) paubis-jjes
jeuoljew.iojuj



€61 40 61 obed

Jusawnooq |99x3 (doysreams

paY20|]gd  pax20|g 10N SNA 19A13/\) paldAiou paxul

Juswindo pJoAA Pajgeu]
paxd0|g  paxo0|g 10N SNA 0JoeN pardAiouz payul
pax20|g  Pax20|g 10N SNQ MO0JI3JeIS PaYUIT
paxo0|g  pPax20|g 10N SNQ V.LH Y2JoiIL payuIT
Pa320|d  p8%20|g 10N SNA V.LH 1dLoSgA paui

uonoJalold uonoJalold
1SOH laplog |020101d 2D peojAed

sassaueapn buiysiyd 1eads

WwnIpa



€61 40 Oz obed

(Aejop puooas

pax20|g pax20|g SdllH € YIM) V1H Y2I01XIL paquI
paxo0|d  PaY0|9ION  SdLlH V.LH YdJ0IiL paxuIT
paxo0|d  pPaxd0|gI0N  SdLlH V.LH yaloisnoed payul
Pax20|g P20 ION  SdLIH V.LH 1dLoSgA paxul
payo0|d  Pa0|gI0N  SdLlH V.LH 8]0geIinoax3 payul

ssedAg NSV
paxo0|g  pPad0|gION  SdLlH UIM V1H Jalooysdieys paxul
payo0|d  Paxd0|gION  SdLlH V1H Jajooysdreys pa)ul
paxoold  pPaxd0|gION  SdLlH VLH lIdysiamod ydio paxui
payo0|d  pPaxd0|gI0N  SdLlH V.LH [I3YSiamod paxur

uol1}9910.d uol1}99310.d
1SOH lapiog |020101d 2D peojAed

sassaueapn buiysiyd 1eads

WwnIpa



€61 4O 1¢ obed

paoold  padI0|gION  SdLllH SN Pappagquig pauI
pao0lg  peNd0|gION  SdLlH a|qeINdax3 payul
paoold  paNd0|gION  SdLlH fexueg pajuI
paoold  PadI0|gION  SdLlH MOIO3IBIS PauIT
uol1}9910.d uol1}99310.d
1SOH laplog |020101d ZD peojAed

sassaueapn buiysiyd 1eads

WwnIpa



€61 40 Zg obed

JuawnooQ |99x3 (doysreams

paxoolg  pPaxd0|gION  SdLlH 19A19A) pardAiouz payul

Juswinoo PIOAA Pappagwig

Pa320]g P30 ION  SdL1H 370 pa1dAiouz payur

JuaWwna0d

paxoold  pPado0|gION  SdLlH PIO/ PapPaqWT 370 PaYUIT

(Aejap puooes

€ Yum) Juswindoq pIop pejgqeus

paxd0|g paxd0|g SdLIH oJoe pardAiouz payul

juswinodoq pPJoAA pajgeu]

Pax20]g  Pa20|gION  SdL1H 0Joe|\ pardAIouz payul

juswnooq

pax20|g pax00|g SdLIH PIO/ P3JqeuUs 010\ Paxul]

uol1}9910.d uol1}99310.d

1SOH lapiog |020101d 2D peojAed

sassaueapn buiysiyd 1eads

WwnIpa



€61 JO £ obed

Jusawnooq |99x3 (doysieams

payoo0|g payoo0|g SdllH 19A19A) paidAIoug payoeny

Jusawinoo PJoOAA pPappagqw3

payo0|lg  PaY0IgION  SdLlH -370 pardAiouz payoeny

juswnooq

pax20|g pax20|g SdllH PIOA POPPaqWT-ITO Payoeny

Juswindoq pJoAA Pajgeu]

pax20|g  Pa420|g1ON  SdLIH 0dJeN pardAiouz payoeny

juswnooq

pax20|g pax20|g SdllH PJIOA P3|qeus 0dseN payoeny

pax00|g pa¥00|g SdllH 8]geIndax3 payoeny

pax20|g paxoo0|g SdllH VLH Y20 L paydeny

pax20|g pax00|g SdllH V.1H 1dLoSgA payoeny

uol1}9910.d uol1}99310.d

1SOH lapiog |020101d 2D peojAed

sassaueapn buiysiyd 1eads

WwnIpa



€61 40 g obed

suoieAIasqo




€61 40 Gz obed

speojAed snoloirew Buiureluod sebessaw |je
10 AJBAIIBP Byl paxo0|q 321AI3S 10 (oduod]) aduerdde Ajunodas

|]auuosiad HIN paunou pue
AlIAnoe snoidifew painuapl (9asiydiopy) Buuonuow Hoj AYo9pN =

speojAed pa)sal | uonndaxa ay) pajuarald pue
paynuapl (Jspuajag SMOPUIAA pue 2asiydio) SNIIA-IUR JO 8S( «

swisiueyosaw A111n28s |lrews pue ylomiau s|dniniN «

JUBWIUOJIAUD
[euJaIXa alnjew pue ‘paurejurew ‘pPainbyuod |[SAA «

SUOIIRAIaSO |[el1dN0



€61 40 9 obed

VSIO SHA Yum Mom aunind .
alelidoidde se ‘ereipawal 0] sue|d UONDY .
sBulpulj ayepijen ® MaINSY .

SIM3T ueaq .

D0d 01 yoday yeiq .
SisAjeuy [euonippy .

Wea] 1dd «

sda)s 1XaN



€61 J0 /Z obed

ssuonsanQ




MIIA JOAQ O]2AD SNUSADY

LIS FEILITYITE] ] KHTHIHOMN

A



ysueas o} 213y 2dR) H

AdEWWNS AL UY

FIEL S0°EL SELL FELL oL L9EL S 0L sfeq g94Ma
LEE'SLLES SELSOT LS 9ED BFE9S L0 LES S 55+ L0S'SS 69.L°T08'9S BLE'E9LS S s1enod g94Na
Y2 G %55 1S 5% LS L4705 %.L6 05 %BL TS %0Z 6F o9 SABO 06 < WY
LLE'099°ETS 0LB'TSL'SES +ED BEL'9TS 209 LELSTS 096'98Z'STS BEF ESL'9TS BERLELFT S sAed 06 = WY
TS08 868 Z5°T6 L¥'E5 YT 68 ZE'EB D0'Z6 shed Wy
LODELY LSS ZOE 656 6FS LOD'EL6 LSS L9Z 069 05% L9 1L9'6FS 2EF 520058 LIS'BFT 0SS sJueeg Wiy
621'0L5% 2CF'955S 0SE BS5S €ES'BFCS ZL6'GE5S 9ra'BESS LSE'OrS S anuaasy Aeq abesany
GO0 LEF 1S (SE0'ZEL ES) 9FLERT IS 9ER'969' 1S (0LLFLDLSD EOC BESS LOL'BLFS iy u abueyd 18N
(gos’se2'68) (ser zz6'65) (oL0'8LE 2E) (sre'rig o) (B0Z 96E 0LE) (6t +EE LS) (@60'zer 2s) sjuawsnipy
(LgL'D9L'aS) (5EE's98'LS) (L66'C2t 23] (LEB'SEL BS]) {29z’ Lit'as) (210 LLE BS) (FEL'esL LS) sluswWied
LLO'GES LLS EEL559°51S BSLEFL'BLS Z20'FFE SLS SOEE6EL LLS L2 EFE LS L6 +099LS sableyD

~ |eeozanr czoz-unp czoz-1dy £Z0ZIeW BAy jeouoIsIy I

na AUDEY pEoUAMDd a CTleoyyesy ofAu] wsypop
sannul Bulng 128198
U3 Bug peojumod £Z0Z-Bny- ¢ ‘Aepsiny] Jo se pual] Alewwng juswuoliaug Yyluoy 9

“uoileuUoiul BUIS|E pUSl] SEB (|84 SE S|d3 dol Inod puncls UoEWUoIUl ABWWNS Sapiaold pIBoguUsSEp ABLLIWUNS a[0AT anuassy sul

puad] oulapy | Alewwing g4ng | Adewwng Yoy | Aewnung

o

_ ~  E£20Z-Bny-Lg .,hm_nﬂzﬁ_

S E SR n

| e Hess o

youeas o wooanM oS TEED 3D143S1J 24e0)je=2H O_xnc_ LI2YlION _HJomlapn UO siybim

reucien | Jayyespg » TSN J2PIACLY M3 ey Auo-1aweEeu) e swey e d 30 - Unsay ysueas sylewyoog pabeuey sddy  Iif

=] /312f3-3Nuanz1/S2NKBUE,/9g/ 0d/SUIBWCP, D OANI/SIUSID// Wo1auwasuosiybl m 0 o >
-+ _ ® uoD uey) | ssus|pxg sswenng L ® ) uD s3y6I7 - Bununoooy usney S > ISUOANSUIST O] SWODS, < _ > JWOH T

LU FIVOHLTVIH] OAN] NHIHIHON




@ ©6 & Ex Zo Ed Em 9 O = - !

wr s s g g e T 1

memsmeLE UWE S LW hnieted b = NLE TR ul m-m_hﬂ-.-u 1N

sfe] WY ajuseg HiY .

ETOEZ-DMy-z0 AepSaupapEZOT-INr-£0 ‘AEpUON EZ0Z-UNr-E0 “AEpINESEZ0Z-ABW-+0 “AEpSINULEZ0E-1dw-+0 fepssnl €Z0z-1en-S0 ‘Aepung
00 000 005 6¥S

0098
00 000 000068
o028
- . E =
00 000 005 055 =
: m
00 06 nulu
00 000 000 LSS =
(-]
006 00 000 005 155
00 ¥E 00 000 000 2GS
fpproey
fuypuowy - Syjuo XIS 1sed a  aEdUESH OAU WSULON fnuz Bumg (=) A Ird
-Bny-Le ‘Aepsinyl Jo se puald] sAeq pue o/
MaLA pual] PDaas abuey si1eq 109198 Knug Buyng 1oees adAfl smain 109198

"BLIODING U} O} SINQLYUCD JEY) SILGSW JWads Uum EIED /Y Alep sepinold pieogysep AIBWWNS My eyl

puad] oulapy | Aewwng g4pa | Adewwng yoy | Alewwung

_ - £z0e-bny- g ‘Repsany |
yiess o W OAMI | HIWNOD NY3D 1ousIqg =4 mUP—u.—m.W—I_ o._\m_t__ _..._l_.mn.—ui_oz 2 AAOMIDN UO .mu——‘_mm._l_
rRUCIEN | J2UIEapN, @ TSR] ASEIACLG M rnuepy Aug-lawEiu) R JWoH T w4 30 - NsEY Yyreasg sylewyoog pabeuepy sddy I
= [a1pfo-snuanslfsondeue/ag/ 0d/sSUlBWLOP, Ay DT OANML/SIUSI D/ Wwosusuws> uosiybl 0 o —
-+ _ X U HeyD | 2ous|Eoxg sswening A X o up s3YB - Bununoaoy uaned LS > iFHOAMISUER D OF WO 3N, < _ > IWoH T

NS FEVORLITYI] OAN] NHIHINON




'ss94304d Jojluow 03 syjuow € ui yipne dn moj|o4
|euojenyis aul] swl} 39S - SNAON R J4edY3}|esaH SO - SHPNY JOPUSA SNUSAY e

(Juswiyiedaq Ag Ajlep uonel|idouod9J 93Jeyd) sanuaAal Ajlep asealdu]

(4990320 Ul J4e3s 03 siapinoid 0T) A3 S
pa3a|dwod - sisplroid gg) dIUl|D - SMAIASJ JUSWINJOP Y uoLleaNpP3 JOPIAOI] e

(supymeH g YHm Supjdom sineq a1udela|) Sa1aualdyap 34eyd adnpay e

(£2/0Z/6 Sunaawi 1s.14) SSULID3|N SJOUBPIOAY |elUSQ PaYSI|JeIST e

(Juswiade|d 934e| IXaU 4970320 "pade|d uoj|jiw
) 93neH 03 3ulpuas sue|d JuswAed uo dnias jou Jo Aed 03 3uisnjal syusaned e

[pamo||o) suolje|n3ay) aunf/Ae|n ul ue|dpaln Yim pade|d saduejeq Aed-}|aS .
91e2NpPa Q MOJ} Y40M 1034402 “4aula) arepdn) Sanssl WaSAS JouId)) 109440 .

(Jen1oeJ3u0d ‘AjpwuN) S3|qeAIad9Y 9|q11I9]|0dUN SUIWIDIDJ

21 O] ua»e] uoidy

7



PaAOWS

)3]|02UN || 32UO 420320 Ul diedaid uold3foid UoPII||0) Yse)
£2/1€/840se ApUaLIND 0/ CT  |BOK) sAep 06 19N0 YV e
7T €Z/le/glosehpuauny 4 [pOD) sAed 94NQ e
0Q £2/18/840sehnuaLnd 94, [RON) (SS0JD) sAeq YV e

IADIYDY 0] S[BOD) o

7



czoz AInf

31vVddN TVIONVNI4 dHIN

"YIPI ANOK "[VOD) JUQ) DI, JUQ)
LONMLSI(] HYVOHLTVAH OAN] NYIHIMON

V7




(sS07) awoou| bunesadom (SSOT) SWODU| JON =

(000'000°€)$

(LzE'ser'?)$ (000°005‘2)%

(000'000°2)$

CL'8YY'T)$ (000°00S‘T)$

(000°000°T)$
(I6T°CL9)$

0T'€C)$

(ZvL'68€)%
-ISal8s (000'009)$

I

888'61$

‘IS9HSS 000'005$

JONVINHO44d3d TVIONVNI4 €z20C ANl




SHOL1VOIAN]I
JONVINHO4dddd Ad)




puey

%8¢ €0T I8 Uuo yse)d shAeq
Spung

%6 T 6CS'GST'0E$  $S0'Z6E'GLS pa12113saluUN
sosuadx]

%L - 2L2'76C% 8T19'vTES Alleq abesany

9brIdAY
abuey) 2, €zoz AInf €202 A4

ANVH NO HSVD SAVd




%V'G

% -

%ELl-
%9-

LT°0G%

L08°G$

60'S8%
¥0°86¢&

91ey AlUNOH
6GL1$ obeiany psiojdw]

(adv) Aea

Juaijed paisnipy

Jad (gMS) siyauag

GEBG'GS ‘sobepn ‘salle|es

9jey
AlAJnoH abeuisny

L8'0TTS$ Joge 12eJauo)
06’V v S314 [ej0L

S1S00D dDVM




wOE JOQUSAON JO auljpeap
AQ Sjuswaie]s |eldueuly aAey 03 3dedy uQ

€20¢ 3A4 dnuea|d ybnoayz buiiom
wJiy mau yaim diysiasulyied syl buiAolu3

11vddn 1idnNyv




SN204 sasuadx3 4ayi0
s93ey JogeT 10elauo)
SNJ>04 awWodu| J13Y10

SN204 39|2AD) SNU3AY

SANIMTIVL

9sealdul sbem wnwiuiw |el13ua3od
soanjeuad dealq pue |eaw PassI
sjuswalinbal jeba
saul|peap builasp
S|enJodoy
buipod
S|eldueuld Jo ssaullawi] ] Adeunddy

SANIMAV3IH

SNOO04d TVIONVNIAL




€61 40 of abed

poulop 1

119 AHEIJOUS SHSIN ¥ AY PISEDIIUL NSUQ||Y PUE SPId SHSIA LY AY PIsEdIIul
21Ul[2 OYHQ "AjN[ 33| Ul PRINI0 YIIYM SUIDIPIIA [BUISIU| YUM JSSIaW O} anp pasealdul
JHY "Aunoe Y3 pue ‘salIdAI|ap ‘Sa11a81NS d| Ul 9SBIID3P B 0} SNP UMOP SUOISSIWPY

2243 LOLT 150°C SINOH uoneAIdsqo
S T9¢C 99¢ SHSIA SuisanN
(¢2) 8€L 199 qeyay
%6'T- %Y'9 %SV SHSIA @3 J0 % sHwy a3
(s1T) LS w suwpy a3
513 068 <6 sysIA Aduasiawg
8YT 096‘T 80T‘C SuiSew) onsouseiq
- VET VET sal498ins |ejoy
LT <ot [44» dO sauasing
(1) 6C 4 dl sa1agang
T €6v'T 0S‘T SMSIA JWUI) VIN
(44" 6v2'C TLET SHSIA JHY
(9vT) 98t'c ove's SUSINdO
(€) LT vT sauaNRg
(z0) 6'C LT SOV
(@ L 9 snsua) Ajieq aSeJany
(8v) 0ze ut (A1asanp pxa) sheq d|
(6v) 9w L6T sheq d
(€1) LL ¥9 (A19snN *]x3) sHwipy

'95BaJoUl %/ JO 98eJ9AR UR U0J 20T AJenuer ul unddo ||IM 9seaJdul Jarsewssiey)
"9NUIA3I 13U U1 )8]TS$ S1Uasaldal s9aA0|dWa PaINsUl UMO INQ "%YD Ul 9dUBLIEA AOA

01 8unnguIuo) Jaquwiaidas |1aun Ad ul paruawsjdwi 398 1,upip Apojoylsw 1ySisysiy mau
‘0s|y *aulj29p YN Suisned sioAed Aed-}|9S '3 JUSWUISAOD 0} [BIDISWWOD 1§ SSOUD) aN|g
woJj BIYs XIN J0Aed *(11304d ou) sa84eyd paunsul-}|9s ae sadieyd $so43 Jo % ‘SuiSew
a13souselp pue ‘43 ‘sisIn JHY ‘salua8ins 4O ul swnjoA Jaysiy 01 anp dn sl anuanas

dO 'S914984Ns d| Ul 9UI|I3P B 0} P[4 SUOISSIWPE SS3| 0} SNP UMOP S| SNUBAII d|

%S- %TS %8V 501D JO % dNUIAIY 13N Ysed
v08'6€ £0£°069'8 L0S'0EL'8 anuanay juaned 19N
162291 0S0'ZTT'T TYEVLT'T anuanay $so19 d1ul)
S19'817°C 6Y9VLY'TT  ¥9Z'E69'ET anuanay sso19 do
(109'6£9) S0£‘986'€ ¥0£'90€'€ anuanay ssouo d|

'S91ep MEIS §,49]|0J3U0D puUe 04D 03 Jolid Sem yd1ym
Jeah soud ur Sulundoo sadnoeld Suiunodde aeanddeul 01 aNp st JeaA Jolud wouy dueLep

(6¥7'282) (zvL'68€) (T612L9) (ss07) awoou| Supesado
(v66°TLY) 888°61 (90t1‘€CY) (sso1) awoduj 19N
ESIEIENN HINOW HINOW
Ad Ad A

Arewwung eroueut,] — €70 Anf
10LISI(] QIBOYI[BOH OAU] UISYLON



€61 4o L abed

AN 40y 3T TS 249M S3unoasip Ayueyd

ALIMVHD
uonejuawa|dwi
SunleaWw MaIAaJ Je|jop YSiy 01 Snp 21ed UNJ YIuow g Woly Ny TS Pauljasp sjeluaq

S1VIN3a

22027 3sN8ny Ul 6S sem yiewtaremysiy Juswaseuew
Sulyyers pue £20¢ |Hdy Ul 4414 03 NP s34 [BI03 PUB S3]4 IOBIIUOD U] BUIP3Q

(T0) ¥'0 v'0 g0d3 pa1snipy
€0 LT 0t 90d3
(8€) 9ey 86€ 314 |eoL
(VA9) 0S €€ 314 19B43U0)
(t2) 18€ S9¢ 314 pahojdwig
(v) €207 6.6 sheq paisnipy
(617) 144 16T sheq juaied
SASNID

A3ojopoyraw
ul 98ueyd pue JuUsWUIAA0S 01 YIYs Xiw JoAed 01 anp paseadul S|enjdesuo)

(z16'L6V) 16'L6Y - J3y10
0€T'LY (svo'8Le) (sT8‘0g¢) $J0-33IM
92L'v6L (zoL'veg’T)  (9€0°0v0°T) 192 peg
(0€9°T002) (80£°2LT'9)  (BEEWLT'S) 1snlpy 1esu0)
SNOIIDNAa3a
%000 %000 %000 dwo) ;siaxyio0Mm
%00°€ %09°'T %09t Aed-jjas
%06'7C %00°SE %0665 34edIP3N
%0%'6T- %09°t€E %0C'ST presIpan
%08t~ %0€"L %0S°C |erIaWwWOo)
%0L €- %0S'T¢C %08°LT ssoJ) an|g
Xiw 10Aed

*(s1404d 0u) paunsul J|9s 949M SIDIAIDS

qeyaJ Jo %/ "(4eah sord ueyl Jamoj SHSIA OE.) 19y Pa1I3|Ja4 S| IBYM UBY] SS3| SEM
aulPap awn|oA “(Ajlswil un220 asay a4nsua 03 193foad uo Supjiom - Ajpwiy pasalus Jou
sa84eyd pue sagua|jeyd Sulyeis) yosads pue | O 01 SNP UMOP dJe S3JIAISS qeyay (syyosd
0Uu) paJnsul J|9s aJe SIDIAIDS |d JO %P "SIIAI9S owwew pue Ael-x 01 anp dn aJe SadIAIDS
1@ *(31404d ou) sa1198uNS paJnsul }|9s 949M $314934NS dO 4O %9 "dO 03 d| wody dijj 03 anp
paseatoul saladins 4O *(311J04d ou) SYISIA PaUNsul J|9S 319M SYISIA J1UI[D JO %GT PUe SHSIA
DJHY 40 %9 “JeaA Joud 03 pasedwod jejy SI1UID 34ed [enIA pue Aiadins yum susia (82) Aq

- L._.,ZO@,_), xxI.mZxOy_,\,s_y.I: S S DU P
Ad Ad A

Arewwung eroueut,] — €70 Anf
10LISI(] QIBOYI[BOH OAU] UISYLON



€61 4o z¥ obed

puaJl pua yiuow ||ny Sunajdwod 10U SSUIUNOIE 0 ANP PANIIIE-IBPUN SEM JBIA JOLId

85€'T8T S 9TETIT S §89C6€ S asuadx3 xy [er0L
S61 A4 S Tov S Aeq pag 1snlpy Jad
AJVINYVHd

‘|auuosiad |ei3uassa 03 paywi| Sulaq st pue paJinddo
9ABY SUOIIONPAJ J0E| 1IRIIUOY 'S3SUBAXD BISAYISDUR 03 NP dseaJdul asuadxa uepisAyd

(1) S v86Y LLTE $314 10843U0D
(86T°TL) S 886T09°C $ 06L0€ST $ S99 [BUOISS340.d |10
9zL's S TST'T99 S 86999 S $934-01d JaY310 [e30L
(eve'TeT) $ PET'SB9 S 066°€6V S JogeT 1oeJiuo) |elol
0TEVTT $ TOS'SSTT $ TI869ET S 934 uepisAyd |eoL
w S EvST S S8SC S Aeq pag 1snlpy Jad

$334 TYNOISS310dd

'S9SB3U3P 1JaUaQ AQ 19510 3 ||IM Sasealoul aSem ajedidipue am
pue 3sn3ny ul 92e|d 3001 $195}J0 UOISUIJ "%E PaseaJaul syyauaq Suipnjoul sGuiuies [e10]

VA4S S 68LY S 9gT's S adv/ams
§59'87T $ ST9'668'v $ 18T'8T0'S S syyauag g sadem ‘sane|es

's98eM 95BaJIUI YHM 135440 SI SIY3 ‘UONIMOH

‘Ajlenuue 3096$ paiedidniue - polsad Aed Jad s3uines yop$ e ul pa1jnsal pue 1sndny ul
pa4ind20 Sulydlew uoisuad MaN “€Z0Z AINr Ul Z9TS S DA "JUNO2DE 03Ul SIY3 Xel SHyauaq
pue sauiejes pazijewJoN ‘sadem Ajnui sl ing s1yauaq ul papnjaul st usyel Old ‘sedem ul
95B3.J0Ul Y1IM S350 AQIA PUB UoIsuad paonpaJ 03 anp umop aJe sadep JO % e 1e s1jauag

%9T- %0L %SS S35E/W JO % SHJDUSG PIZI|EWION
(s8v'eve) ¢ SSS‘STO'T $ 0L0'T8LT S S)jaUIg PaZI|BWION
7€0'202 $ €SL'EL $ S8L'SLT S panJady Old
(,6L'€T) S 6LL'8EE S T86VIE S paunau| OLd
(£29%€) $ 6S0°0S€ S TEV9VE S doueINSUI DM 7 SIXe] [|oJAed
(Tos'6€T)  $ 9/€889  § SLS8YS S asuadx3 AN
(680°T0€) ¢ [9gsT6 S 8LTTI9 $ asuadx3 uoisuad
%Ce- %€E6 %CL sage/ 40 % sHyURg
(z8z’297) ¢ vee'v9s'c ¢ TSO'L60'T S syyauag [eloL
(691) S TIET S Wit S Aeq@ pag 1snlpy Jad

STEENEL]

*1edA Jold wouy %0z aseaJou] dled aseq
Alanoy a8eJany -aseasdul Suisned Ajnr ur uand a1am %G SuiSesane S3IBW JO SABM PUOIDS

(sz'12) 75°98€ LT'99€ s314 pahojdw3
618 S 86TY $ LT°0S S a1ey AjnoH agesany
e e ¢ TLO'WL8'T § TITOVWTE (P3sn O1d [oul) salie|es pazijewloN
LE6'S6E S TGT'SEST $ 6TTIE6T S saliejes [e30L
91 $ 8LY'T $ v66C $ Aeq pag 1snlpy 424

SANVIVS

220Z AINr Ul Np$ 03 paJedwiod %9/8$ sem Al 1oy 1149p ysed

"HSYD

"pa123.402 pue pamalnal Sulaq si Yy

9Y1 Se 1g3p peq Se pay1uap! Sulaq a4 SYUNOIIE BUOIA N9'ZS DIIM SH0 31LIM 1qap peq
“1a3aave

aJuelepn HLNOW HINOW
Ad Ad A

Arewwung eroueut,] — €70 Anf
10LISI(] QIBOYI[BOH OAU] UISYLON



€61 4o ¢f abed

*9}e4-UNJ Y}IM JUIISISUOD Je[|Op [e10 ]
Y6TvT S [80°8TE S 18TTre S uoljeziowy pue uonerdasdaq [exoL
6€ S TIE S 0S€ S Aeq@ pagisnlpy J4ad
NOILVZILYOINVY ANV NOILVIDO3Hdd3a

S9131]1IN pue ‘suonduasqns/sanp ‘pooy aJe saseadul Jejndijied "S|enJooe
puaJl pua yauow ||ny Suna|dwod 10U SSUIUNOIE 0} ANP PANIIIE-IBPUN SEM JBIA JOLId

LTO'€TT S 889'ST9 S SOL'8Y8 S 49410 |er0L
S6¢ S 19 S L98 S Aeq pag 1snlpy Jad
3ISN3IdX3 ¥3IH1O0

"AuiAnoE 11paId SUISNED YIUOW JUS.IND Ul PISISAS YIYM 30.ZS Ag panidde-1ano sem aung

(8e€‘Tve) S 646'L0T S (6SE'EET) S 9suadx3 YH3 |eI0L
(zva) $ 90T S (9€1) S Aeq pag 1snlpy 4ad
IN3ISAS YH3
s|enJaoe
puaJl pua yuow ||n} Suna|dwod 10U S3UIUNOIDE 0} NP PANIIIE-IdpUN SeM JedA Jolid
€9S'LL S TSL'STE  $ STE‘E6E S sa1|ddng |ed1paAl [e30L
€6 S 60€ S v S Aeq pag 1snlpy Jad
“$3MddNS VoIaIN
s|enJaoe

EELEITEN HINOW HINOW

Ad Ad A

Arewwung eroueut,] — €70 Anf
10LISI(] QIBOYI[BOH OAU] UISYLON



Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Income Statement
Fiscal Year 2024

Gross Patient Service Revenue
Inpatient Patient Revenue
Outpatient Revenue

Clinic Revenue

Gross Patient Service Revenue
Deductions from Revenue
Contractual Adjustments

Bad Debt

A/R Writeoffs

Other Deductions from Revenue
Deductions from Revenue
Other Patient Revenue
Incentive Income

Other Oper Rev - Rehab Thera Serv
Medical Office Net Revenue
Other Patient Revenue

Net Patient Service Revenue
CNR%

Cost of Services - Direct
Salaries and Wages

Benefits

Professional Fees

Contract Labor

Pharmacy

Medical Supplies

Hospice Operations

EHR System Expense

Other Direct Expenses

Total Cost of Services - Direct

General and Administrative Overhead

Salaries and Wages

Benefits

Professional Fees

Contract Labor

Depreciation and Amortization
Other Administative Expenses

Total General and Administrative Overhead

Total Expenses

Financing Expense
Financing Income
Investment Income
Miscellaneous Income

Net Income (Change is Financial Position)

Operating Income

7/31/2023 7/31/2022  YOY Change
3,306,704 3,986,305 (679,601)
13,693,264 11,474,649 2,218,615
1,274,341 1,112,050 162,291
18,274,309 16,573,004 1,701,305
(8,174,338)  (6,172,708)  (2,001,630)
(1,040,036)  (1,834,762) 794,726
(330,815) (378,045) 47,230
- 497,912 (497,912)
(9,545,189)  (7,887,603)  (1,657,586)
1,387 5,303 (3,916)
1,387 5,303 (3,916)
8,730,507 8,690,703 39,804
48% 52% -5%
2,489,077 2,175,027 314,049
1,776,636 2,008,070 (231,433)
1,793,204 1,381,538 411,667
366,857 655,016 (288,159)
392,685 211,326 181,358
393,315 315,752 77,563
(133,359) 107,979 (241,338)
671,043 546,374 124,669
7,749,458 7,401,082 348,376
442,153 360,265 81,888
320,415 356,264 (35,848)
243,596 535,217 (291,621)
127,133 30,218 96,915
342,281 318,087 24,194
177,662 79,314 98,348
1,653,240 1,679,363 (26,124)
9,402,698 9,080,446 322,252
180,370 183,196 (2,826)
228,125 64,203 163,922
60,924 74,115 (13,191)
140,406 484,508 (344,103)
(423,106) 49,388 (472,994)
(672,191) (389,742) (282,449)

Page 44 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Balance Sheet
Fiscal Year 2024

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and Liquid Capital
Short Term Investments
PMA Partnership
Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance
Other Receivables
Inventory
Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets
Assets Limited as to Use
Internally Designated for Capital Acquisitions
Short Term - Restricted
Limited Use Assets
LAIF - DC Pension Board Restricted
Other Patient Revenue
PEPRA - Deferred Outflows
PEPRA Pension
Total Limited Use Assets
Revenue Bonds Held by a Trustee
Total Assets Limited as to Use
Long Term Assets
Long Term Investment
Fixed Assets, Net of Depreciation
Total Long Term Assets
Total Assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll and Related
Accrued Interest and Sales Tax
Notes Payable
Unearned Revenue
Due to 3rd Party Payors
Due to Specific Purpose Funds
Other Deferred Credits - Pension
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Debt
Bond Premium
Accreted Interest
Other Non-Current Liability - Pension
Total Long Term Liabilities
Suspense Liabilities
Uncategorized Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Fund Balance
Fund Balance
Temporarily Restricted
Net Income
Total Fund Balance
Liabilities + Fund Balance
(Decline)/Gain

Prior Year Balances 7/31/2023 7/31/2022  YOY Change
19,390,555 17,067,550 8,260,905 8,806,645
10,497,077 10,513,789 24,254,218 (13,740,429)

9,351,360 10,701,794 22,573,731 (11,871,936)
5,711,717 5,538,617 3,628,324 1,910,294
5,159,474 5,120,179 3,116,641 2,003,538
1,694,180 2,054,965 1,466,831 588,133
51,804,362 50,996,894 63,300,650 (12,303,756)
1,466,355 1,466,418 2,044,212 (577,794)
798,218 870,163 747,613 122,550
19,296,858 19,296,858 19,296,858 -
20,095,076 20,167,021 20,044,471 122,550
1,078,189 1,072,482 1,105,984 (33,502)
22,639,619 22,705,921 23,194,667 (488,746)
2,767,655 2,776,508 2,274,959 501,550
77,430,543 77,115,335 76,799,479 315,856
80,198,197 79,891,843 79,074,438 817,405
154,642,179 153,594,658 165,569,755 (11,975,096)
822,049 825,158 2,575,534 (1,750,376)
7,768,116 7,688,430 5,058,837 2,629,593
10,634,804 9,917,379 6,269,082 3,648,297
93,155 170,685 145,639 25,047
1,633,671 1,633,671 2,133,708 (500,037)
(4,542) (4,542) 1,160,535  (1,165,076)
693,247 693,247 693,247 -
2,146,080 2,146,080 2,146,080 -
23,786,581 23,070,109 20,182,661 2,887,448
33,455,530 33,455,530 33,455,947 (417)
203,263 200,126 237,771 (37,645)
17,123,745 17,218,877 16,820,264 398,613
50,366,473 50,366,473 47,950,740 2,415,733
101,149,011 101,241,006 98,464,722 2,776,284
649,721 649,721 451,476 198,245
125,585,313 124,960,836 119,098,859 5,861,977
43,831,306 26,446,580 43,831,306 (17,384,726)
2,610,286 2,610,349 2,589,701 20,647
(17,384,726) (423,106) 49,888 (472,994)
29,056,866 28,633,823 46,470,896 (17,837,073)
154,642,179 153,594,658 165,569,755 (11,975,096)
(1,047,521)  (1,743,492) 695,971

Page 45 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Statement of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year 2024

Operating Activities

Receipts from and on behalf of patients (per bank account)
Payments to suppliers, contractors, and employees

Other receipts and payments, net

Net Cash from Operating Activities

Noncapital Financing Activities

Noncapital contributions (and grants)
Property taxes received

Reduction of CMS advance

Other

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities

Capital and Capital Related Financing Activities

Principal payments on long-term debt

Interest Paid

Purchase and construction of capital assets

Property Taxes Received

Net Cash used for Capital and Capital Related Financing Activities

Investing Activities

Investment income

Net Cash from Investing Activities

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, YTD 2024

32,152,204 As of 06/30/2023

$ 7,901,520
$ (9,979,178)
$ 53,687
$ (2,023,971)
S -

$ 66,946
s -

$ -

$ 66,946
S (3,137)
$ (180,370)
$ (315,856)
$ 161,179
$ (338,184)
$ 60,924
$ 60,924
$ (2,234,284)
S

$ 29,917,920

Page 46 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio
FYE 2024

Calculation method agrees to SECOND and THIRD SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURE OF TRUST 2021 Bonds Indenture

Long-Term Debt Service Coverage Ratio Calculation

Numerator:

Excess of revenues over expense
+ Depreciation Expense

+ Interest Expense

Less GO Property Tax revenue

Less GO Interest Expense

2013 and 2021 Indenture)
Other Patient Revenue

Denominator:

3rd Supplemental Indenture of TrlIst)
2021A Revenue Bonds
2021B Revenue Bonds
2009 GO Bonds (Fully Accreted Value)
2016 GO Bonds
Financed purchases and other loans

Total Maximum Annual Debt Service

Ratio: (numerator / denominator)
Required Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

In Compliance? (Y/N)

HOSPITAL FUND ONLY
$ (651,231)
342,281

180,370

228,125

44,532

$ 144,077

$ 112,700
905,057

1,704,252
$ 2,722,009

0.05

1.10

FALSE

Unrestricted Funds and Days Cash on Hand

Cash and Investments-current

Cash and Investments-non current
Sub-total

Less - Restricted:
PRF and grants (Unearned Revenue)
Held with bond fiscal agent
Building and Nursing Fund

Total Unrestricted Funds

Total Operating Expenses
Less Depreciation
Net Expenses

Average Daily Operating Expense

Days Cash on Hand

HOSPITAL FUND ONLY
$ 29,917,920
2,776,508
32,694,429

(1,072,482)
(1,466,418)

$ 30,155,529

$ 9,402,698
342,281
9,060,417

$ 292,272
103

Page 47 of 153



€61 4o gy abed

wnwiulw 5/ paau am ‘Quawalinbal puoq Jad e/u (g) 44 9z €01 8 i 98 99 Lot st pueH uo ysed sheq
e/u  886'TY $ SLY'EIL'y $ PTTYI0T  $ 6TS'SSTOE  $ PSOTEE'ST $ SOETYI'8T  $ T6T09S'ST  $ YpOLZETT  $ TYSTITOE  $ efu spuny pajLisaiun
e/u  S19'6 $ (9veee) s (69022) S ue'Ter $ 8I9VIE $ TYEVIE $ 015967 S 749433 $ 15978 $ e/u sasuadx3 Ajteq 8ay
ysed
B/u %TE- %E'8T %18 %L L~ %0°9€E- %168 %0°vT- %E"0L %S 7" e/u uidiey Bunesado
e/u (6vv'78e) S 9ET'ET8T $ w6T9EYY $ (16T2L9) S (Lze'sev'e) s (esv'soe’s) ¢ (Te€’eLT'T)  § (€60'8TEY)  $ (TvL'68E) S e/u swodu| 8unesado
/U %S %0°9T %9°6L %87 %807 %78 %6°0T- %879 %90 e/u UIBIe A 14014 13N
e/u (v66'TLY) $ 1T9'S20'T $ 98v'8097 $ (90T'ETv) S (Lze'syy'T) s (z6s‘1e0’s) s (9s€'sTe) s (ssv'pss’e) s 8886y $ e/u awodu| 19N
uidiepy
e/u (Lg) S 109 S €6LT S urt $ SoS s (189) $ 0L s (86T) $ 6YI'T S e/u ady/sasuadx3 1840
e/u  7/8's S L8€'8LS $ TI6'608T $ LT9'LSOT $ ove'eLy S (S8T'TSL) $  YOY'9T6 s (scz'set) $ SSLTSOT e/u sasuadx3 1ayi0
sasuadx3 Jay10
e/u  0ST Ol:174 S SILT S 98 $ 6LS s (168) s 16T $ L9 $ 9LS S ady/sasuadxs Addns
/U 776'8ST S EvrIre $ TEOTLLT $ 000'98L $ LSSPPS  $ (ce0'sse) S v8L'LTT $  S96'T69 $ 8L0'LTS S e/u sasuadx3 Ajddng
saljddng
e/u Ly $ 8T s (s2) 4454 7454 A T44 $ 66LT $ 085C $ S60T $ e/u Qdv/sasuadxa uepishyd
e/u  9v0°0ZT $ (861'€2) $ (s69TTY) $ 0089£0'C $ 866'6S0T $ S6Y'6YYT S Y8S'OVIT S 9TELTET $ YSL9TET  $ e/u sasuadx3 uepishyd
puads uenisAyd
B/u %8T %E L~ %b°E€- %L'8S %099 %2'T6 %8°€9 %L°89 %519 sasuadxa 301 4O % EMS
a8euane Ansnpu e/u (67) $ (sz1) s (99£T) S L08'S S SE6'S S €IS S 0/8Y $ L169 $ vOT'9 $ €06C adv/ams
%05 39 PINOYS Xew ‘a1edy[edH 1x23g 434 (8T0LST'T)  $ e/u %01~ %591~ %L'LL %E€E9 %8'6L %b°OrT %E"69 %9°10T %E¥9 %0S UN JO %EMS
e/u (88579) $ (08evLy) s (L66'sv8T) § TLTTES'S $ T159'966'S $ 89T'89E8 S PL9'S6L'S $ OEV'6EC9 $ 658'%8S'S  $ e/u sHyauag 73 ‘saBe ‘saliefes [e30]
HHewyouaq st aduel Jaysly (925'€T) $ Sov $ 8vL $ (wsy) $ (95'62) $ 608 $ L80TT  $ 99¥IT s vrea S 8TyL $ 19U $ v0T8 $ 218y AlinoH a8eany JogeT 19e43u0)
‘elusoyed 10} €£20C um:m:< 30 se Jaynudal Q_N J9d
e/u (ze'8g) (98'92) (eT9) ¥0°86€ 0672y L0 95201 SLLTy 9E'9€Y e/u s34 [e3oL
e/u (L0°LT) (0s°2) (8£9) LLTE LT0Y SS'6€ Y6'LE 89'6€ 867 e/u 314 Joge] 3oenuo)
e/u (EvT'T6T) $ (v6T'viE) $ (162'60€) $ 066'€6Y $ 87808 $ TST'E08 $ €95'TZ8 $ ovrees $  YET'S8Y S e/u JogeT Pesuo)
a8esane Ansnpul (089'ErY)  § %6VT %9'ST- %8'E- %6°LT %6°7S %L'8S %0°LT %LLS %0°vY %S°0L %0E sa8eM 4O % sujauLg
e/u (S8Y'Eve) $ (ser'ser) $ T06'TLT $ 0L0T8LT $ VY6IL06'T $ L9T'OT9'T $ 968'618'T S STEWLT $ sss'szo't e/u syyauag
e1ep UONEINOssY [eNdsOH eluloye) 03 8uipJoddy Lret $ 618 $ 85T $ (zozy) $ LTS $ 6SLY $ 616 $ €88y $ 9L'LS $ 86'Tv $ 008 $ a1ey AnoH a8esany pakojdwa
e/u (sz'Te) (9€°6T) S9°0 LT'S9E £9'V8E 99E 79'v9€ £0°88€ 75'98¢ e/u 5314 pakojdw3
e/u  TYTTLE $ (196'v€) $ (809'80'7) $ TITOVT'E $ ELTI8TE $ 0T8YS6'S $ SITYSTE $ T96'0L6'E $ TL0v8T e/u safem
safem
e/u (8TE) $ 85T S 98LE $ 0816 $ 9L $  S6E'S $ 820 $ 6089 $ 86v'6 $ e/u adv/enuanay Juaned 18N
/U p8T'T $ ETEBE $ 1768 $ 679'18C $ LIEEPT  $ TOL'86T $ TLL'69T S LEL'VOT $  SYE08T $ e/u Aeq Jepualed/anuanay Juaiied 19N
/U 188'%S S wws'y S €8v'oy $ 6v'68S $ TS9'9PS  $ TTO'EYS $ TLT'S8S S TTL'0ES $  ET9VES $ e/u Aeq Jepuajed/anuanay Juaned sso1o
/U %0°ZT- %'TT- %T'T %9°0C %TEE %S°8T %0°6T %b°9T %92y e/u $S019 JO % ¥V 12N
e/u (9E6'TL8'TT) $ (682'860°L) $ SEYOSET $ PELTOLOT S ¥BO'008LT $ O9ETSE'S $ 801896 $ 0€6v9TYT  $ TEL'ELSTT S e/u YV 19N
a8eJane Ansnpu %8'0€ %8°C %0°T %0°S- %8'St %8'EV %8°0S %9°CS %L'LY %0°EY %ST sheq 06 < % Yv
HBWYIUAG S Y 55048 40 %ST (67L766'ST) 67L'766'ST $ 076866 $ TLLSEE $ (c£8'896'T) $ LEO'VBL'EC S 99T'BYY'EC $ OT6TSL'ST  $ VEO'BEL'9T  $ BO9'LEL'ST $ LIT'SBLTC S BOEBLL S sheq 06 < ¥V
e/u (L£2'L90'T) $ (858'60L'T) $ STE09TT $ TTL'BTETS S O08S'BE'ES $ 96€'8990S  $ LET'9S80S  $ 6IEVIOWS $ 866'S66TS S e/u YV ssou9
2WO0odU| B ¥Y
e/u (L) (tot) (s€T) 199 9L 968 6v6 608 8EL e/u SIINIDS qeydy
e/u 8yl 88 s 801 020 150°C T6T°C 00T 096'T e/u 9210195 BuiBew onsoudeiq
efu g€l (8Lv) (905) SL8'E ESEY 18E'Y LS5y 3844 [4753 e/u SHSIA d1Ul|D PuUe DHY
I¥DH Jad 7707 ut a8eJane Ajypuow yowwe 4 (622) (6vT) (06T) 199 o018 158 S18 €98 068 659 SUSIA ¥3
IVDH J2d 2Z0z ul a8eJane Ajyauow yowwen (61) - T €5 vET ozt 18 €21 Jas VET €ST sa1a8uns [e10L
e/u ot (g€) (vsT) 156 86 SOT'T 06T'T 206 ST6 e/u sheq juaned paisnipy
I¥DH Jad 7707 ut 98eJane Ajypuow yowwe € (e1) (v) (61) v9 89 €8 8L 65 L 122 SHWpy
awnjoA
JuaWWo) 198ie]  HHewyouag YIUOIAl JBDA 98eJIaAY €207 YIUO J0ld €z-nr adesany €z-unr €z-Aen €z-1dy e Jewyousg  SI0IBIIPU| IDUBWIOHI |eldueul Ay
uoiINPay 03 DUELIE IOl 0} 3duBMEA  JAJ 01 dUBLEA 0] BDUBMEA €20Z IAd Ansnpup



€61 40 61 abed

00°006°059°T S
00°00000S $ ade|daJ pue yealg
00°006'0ST'T S paljuap|
19394 bs 000°0€~ | 00°000°S0OY S JuswWwade|dal Jood /96T
00°0000T S 9|geJiedas JoN 3uip|ing JojeJ aua8 40} HuNn DY
SOYIHMS ‘Syoed WOoOoJ JBAIRS| 00°000°G8 S JeaA yoea siyy Joj unadpnq Adewueyd mau Joj usawdinbg
‘293ndwod ‘||eIsul pooy ‘||eisul [|921UWO ‘SUIAIBYS ud3( aAey am - Jusawdinba JsIA|
00°000°00€ S SHun p|o uawade|dal un JYAH 3ulp|ing |Q
Hun y|ds e |je3sul 03 pa3N| 00°000°0T S dn 3uidaay jou si Qv Bulp|ing £96T Uolle||elsul J WooJ 4SS || /96T
00°000°9TT S N0 uJo Joou Ajadoud 315 yauig
p|o sieah +Q¢g ‘9|gejieae jou sued 941 Jo pul| 00°000°0S S Sujuuna wayj daay Juswade|daJ Hun IV VIAd
03 39|ge 10U 34| JO pUI S| HUN 3UO INg ||V
00°000CT S J0ssa1dwod Juswade|day J05521dw 02 WnnoeA PaIA
d|qe|ieAe jou s1ed| 00°0S0°8¢ S d|qe|iene jJuswade|dau
j0u sued p|o siedA +0g 94| Jo pul plojiuew seg us3osiiu / SNOJIUN
d|ge|ieAe jou sued 321A9p panuiuodsidl 00°09€°9S S 3un 3u1SIXa 40} deq|IeAe J0U S}ed jJuswade|dad Jossaidwod Jie |edIpaN
papes3dn| 00°061'8L S apeu3dn |9A3| Jusuodwod apeJs3dn 4ead yayms Jolesauasd dnyoegq
9q 1snw ‘syed ou ‘wa3sAs |043U0D palePINO Jea3 Yo1Ms |043u0d Sul|9)|eded
AJN3IDUN YO4 NOSVIYH I1VINILST 3SO0dind NOILdIYDS3a

1S3N03Y 135aNngd 1v.1IdvD




NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

V/

ANNUAL PLAN

NorTHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DisTRICT

One Team. One Goal. Your Health.
Title: Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory
Owner: Medical Laboratory Services Department: Laboratory
Manager
Scope: Laboratory Services Department
Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Version: 1
05/11/2023 Review Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors \ Original Approval Date:

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Chemical Hygiene Plan (CHP) is to minimize exposure of laboratory personnel to health and
physical hazards presented by hazardous chemicals, and to comply with the requirements of 29 CFR 1910.1450
and the California Code of Regulations, Title 8 Section 5191.

OVERVIEW
The following protocols have been included in this CHP and elsewhere (as indicated) to reduce potential safety
and health hazards when working with hazardous chemicals:

a. Limiting use of hazardous chemicals

b. Storing hazardous chemicals correctly

c. Disposing hazardous chemicals correctly

d. Maintaining equipment and instruments (refer to appropriate instrument operator’s guides)

e. Wearing correct PPE when working with hazardous chemicals

f. Using correct engineering controls such as fume hoods and shields when working with hazardous
chemicals

g. Prohibiting eating, drinking, smoking and applying make-up while working

h. Obtain the Laboratory Director and Laboratory Safety Officer’s approval before implementing new
procedures that will involve hazardous chemicals needing special engineering controls, workplace
practices and PPE.

DEFINITIONS

Hazardous chemical: A chemical for which there is statistically significant evidence, based on at least one study
conducted in accordance with established scientific principles that acute or chronic health effects may occur in
exposed personnel.

Particularly Hazardous Substances: Select carcinogens, reproductive toxins and substances with a high degree
of acute toxicity

Permissible exposure level (PEL): The maximum permitted 8-hour time-weighted average concentration of an
airborne contaminant. Cal/OSHA lists these limits at www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/5155table_acl.html

Cutaneous hazards: Substances that affect the dermal layer of the body.
e Signs and Symptoms: Defatting of the skin, rashes, irritation.
e Substances: Ketones, chlorinated compounds.

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 50 of 153



Eye hazards: Substances that affect the eye or visual capacity.
e Signs and Symptoms: Conjunctivitis, corneal damage.
e Substances: Organic solvents, acids.

Physical hazard: A substance for which there is scientifically valid evidence that it is a combustible liquid, a
compressed gas, explosive, flammable, an organic peroxide, an oxidizer, pyrophoric, unstable (reactive), or
water-reactive.

Carcinogen: A substance is a carcinogen if:
e It has been evaluated by the International Agency for Research on Cancer (IARC) Monographs, Vols 1-
34, and found to be a carcinogen or potential carcinogen; or
e Itis listed as a carcinogen or potential carcinogen in the Third Annual Report on Carcinogens published
by the National Toxicology Program (NTP); or
e It is regulated by OSHA as a carcinogen.

Corrosive: A substance that causes visible destruction of, or irreversible alterations in, living tissue by chemical
action at the site of contact. For example, a substance is considered to be corrosive if, when tested on the intact
skin of albino rabbits by the method described by the U.S. Department of Transportation in Appendix A to 49
CFR Part 173, it destroys or changes irreversibly the structure of the tissue at the site of contact following an
exposure period of four hours. This term does not refer to action on inanimate surfaces.

Reproductive toxins (teratogens): Substances that affect the reproductive capabilities including chromosomal
damage (mutations) and effects on fetuses (teratogenesis).

i. Signs and Symptoms: Birth defects, sterility.

11. Substances: Lead, DBCP.

Irritant: A substance that is not corrosive but that causes a reversible inflammatory effect on living tissue by
chemical action at the site of contact. A substance is a skin irritant if, when tested on the intact skin of albino
rabbits by the methods of 16 CFR 1500.41 for four hours exposure or by other appropriate techniques, it results
in an empirical score of five or more. A substance is an eye irritant if so determined under the procedure listed
in 16 CFR 1500.42 or other appropriate techniques.

Toxic: A substance falling within any of the following categories:

1. A substance that has a median lethal dose (LD50) of more than 50 milligrams per kilogram but not more
that 500 milligrams per kilogram of body weight when administered orally to albino rats weighing between
200 and 300 grams each.

2. A substance that has a median lethal dose (LD50) of more than 200 milligrams per kilogram but not more
than 1,000 milligrams per kilogram of body weight when administered by continuous contact for 24 hours
(or less if death occurs within 24 hours) with the bare skin of albino rabbits weighing between two and three
kilograms each.

3. A substance that has a median lethal concentration (LC50) in air of more than 200 parts per million but not
more than 2,000 parts per million by volume of gas or vapor, or more than two milligrams per liter but not
more than 20 milligrams per liter of mist, fume, or dust, when administered by continuous inhalation for one
hour (or less if death occurs within one hour) to albino rats weighing between 200 and 300 grams each.

Highly Toxic: A substance falling within any of the following categories:

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 51 of 153



1. A substance that has a median lethal dose (LD50) of 50 milligrams or less per kilogram of body weight
when administered orally to albino rats weighing between 200 and 300 grams each.

2. A substance that has a median lethal dose (LD50) of 200 milligrams or less per kilogram of body weight
when administered by continuous contact for 24 hours (or less if death occurs within 24 hours) with the bare
skin of albino rabbits weighing between two and three kilograms each.

3. A substance that has a median lethal concentration (LC50) in air of 200 parts per million by volume or less
of gas or vapor, or 2 milligrams per liter or less of mist, fume, or dust, when administered by continuous
inhalation for one hour (or less if death occurs within one hour) to albino rats weighing between 200 and
300 grams each.

Laboratory Safety Olfficer (LSO): The Laboratory Director or designee who can provide technical guidance in
the development and implementation of the Chemical Hygiene Plan. The Laboratory Director or designee is the
Laboratory Safety Officer (LSO). The LSO is responsible for the annual review of the Chemical Hygiene Plan
and for providing technical assistance to laboratory workers.

Protective laboratory practices and equipment: Those laboratory procedures, practices and equipment
(engineering controls) accepted by laboratory health and safety experts as effective in minimizing the potential
for employee exposure to hazardous chemicals.

CHEMICAL HYGEINE PLAN

Particularly Hazardous Chemicals (PHCs) at NIH Clinical Laboratory
1. Northern Inyo Hospital’s clinical laboratory does not stock or use particularly hazardous substances (‘“select
carcinogens “, “reproductive toxins” and “substances with a high degree of acute toxicity”).
2. Because of thlS
a. specific training for PHC use is not necessary
b. designated areas and containment devices for PHCs are not necessary
c. procedures for decontamination and safe removal of PHC waste are not necessary
3. However, laboratory employees are trained in chemical hygiene safe practices for the chemicals that are
used and these chemicals are labeled, stored, handled and discarded following OSHA and Cal Osha
regulations.
4. If new procedures that involve use of particularly hazardous chemicals are introduced, the above mentioned
would be defined and provided. (See “prior approval” section below)

Training

1. Initial training of laboratory personnel includes chemical hygiene safe practices and safety rules. Chemical
hygiene safe practice training also occurs when new assignments and procedures are introduced that involve
exposure to hazardous chemicals. (See “Prior Approval” section below)

2. Information provided during training includes:

Location of the Chemical Hygiene Plan

Location of SDSs

Correct Personal Protective Equipment

Use of Engineering Controls

Appropriate safe work practices

Chemicals in stock at NIH laboratory and their physical and health hazards
g. Emergency Procedures and Medical Consultation

Training includes observation of work habits

4. The hospital also requires annual viewing of fire safety, electrical safety and MSDS labeling videos

moe Ao o

[98)

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 52 of 153



CHEMICAL SAFETY RULES

1.

2.

SNk w

10.

11

15

Know the location of emergency showers, eyewashes, first aid kits, emergency exits, spill kits, telephone
and fire alarm pull stations
Know the location of Safety Data Sheets
a. PC > LAB(U:) > SAFETY DATA SHEETS
b. Red binders in laboratory training room
c. NIHD intranet under “Safety”
d. Manufacturer
Ensure you are familiar with this Chemical Hygiene Plan.
Do not drink, eat, smoke or apply cosmetics in the laboratory.
Wash hands after working with chemicals, even when gloves have been used.
Dress appropriately.
a. Long hair, neckties, or loose clothing should be tied back or otherwise secured.
b. No sandals, open-toed or perforated shoes are allowed
c. Wear a lab coat
Wear appropriate eye protection. Wear safety goggles over contacts
Wear the appropriate personal protective equipment for the chemicals you are working with.
Comply with warning signs and labels.
Do not directly smell or taste any chemical.

. Do not pipette or siphon by mouth.
12.
13.
14.

Keep containers closed when not in use.
Perform only those experiments or procedures you are authorized to do by the person in charge of the lab.
Report all injuries, fires, and accidents to your supervisor immediately.

. If you have a question about a procedure or the hazards of a chemical, ask your supervisor before

performing the procedure.

MANAGEMENT OF CHEMICALS IN THE LABORATORY

Hazardous Chemical Procurement, Distribution, and Inventory

a. Whenever possible use substitutes for hazardous chemicals

b. Use the minimum amount necessary whenever possible

Limit purchases of hazardous chemicals to minimal amounts

Ensure there are adequate storage cabinets for hazardous chemicals

Ensure that SDSs are available before purchase.

California Law requires an inventory of hazardous materials. Each laboratory section must complete
an inventory and update the inventory annually.

P oo

Storage of Hazardous Chemicals in the Laboratory

a. Store hazardous chemicals in cabinets labeled with appropriate Hazard signs

Ensure that shelves used for chemical storage are of substantial construction and adequately braced.

Arrange containers so that all labels are visible

Do not store chemicals on the floor

Do not store food in areas where hazardous chemicals are used.

Store flammable liquids in flammable liquid safety cabinets and do not store oxidizers, strong acids

or water-reactive material with flammable liquids in a manner in which mixing is possible during a

catastrophic event such as an earthquake.

g. Do not store chemical under sinks

h. Do not store corrosives in areas where plumbing, equipment or shelving could be damaged by
corrosive effects

e o o

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 53 of 153



i.  Store hydrochloric acid securely capped.

j. Store organic acids with organics, not with inorganic acids.

Labeling

a. Label all containers of hazardous substances appropriately. Do not remove the manufacturer's label
from a container as long as the material or residues of the material remain in the container. The

manufacturer's label should have the following information:
1. The identity of the hazardous substance.
ii.  Appropriate warning words and statements.
1ii.  Appropriate precautionary measures.
iv.  Name and address of manufacturer or importer.

b. Label all containers into which hazardous substances are transferred with the identity and
concentration of the hazardous substance and a description of the hazards and precautionary
measures. In containers smaller than one quart, descriptions can be limited to signal words such as
"FLAMMABLE, CORROSIVE, TOXIC";

c. Label all original chemical and reagent containers with the date received and opened and with the
opened expiration date if applicable.

d. Label all containers into which reagents and chemicals have been transferred with the date

transferred, the expiration date and the opened expiration date.

e. Unlabeled containers of chemicals should not be opened. Such materials should be disposed of

promptly; they require special handling procedures.

f.  Global Harmonization System symbols should be used when labeling containers.
HCS PICTOGRAMS AND HAZARDS
Health Hazard E Flame Exclamation Mark
« Carcinogen + Flammahbles = Irritant {skin and eye)
« Mutagenicity + Pyrophornics « Skin Sensitizer
+ Reproductive Toxicity + Self-Heating = Acute Toxicity (harmful)
« Hespiratory Sensitizer + Emits Flammable Gas « Marcotic Effects

« Target Organ Toxicity

+ Self-Reactives

= Respiratory Tract lrritant

= Corrosive to Metals

= Aspiration Toxicity + Organic Peroxides » Hazardous to Ozone Layer
[Mon Mandatory)
Gas Cylinder Corrosion Exploding Bomb
= Gases Under Pressure = Skin Corrosion/Bums » Explosives
- Eve Damage - Self-Reactives

« Organic Peroxides

Flame QOver Circle

« Owidizers

&

Environment
{Mon Mandatory)

« Aquatic Toxicity

Skull and Crosshones

« Acute Toxicity (tatal or toxic)

Liquid and Solid Hazardous Chemical Waste
1. Collect hazardous wastes in containers that are compatible with the intended contents and that are in good

condition.

a. Consult SDSs and manufacturers of hazardous waste containers for appropriate containers
2. Label containers with contents, date of initial collection, and with appropriate hazard labels

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 54 of 153




3.
4.

Keep collection containers securely closed except when adding hazardous material.
Placed sharps and broken glassware contaminated with hazardous chemicals in a puncture resistant
container.

HANDLING HAZARDOUS CHEMICALS

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)

1.
2.

Wear eye and face protection when there is probability of injury that can be prevented by such equipment.
Wear gloves and lab coats to protect from chemicals that are readily absorbed by the skin, or from
substances that are corrosive to the skin.

Control Measures

1.
2.

3.

Ensure there is sufficient ventilation
Use shields or barriers, protective clothing and appropriate eyewear, masks and gloves when using
chemicals that may be absorbed in injurious levels by the skin.
a. Inspect shields for cracks or other damage before each use.
Consider permeation and degradation factors of protective clothing and equipment when making selections.

Chemical-Specific Information

1.

2.

If diluting strong acids, add acid to water as water has a higher heat capacity and can absorb the heat
generated by the dilution reaction. Never add water to acid
Never mix formalin with bleach

Housekeeping

a. Keep laboratory free of clutter.

Clean working areas at the beginning and end of each shift.

Clean small spills of chemicals immediately.

Clean larger spills with the Chemical Spill kit immediately

Keep safety showers, eyewashes, fire alarms and fire extinguishers free from any obstruction that
would prevent access and use.

Keep access to emergency exits clear at all times.

g. Keep floor clean and free of slip hazards by reasonable cleaning and immediate clean-up of spills.
h. Dispose of old containers, compromised containers, and chemical wastes promptly

ope g

lmz)

SPILLS AND ACCIDENTS

1.

2.

[98)

9]

Know the information on the Emergency Preparedness Procedures Chart—Code Orange—
Hazmat/Chemical Spills, follow the steps
Know the location of the emergency spill kit, including instructions
Know the location of emergency showers, eyewashes, first aid kits, and emergency exits

a. Showers and emergency eyewashes are routinely inspected by the maintenance department in

accordance with regulatory requirements

Consult the Safety Data sheets found on your PC 2 LAB(U:) 2 SAFETY DATA SHEETS to obtain safety
information

a. Paper copies of SDS are also stored in a binder in the training room
If medical attention is needed, provide the SDS to the caregiver
In case of fire, refer to the information on the Emergency Preparedness Procedures Chart—Code Red Fire
Safety—there is a copy of this chart in every room

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 55 of 153



Chemical Splashes
1. Chemical splashes in the Eyes
a. Immediately wash the eyes using the eyewash for at least 15 minutes.
b. If chemicals have entered the eyes while wearing protective eyewear, remove eyewear as quickly as
possible and wash eyes in eyewash.
c. In cases where the eyewear has not been breached by the chemical, remove the protective eyewear
after head and face have been thoroughly washed.
d. Forcibly hold the eyelids open and tell the injured person to roll his/her eyes while continuously
irrigating.
e. Do not use any substance other than potable water to wash the eyes.
f. Get medical assistance.

2. Chemical Splashes on the Skin

a. Remove contaminated clothing and PPE

b. Flush the injured area with large amounts of potable water--under emergency shower if necessary.
Never use anything other than water or mild soap and water to clean chemicals from exposed skin.

c. Wash for 15 minutes or longer. Wash any part of the skin that may have had chemical contact or
contact with contaminated wash water.

d. Remove contaminated clothing while under the emergency shower

e. Give special attention to areas that may be missed--behind earlobes, underneath arms, the crotch,
between toes, the creases at the sides of the nose, a deep cleft in the chin, etc.

f. Get medical assistance. Provide the appropriate SDSs to medical personnel.

g. Wash yourself after washing victim to prevent injury from diluted chemicals that may have washed
off victim

Medical Consultation and Examinations
1. The hospital provides medical consultation and examination to:
a. Personnel who develop symptoms associated with a hazardous chemical used in the lab
b. Personnel who have had an exposure level above the Permissible Exposure Limit
c. Personnel contaminated or injured by a spill, leak, explosion or other hazardous exposure.
Signs and symptoms of exposure to a suspected chemical can be found in the SDS.
Report accidents and exposures to a supervisor immediately.
Report suspected exposures as soon as possible.
All medical examinations are performed by a licensed physician and provided at no cost to laboratory
employees.
Refer to the information on the Emergency Preparedness Procedures Chart—Code Red Fire
Safety—there is a copy of this chart in every room

il ol

REFERENCES:

e (alifornia Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 8 section 5191, "Occupational Exposure to Hazardous
Chemicals in Laboratories"

e 29 CFR1910.1450
e CLSI Guidelines

CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
None.

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 56 of 153



RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
Will follow NIHD policy.

| Supersedes: Not Set

Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

Page 57 of 153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL POLICY

V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: DI - Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient

Owner: DIRECTOR OF DIAGNOSTIC Department: Diagnostic Imaging
SERVICES

Scope: Diagnostic Imaging

Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Version: 3
04/12/2023 Review Date

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 06/15/2016

PURPOSE: To define how Northern Inyo Hospital (NIH) will communicate mammography results in lay
terms to patients in less than 30 days.

DEFINITION:

1. BI-RADS - Breast Imaging — Reporting and Data System

POLICY:

1. All BI-RADS 1 and 2 (negative and benign) will have a patient lay letter generated and mailed within 96
hours of interpretation of the mammogram.

2. All BI-RADS 0 (needs additional work-up) will have a letter generated and mailed to the patient within
48 hours of interpretation. The Radiology Office staff will call BI-RADS 0 patients within 24 hours of
interpretation to schedule follow up imaging.

3. All BI-RADS 3 (short term follow-up) will have a letter generated and mailed to the patient within 48
hours of interpretation. The Mammographer will discuss the results and recommendations from the
diagnostic examination with the patient at the time of completion of the examination and will document
that discussion in the report, a BIRADS 3 patient notification letter will be provided to patient and
scanned into patient’s chart. (This will need to be added once the BIRADS 3 letter is approved by
forms)

4. All BI-RADS 4 and 5 (suspicious and highly suggestive of malignancy) will have a letter generated and
mailed to the patient within 24 hours of interpretation of the diagnostic mammogram. The
Mammographer will discuss results and recommendations with the patient at the conclusion of the
diagnostic work up. If a biopsy is recommended, the patient will be scheduled for the first available
appointment. The Mammographer will document the discussion with the patient in the report of the
diagnostic exam.

5. All summary letters shall contain a description of the test results in lay terminology. All letters will
contain a description of the next steps for additional examination (annual screening, 6 month follow up,
immediate follow up). Each summary will contain the patient name, date of the procedure and the name
and address of our facility. Summary letters also indicate that the original images will become part of the
patient’s permanent medical record and will be available for continuing care.

DI - Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient

Page 58 of 153



6. For patients with dense breasts, summary letters shall include the statement below.

“Breast tissue can be either dense or not dense. Dense tissue makes it harder to find breast cancer on a
mammogram and also raises the risk of developing breast cancer. Your breast tissue is dense. In some
people with dense tissue, other imaging tests in addition to a mammogram may help find cancers. Talk
to your healthcare provider about breast density, risks for breast cancer, and your individual situation.”

7. For patients with non-dense breasts, summary letters shall include the statement below.

“Breast tissue can be either dense or not dense. Dense tissue makes it harder to find breast cancer on a
mammogram and also raises the risk of developing breast cancer. Your breast tissue is not dense. Talk to
your healthcare provider about breast density, risks for breast cancer, and your individual situation.”

8. The written report of the results of the mammographic examination will include an overall assessment of
the breast density in one of the following categories:

(A) The breasts are almost entirely fatty

(B) There are scattered areas of fibroglandular density

(C) The breasts are heterogeneously dense, which may obscure small masses

(D) The breasts are extremely dense, which lowers the sensitivity of mammography

REFERENCES: ACR Practice Parameters for the performance of Screening and Diagnostic Mammography,
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2023/03/10/2023-04550/mammography-quality-standards-act

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
Mammography reports will be stored in patient’s medical record

CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. DI - Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient
2. Diagnostic Imaging — Mammography Compliance Requirements
3. DI - Screening Mammography

| Supersedes: v.2 DI - Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient

DI - Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient

Page 59 of 153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

V/

CLINICAL POLICY

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DisTRICT

One Team. One Goal. Your Health.
Title: Diagnostic Imaging - Peer Review Policy
Owner: DIRECTOR OF DIAGNOSTIC Department: Diagnostic Imaging
SERVICES
Scope: Diagnostic Imaging
Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Version: 1
07/12/2023 Review Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 02-15-2012

PURPOSE: To define, in accordance with 2005 ACR Guidelines and Technical Standards, the Northern Inyo
Hospital Radiology Peer Review Program

POLICY:

1. The peer review process will include a double reading by two M.D.s - the interpreting radiologist and
the reviewing radiologist.

2. A representative sample equal to 2.5 % of the monthly exams per modality will be randomly selected by

the department manager or designee for review. Additional cases will be reviewed upon request of a
consulting physician or by a radiologist in cases of complications, adverse events, cases with potential
for sentinel events and cases identified by critical indicators.

3. The reviewing radiologist will document the level of agreement with the original interpretation in
accordance with the following 4-point scale
a. 1- Concur with interpretation
b. 2 - Difficult diagnosis, not ordinarily expected to be made
c. 3 - Diagnosis should be made most of the time
d. 4 - Diagnosis should be made almost every time - misinterpretation of findings

4. Subgroups 3 and 4 will be considered significant discrepancies. [Suggested courses of action for
subgroups 3 and 4 are as follows. Other actions can be substituted as medical staff sees fit
a. Subgroup 3 - reviewing radiologist and interpreting radiologist discuss review. Addendum

should be added to original exam report, referred for Peer Review to Radiology Services.

b. Subgroup 4 - reviewing radiologist and interpreting radiologist discuss review, referring

physician should be notified, and an addendum should be added to original exam report referred
for Peer Review to Radiology Services.

5. Summary statistics and comparison data will be generated for each modality.

6. Summary statistics contain confidential Medical Staff information and will be distributed to the
Radiology Services Committee and the Medical Staff Office for OPPE (On-going Professional Practice
Evaluation) and FPPE (Focused Professional Practice Evaluation)

7. External peer review may be utilized if there are concerns about conflict of interests or the possession of
the appropriate level of experience or skill by the internal reviewers.

REFERENCES: ACR Recommended Best Practices

Diagnostic Imaging - Peer Review Policy

Page 60 of 153



RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION: Length of practitioners Career +6 years

CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
e Diagnostic Imaging — Standards of Care

| Supersedes: Not Set

Diagnostic Imaging - Peer Review Policy

Page 61 of 153



V/

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
PLAN

NorTHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health,

Title: Infection Prevention Plan*

Owner: Manager Employee Health & Department: Infection Prevention
Infection Control

Scope: District Wide

Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Version: 9
06/23/2023 Review Date

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors \ Original Approval Date: 02/13/1999

PURPOSE:

1.

The goal of Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) is to establish a comprehensive Infection
Prevention and Control Program. The program is to ensure that the organization has a functioning
coordinated process in place to minimize the risks of endemic and epidemic Healthcare Associated
Infections (HAI’s) in patients, visitors, and healthcare workers and to optimize use of resources through
a strong preventive program while utilizing evidenced base practices and principles. The continuously
developing Infection Control Program is part of NIHD ongoing commitment to provide high quality
healthcare. Through the Infection Control Program, NIHD systematically involves each team member in
the process of maintaining a safe environment for our patients, visitors, team members, and other
healthcare providers.

The Infection Control (IC) Program incorporates the following on an ongoing basis:

Surveillance, prevention and control of infection throughout the organization.

Develop alternative techniques to address the real and potential exposure.

Select and implement the best techniques to minimize adverse outcomes.

Evaluate and monitor the results and revise techniques as needed.

Administrative support to ensure adherence to the program standards.

e Northern Inyo Healthcare District NIHD ensures that all team members are effectively trained
and educated on infection control issues and procedures through orientation and an ongoing
continuing education program.

The infection control process and its supporting mechanisms are based on current scientific knowledge,
acceptable practice guidelines, applicable laws and regulations, sound epidemiologic principles and
research on HATI’s It takes into consideration the following factors: the facility’s geographic location,
patient volume, patient population served, the hospital’s clinical focus and number of team members.

POLICY:

The Infection Prevention and Control Program at NIHD, which allows for a systematic coordinated and
continuous approach, is guided and implemented by:

1.

Adherence to the established IC Program standards is continuously monitored through surveillance.
Problems identified through surveillance are analyzed, evaluated, and monitored for resolution.
Surveillance is used to identify opportunities to improve care while playing an integral role in
continuous quality improvement effort.

OSHA regulations and pertinent federal, state, and local regulation pertaining to infection prevention
which are implemented and followed.

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 62 of 153



3. Education upon hire and again annually with particular emphasis on proper use of personal protective
equipment (PPE) for healthcare workers at risk of accidental exposure to blood borne pathogens. In
addition, emphasis is placed on educating staff regarding airborne diseases and its mode of transmission.

4. Surveillance will include HAI’s among patient and personnel when possible. Targeted studies will be
conducted on infection that are high risk, high volume. In addition, selected HAI’s and microbiology
reports will be monitored.

5. Monitoring and evaluation of key performance aspects of infection control surveillance and management
which are:

e Device related infections.

Multi-Drug Resistant Organisms.

TB: Suspected, confirmed, or conversion in patients and staff

Occupational Exposure to Bloodborne Pathogens

Other Communicable diseases

Employee Health trends

Surgical Site Infections
e Construction and renovation activities

Continuous collection and/or screening of data to identify potential infectious outbreaks.

7. Participating in an organizational proactive education program in an effort to reduce and control the
spread of infection.

o

8. Facilitating a multidisciplinary approach to the prevention and control of infections.

9. Utilizing epidemiologic principles and nosocomial infection research form recognized authoritative
agencies.

10. Collaborating with NIHD organization policies and procedures affecting the prevention and control of
infections.

11. Interacting with and reporting governmental agencies

12. The Infection Control Program is connected with the Inyo County Health Department to ensure
appropriate follow-up of infection is implemented within the communities and rural areas served by
Northern Inyo Healthcare District.

13. The Infection Prevention Plan and goals will be reviewed annually; evaluation of pillars will be
completed quarterly. The review and evaluation will be presented at the Nurse Executive Committee and
the Infection Prevention Committee.

DEFINTIONS:

1. Hospital- Acquired Infections (HAI’s): Infection people get while they’re receiving healthcare for
another condition. HAI’s can happen in any healthcare facility.

2. Outbreak- An increase in the occurrence of cases of infection or disease over what is expected in a
defined setting or group in a specified time; synonym of epidemic but used more often when limiting the
geographic area.

PROCEDURE:

1. When evaluation identifies an area of concern, a specific problem, or an opportunity for improvement, a
corrective action plan will be formulated. The corrective action plan is collaborative in nature.

2. When problems or opportunities for improvement are identified; actions taken/recommended will be
documented in the appropriate committee meeting minutes.

3. If immediate action is necessary, the Infection Preventionist, Infection Control. Committee, or designee
has the authority to institute any surveillance, prevention and control measures if there is reason to

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 63 of 153



believe that any patient or personnel is at risk. The actions will be reported to the appropriate committee,
and leadership.

4. The Infection Control Committee/Infection Preventionist has the responsibility for infection prevention
and control activities throughout the organization. This committee is presided by a physician having
knowledge of infection control and prevention practices and performance improvement methodologies.
The physician guides the committee and decisions for improvement of care through the prevention and
control if infections.

5. The responsibility and direct accountability for the surveillance, data gathering, aggregation and analysis
is assigned to the Infection Prevention team.

6. Hospital personnel and medical staff members share accountability in reporting of isolation cases
suspected or confirmed HAI’s. There is collaboration among departments as well as the Infection
Control Nurse to identify any HAI trends or pattern that may occur, or opportunities to improve outcome
in the reduction and control of infections.

7. The Infection Prevention team will:

e Review all positive cultures to determine if HAI’s or reportable disease.

e Review and do an evaluation of confirmed infectious cases to assure correct implementation of
PPE as appropriate. Periodic observation of clinical department at assure maintenance or
standard precautions on all patients.

e Complete Infection Prevention and Control inspections.

e Collaboratively review of hazardous waste management and disposal with the maintenance
department.

e Provide a Chairperson for the sharps committee.

e Participate in product evaluation.

e Report to governmental and local agencies.

e Will complete annual Infection Control Risk Assessments and update as needed

e Will complete Infection Control Risk Assessment (ICRA) related to construction or renovation.

8. Identify and track key performance measure related to process and outcome in an effort to continuously
improve the management of HAI’s throughout the organization.

9. Work collaborative with District Education to provide education related to infection prevention and
control practices to ensure a safe environment for patients and healthcare personnel.

10. The Infection Preventionist work closely with the Quality Council to identify potential quality problems
throughout the organization.

11. Work closely with Safety team of possible infectious issues that are potentially hazardous to patients and
staff.

12. Monitoring the results of the Infection Prevention (IP) Program allows the hospital to determine if the
techniques already in effect are working well, or if changed conditions require new or revised
techniques. The process of monitoring provides control and coordination of the IP program and also
causes the infection control process to renew itself through new information. Monitoring is achieved
through:

Committee interaction

Daily job functions of the Infection Prevention team

Comparisons of current statistical information and historical data and bench marking

Policy and procedure reviews; future surveys and inspections, internal and external.

Action plans

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 64 of 153



METHODOLGY:

1. Case findings and identification of demographically important HAI’s provide surveillance data.
Nosocomial infection data, using, as appropriate, rates stratified by infection risk or focused infection
studies, are collected on an ongoing basis.

2. In addition to the use of planned surveillance methods, special studies may be conducted that include:

e The investigation of clusters of infections above expected levels.

e The investigation of single cases of unusual or epidemiologically significant HAI’s

e A focus on procedures with significant potential for HAI’s, particularly when the procedure is
new or substantially changed.

e The comparison of a group of infected patients with an uninfected control group to detect
statistically significant risk factors for which control measures can be developed.

3. The Infection Control Manager or designee will conduct outbreak investigations whenever appropriate
by following any or all of the below steps if indicated:

e Verify the diagnosis and confirm possible outbreak
e Implement immediate control measures if needed
e Define the outbreak; refine as the outbreak investigation progresses
e Conduct case findings by making a line listing that may contain:
1. Name and Medical Record Number
ii. Age, sex, diagnosis
ii1.  Unit or location
iv. Date of Admission
v. Date of Symptom Onset
vi. Procedures
vil. Symptoms
viii. Positive Cultures and pertinent labs
e Form Outbreak Control Team, if preliminary assessment suggests actual outbreak. The team may
include all or some of the following:
i.  Infection Preventionist
ii.  Infection Control Medical Staff Chairperson
iii. Microbiologist
iv. Lab Manager
v. Administrator on call
vi. Inyo County Health Officer
vii.  Strategic Communications Specialist

viil.  Administrative Assistant

Hospital Incident Command Center will be followed as necessary.

Evaluate control case (ex: any new cases)

Communicate findings with leadership.

Keep record of all data and communication.

Contact CDC or other agencies for advice or assistance if deemed appropriate or necessary.

4. Interventions to reduce infections risks other than those directly related to prevention of transmission
may include the following strategies:

e The Surveillance function itself.

e Review positive microbiology/Lab results
Institution of prevention and control measure as indicated (e.g. isolation, improved hand
hygiene, active surveillance of cultures, and environmental cleaning)

Perform Surveillance for healthcare —associated infection by:

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 65 of 153



i. Follow CDC National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN) definitions
1. Prospective surveillance: Monitor patients during hospitalization and post discharge
iii. Retrospective surveillance: Identify infections via chart reviews
e Monitored incidence of healthcare-associated. device-related or procedure-related infections:
1. Central catheter-associated bloodstream infections
ii. Ventilator -associated events
iii.  Surgical site infections
iv. Catheter-associated urinary tract infections
v. MDRO infections
e Conduct Periodic tracer activity
e  Ensure compliance with The Joint Commission Critical Access Hospital requirements and the
California Department of Public Health regulations.
5. The assessment of reasons for infection rates not being reduced by surveillance alone and interventions
undertaken to address problems in the following areas:
e Knowledge — innovative educational approaches beyond the routine or standard in services.
e Behavior — activities by managers to change behavior.
e Systems — such as staffing, sink number and placement, control of over-crowding, lack of proper
equipment and supplies.

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:

1. Policies and procedures are based on recognized guidelines and applicable law and regulations. Policies
and procedures address prevention and control mechanisms used in all patient care and service areas to
prevent the transmission of infection among patients, team members, medical staff, contractors,
volunteers and visitors; and also, address specific environmental issues.

2. Policies and procedures address the following:

e Measures that is scientifically valid, applicable in all seeing, and practical to implement.

e The relationship between team member activities and the infection prevention and control
program.

e Various methods used to reduce the risk of transmission of infection between or among team
members and patients.

e Appropriate patient care practices, sterilization, disinfection and antisepsis, and pertinent
environmental controls.

¢ Educational and consultative roles of the Infection Preventionist.

3. Infection control policies and procedures will be reviewed/revised annually or every three years as
needed by the Infection Preventionist Manager with approval of the Clinical Consistency Oversight
Committee (CCOC) and Infection Control Committee and prior to submission to the Medical Executive
Committee.

LEADERSHIP AND RESPONSIBILITY:

1. Board of Directors has the final authority and oversight of the Infection Control Program. The Board
monitors and supports organizational efforts to continuously improve the quality of patient care services
and customer satisfaction. The Board ensures the necessary resources and education for the hospital to
achieve these goals. The Board delegates the responsibility of maintenance of the Infection Control
Program to the Medical Executive Committee and Chief Executive Officer.

2. Medical Executive Committee is responsible for overseeing the Infection Control Program and delegates
the development and monitoring of infection surveillance, prevention and control processes to the
Infection Control Committee. The Medical Executive Committee receives information related to actions

5
Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 66 of 153



taken to resolve issues of infection control and, if necessary, acts upon any issues related to infection
control. The Medical Executive Committee grants the Infection Preventionist Manager authority, under
the direction of the Infection Control Committee Chair or his/her designee, to institute surveillance,
prevention and control measures of studies, when there is reason to believe that any patient or team
member may be in danger. In the absence of the Infection Preventionist Manager, nursing staff trained
in Infection Prevention practices assumes the Infection Control responsibilities and are able to take
appropriate actions as outlined in Infection Control Policies.

3. Chief Executive Officer serves as a liaison between the Board of Directors and the Medical Executive
Committee. He/she ensures that all hospital departments, programs, and disciplines participate in and
provide support for the Infection Control Program.

4. NIHD administration is responsible for supporting the Infection Preventionist and the Infection Control
Committee, by supporting efforts to prevent and control the spread of infection.

5. Infection Control Medical Staff Chairperson acts as a resource for the Infection Control Manager. This
person will have training and/or experience in infection control as stated in Senate Bill 158 (Attachment
1) and will review the Infection Control Program, including rates, make recommendations as needed and
have input into policies and procedures.

6. Infection Preventionist assumes the responsibility of managing and carrying out the infection
surveillance, prevention and control functions within NIHD. This person has training in infection
surveillance, prevention and control as well as knowledge and job experience in the areas of
epidemiological principles and infectious disease, sterilization, sanitation and disinfection practices.
This individual also is knowledgeable in adult education principles and patient care practice. This
person maintains records and logs of incidents related to infections and communicable disease. The
Infection Preventionist Manager and/or designee reviews culture and sensitivity testing, reviews
antibiotic usage reports, reports suspected infections, conducts department specific periodic rounding;
infection control annual risk assessment and implements isolation procedures in accordance with
hospital policy, maintain policies and procedures that are specific to patient care activities and are based
on recognized guidelines and applicable laws and regulations. The Infection Preventionist Manager has
input into staff education to ensure all team members are competent to participate in infection
monitoring, prevention and control activities. The Infection Preventionist Manager refers cases for
physician review and communicates pertinent clinical infection control information to the Infection
Control Committee.

7. Clinical staff is responsible for being familiar with infection prevention and control policies and
procedures.

8. Quality Council is responsible for review and assistance in performance activities related to infection
prevention and control.

REPORTING AND COMMUNICATION:

1. Information about infections is reported both internally and to public health agencies, providing clinical
practitioners with valid epidemiological measures of the risk of infection in their patients. This will
allow them to take action to reduce those risks and decrease infection rates.

9. When the hospital becomes aware that it received a patient from another organization who has an
infection requiring action and the infection was not communicated by the referring organization, the
Infection Preventionist Manager will inform the referring organization. Upon discharge, the case
manager and/or nurse caring for the patient will inform the accepting facility of any infections the
patient may have, site treatment and any special precautions. If the patient is transferred to another
facility and there are pending laboratory results the transfer form will be completed indicating “Pending
Lab Culture and the ordering physician will be notified via telephone and fax with laboratory results. If

6
Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 67 of 153



the ordering physician is no longer caring for the patient, the ordering physician will inform the
laboratory technician of the physician or facility caring for the patient.

10.  Donor/Tissue postoperative infections/complications identified through surveillance activities that are
suspected of being directly related to the use of the tissue will be investigated promptly. Notification of
the post-transplant infection or adverse event will be reported to the tissue supplier by the Infection
Preventionist Managers as soon as the hospital becomes aware of the event.

11.  Infection Control committee meetings will be conducted not less than quarterly and more often as
needed. Minutes will be recorded by the Medical Staff Office.

12.  Findings, quality assessment activities, performance improvement recommendations, actions and
follow-up evaluations will be forwarded to Infection Control Committee members, other medical staff
committees as appropriate, Medical Executive Committee and the Board of Directors.

13.  Review of infections-and surveillance data within the hospital will be completed quarterly through
Infection Prevention Pillars, annual goals, Infection Committee, National Health Safety Network
(NHSN) Database.

INFECTION CONTROL AND PREVENTION RESOURCES:

There are multiple resources for information about infection prevention and control. Although not an
exhaustive list, several professional associations and governmental websites are listed below. In addition, local
and health state departments offer a wealth of information.

e Center for Disease Control and Prevention

www.cde.gov
e HICPAC Healthcare Infection Control Practices Advisory Committee

https://www.cdc.gov/faca/committees/hicpac.html?CDC_AA refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.c
dc.gov%2Fmaso%2Ffacm%2FfacmHICPAC.html

e U.S. Department of Labor — Occupational Safety & Health Administration
www.osha.gov

e U.S. Food and Drug Administration

www.fda.gov
e American Public Health Association

www.apha.org
e American Society for Healthcare Engineering

www.ashe.org
e Association for Professionals in Infection Control, Inc.

WWWw.apic.org
e The Society for Healthcare Epidemiology of America, Inc.
www.shea-online.org
e The Infectious Disease Society of America
www.idsociety.org
e International Sharps Injury Prevention Society (ISIPS)
http://www.isips.org/
e  World Health Organization (WHO)
http://www.who.int/en/
e State of California Department of Industrial Relations (Cal/OSHA)
https://www.dir.ca.gov/covid/

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 68 of 153



REFERENCES:

1. All Facilities Letter 14-36 California Department of Public Health, 12/19/2014, Regarding SB 1311:
Antimicrobial Stewardship Programs.

2. APIC Text of Infection Control and Epidemiology. (April 7, 2020). Outbreak Investigations. Retrieved
from https://text.apic.org/toc/epidemiology-surveillance-performance-and-patient-safety-
measures/outbreak-investigations?token=2AE989223FAE2142

3. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2021) Infection Control in Health Care Facilities.
Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/flu/professionals/infectioncontrol/

4. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2021). Outbreak Investigations in Healthcare Settings.
Retrieved from https://www.cdc.gov/hai/outbreaks/index.html

5. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2016). Infection Prevention and Control Assessment Tool
for Acute Care Hospitals. Retrieved from https:// www.cdc.gov/infectioncontrol/pdf/icar/hospital.pdf

6. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. (2012) (Site accessed April 29, 2021). Principles of
Epidemiology in Public Health Practice, Third Editions an Introduction to applied epidemiology and
biostatistics Lesson 6: Investigating an outbreak. Retrieved from
https://www.cdc.gov/ophss/csels/dsepd/ss1978/lesson6/section2.html

7. Comprehensive Accreditation Manual for Critical Access Hospital (2021) Infection Prevention and
Control (IC) IC.01.01.01, IC.01.04.01, IC.01.05.01., 1C.02.01.01, IC.02.05.01, IC.03.01.01,

8. Association for Professionals in Infection Control and Epidemiology (APIC). (Site accessed 4-29-21)
Content of an Infection Prevention and Control Plan. Retrieved from
https://apic.org/Resource /TinyMceFileManager/Education/ASC _Intensive/Resources Page/Content of
_an_Infection Prevention and Control Plan.pdf

CROSS REFERENCE P&P:

1. NIH Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules Amendment, 01/20/2021 Infection Control Committee Section
Article XI Section 11.7 pg. 75-76

2. Infection Control: Northern Inyo Healthcare District Surge Plan

3. Scope of Service —Infection Prevention

4. Scope of Service Employee Health

| Supersedes: v.8 Infection Prevention Plan*

Infection Prevention Plan*

Page 69 of 153



V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

Title: Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR | Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 08/02/2023 | Last Review Date: 09/16/2021 | Version: 4

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019

PURPOSE:
This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse

Midwife (CNM) is designed to cover the management of drugs and devices for patients of all ages

POLICY:
1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.
2. Circumstances:
a. Patient population: neonates, pediatrics, adults and geriatrics — as appropriate for specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations.
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

3. The NP or CNM may initiate, alter, discontinue, and renew medication included on, but not limited to
the formulary referenced in Appendix A. Schedule I medications are excluded. NPs and CNMs will be
required to have a current “Furnishing Number” which has been obtained from the Board of Registered
Nursing. All NP & CNM providers will be required to have a DEA certificate and will prescribe within
the constraints of this certification.

PROCEDURE:
1. Database — Nursing Practice

a. Subjective data information will include but is not limited to: Relevant health history to warrant
the use of the drug or device, no allergic history specific to the drug or device, and no personal
and/or family history which is an absolute contraindication to use the drug or device.

b. Objective data information will include but is not limited to: Physical examination appropriate
to warrant the use of the drug or device and laboratory tests or procedures to
indicate/contraindicate use of drug or device if necessary.

c. Assessment: Subjective and objective information consistent for the use of the drug or device.
No absolute contraindications of the use of the drug or device.

2. Treatment — Common Nursing Functions

a. Medications/devices furnished by the NP or CNM may be either over-the-counter or
medications/devices requiring a prescription.

b. Medications/devices may be furnished directly to the patient, or the patient’s direct care giver, by
the NP or CNM (section 2725.1 of the NPA).

Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 70 of 153



c. Medications may be furnished by transmittal. The NP or CNM may write and sign “transmittal
orders” of any prescription personally stated or written by the physician. This is in accordance
with the Pharmacy Law, Business and Professions Code, Section 34021

d. Office samples may be dispensed per NIHD policy.
e. The drug or device will be appropriate to the condition being treated:
i. Dosage will be in the effective range per formulary references
ii. Not to exceed upper limit dosage per formulary references.
iii. Indications or uses as specified by the formulary references.

iv. No absolute contraindications of the use of the drug or device.

f. Medication history has been obtained including other medications being taken, medication
allergies, and prior medications used for current condition.
g. All medications/devices furnished shall be documented in the patient’s medical record. The
effectiveness of the medication/device shall be documented in the patient’s medical record.
3. Patient Education
a. Provide the patient with information and counseling in regard to the drug or device. Caution the
patient regarding potential side effects or complications with chosen drug or device. Document
the education process in the medical record.
4. Physician consultation is to be obtained under the following circumstances:

a. Non-responsiveness to appropriate therapy and/or unusual or unexpected side effects and as
indicated in general policy statement.

b. Emergent conditions requiring prompt medical intervention after the initial stabilizing care has

been started.

Acute decompensation of patient situation.

Problem which is not resolving as anticipated.

History, physical, or lab finding inconsistent with the clinical picture.

Upon request of patient, nurse, or supervising physician.

o oao

5. Documentation
a. A current drug list will be maintained in the patient’s record. All medications furnished, changes
in medications, and renewals will be documented on this list.
b. The name and furnishing number of the NP or CNM is written on the transmittal order.

REFERENCES:
1. UpToDate-evidence-based, Physician-authorized clinical decision support resource
2. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years.

Supersedes: v.3 Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the
Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 71 of 153



APPENDIX A:
FORMULARY SPECIFICATIONS for
Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner/Physician Assistant

STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE/PROTOCOL

Formulary:  Lexicomp drug database as accessed through UpToDate online reference, current as published
and updated online.

Deletions: None.

Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 72 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee =~ Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 73 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
4.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9.

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

Standardized Procedure - Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 74 of 153



V/

NorrHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DisTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

Title: Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR | Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 09/07/2023 | Last Review Date: 09/16/2021 | Version: 4

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019

PURPOSE:

This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse
Midwife (CNM) is designed to establish guidelines for the ordering of laboratory and diagnostic tests.

POLICY:

1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.
2. Laboratory and diagnostic tests may be ordered by the NP or CNM under the following conditions:
a. As an appropriate adjunct to the determination of diagnosis.
b. When necessary, to implement, monitor or adjust treatment.
3. Circumstances:
a. Patient population: neonatal, pediatric, adult and geriatric patients — as appropriate for
specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations.
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

PROCEDURE:

1. Conditions
a. The following diagnostic tests can be initiated by the NP or CNM without prior consultation with
M.D.:
1. Any blood work
ii. Urine: any urine test
tii.  Cultures: any culture
iv. Radiologic/Sonographic: any radiologic/sonographic exam including CT scans and MRI
examinations
v. Audiometric testing/speech evaluation
vi. Pregnancy Tests
vii. Cardiac Testing
b. All other diagnostic tests will be ordered by the NP or CNM in consultation with the physician,
including:
1. When diagnostic test of choice is in doubt.

1
Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 75 of 153



REFERENCES:
1. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years

Supersedes: v.3 Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the
Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

2
Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 76 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

3
Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 77 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3,

NAME DATE
4,

NAME DATE
5,

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9,

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

4
Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 78 of 153



V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

Title: Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute Illness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner
or Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR | Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 08/02/2023 | Last Review Date: 09/16/2021 | Version: 4

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 06/20/2018

PURPOSE:

This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse
Midwife (CNM) is designed to establish guidelines that will allow the NP or CNM to medically manage acute
illness and conditions.

POLICY:

1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.
2. This standardized procedure covers the medical management of acute illness, allergies, symptomatic
complaints, minor trauma and emergencies in children and adults in the ambulatory care setting.
3. Circumstances:
a. Patient population: neonates, pediatrics, adults and geriatrics — as appropriate for specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations.
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

PROCEDURE:

1. Data Base
a. Subjective:
1. Historical information relevant to the acute illness.
ii. Historical information regarding concurrent problems.
1ii.  Historical information regarding relevant past medical problems.
iv. Patient’s/family’s efforts to treat the illness/condition.
v. History of allergic/adverse reactions to medications.
vi. Status of patient’s functional and instrumental abilities.
b. Objective:
i. Perform physical exam pertinent to presenting symptoms.
i1. Evaluate severity of complaint (i.e., vital sign changes, level of consciousness, unusual or
unexpected symptoms).
1ii.  Order laboratory testing and diagnostic procedure as indicated.
c. Assessment
1. Diagnosis consistent with subjective and objective findings.
ii. Record data on appropriate areas on patient’s chart.

Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute lliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 79 of 153



d. Plan

ii.
1il.

1v.

V1.

Vil.

REFERENCES:

Medications as indicated (see Furnishing of Medications/Devices Standardized

Procedure).

Order further diagnostic testing as indicated.
Patient education appropriate to acute illness and any procedures, diagnostic testing, or
medications ordered.
Order/perform therapeutic procedures as appropriate.
Order medical supplies and necessary equipment for treatment.
Consult with and/or refer to supervising M.D. for:
1. Presence of unexpected or ambiguous historical, physical or diagnostic findings.

a.

me e o

g.

Signs of sepsis/toxic patient.

Alteration in level of consciousness (i.e., seizure, etc.).

Emergency situations which may be life threatening.

Any patient whose condition warrants hospitalization.

Unresolving problems.

Any needs of the NP or CNM requiring information/confirmation of
management plans.

Upon request of patient/family.

Refer as indicated to other services/specialties.
viii. Follow-up as indicated.

1. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years.

Supersedes: v.3 Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute Illness Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute lliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 80 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute lliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 81 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3,

NAME DATE
4,

NAME DATE
5,

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9,

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute lliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 82 of 153



V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

Title: Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Illness Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR | Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 12/14/2021 | Last Review Date: 10/21/2021 | Version: 3
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019

PURPOSE:

This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse
Midwife (CNM) is designed to establish guidelines that will allow the NP or CNM to manage chronic illness.

POLICY:

1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.
2. This standardized procedure covers the management of chronic illness in children and adults in the
ambulatory setting.
3. Circumstances:
a. Patient population: neonates, pediatrics, adults and geriatrics — as appropriate for specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

PROCEDURE:

1. Data Base
a. Subjective:
1. Pertinent history including symptoms related to the chronic illness.
ii. Present state of chronic illness (worse, better, stable).
1ii.  Historical information regarding relevant past medical problems.
iv. Effects of chronic illness on activities of daily living, psychological, physical and
financial status.
v. Patient’s attitude and behaviors regarding the chronic illness.
vi. Patient’s physical, social, financial support systems.
vii. Documentation of complete history updated minimally on an annual basis.
b. Objective:
i. Complete pediatric WCC or adult HME annually.
ii. Physical assessment pertinent to chronic illness.
iii. Laboratory/diagnostic testing as indicated.
c. Assessment
1. Qualification/quantification of chronic illness status.
i1. Record appropriately on patient chart.
d. Plan

Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Iliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 83 of 153



1. Medications as indicated (see Furnishing of Medications/Devices Standardized
Procedure).
ii. Laboratory/diagnostic testing as indicated.
iii. Patient education appropriate to chronic illness and any procedures, diagnostic testing, or
medications ordered.
iv. Order/perform therapeutic procedures as appropriate.
v. Order medical supplies and necessary equipment for treatment.
vi. Consult with and/or refer to supervising M.D. or patient’s specialist for:
1. Acute decompensation of chronic stable illness.
2. Ambiguous diagnostic, physical or historical findings.
3. Any needs of the NP and CNM requiring information/confirmation of
management plans.
4. Upon request of patient/family
vii. Refer as indicated to other services/specialties.
viii. Follow-up as indicated.

REFERENCES:
1. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years.

Supersedes: v.2 Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Illness Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Iliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 84 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee =~ Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Iliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 85 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3.
NAME DATE
4.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9.

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Iliness Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 86 of 153



V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

Title: Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR | Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 12/14/2021 | Last Review Date: 10/21/2021 | Version: 3
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors ‘ Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019

PURPOSE:

This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse
Midwife (CNM) is designed to establish guidelines that will allow the NP or CNM to manage minor trauma.

POLICY:

1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.
2. This standardized procedure is designed to establish guidelines that will allow NP and CNM to manage
ambulatory clients presenting with minor traumatic injuries.
3. Circumstances:
a. Patient population: neonates, pediatrics, adults and geriatrics — as appropriate for specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

PROCEDURE:

1. Data Base
a. Subjective:
1. Obtain pertinent history related to the injury or traumatic event.
ii. Collect appropriate information, including past medical history, review of systems,
allergies, immunizations, and medications.

b. Objective:
1. Perform limited physical examinations pertinent to the injury, including any possible

involved organ system.
ii. Obtain appropriate evaluative studies, including but not limited to, lab work and x-rays

(see Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Standardized Procedure).

c. Assessment
i. Formulate a working diagnosis consistent with date base collected.

d. Plan
i. Ifindicated, develop or initiate a therapeutic regimen including, but not limited to, the

following:
1. Physician consultation prior to management as per policy statement or in the

following cases:
a. Any injury threatening to life or limb.

Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 87 of 153



o

Any laceration requiring complicated suture closure (see Minor Surgical
Procedures — Standardized Procedure).
c. Any fracture or injury requiring immobilization by full casting.
d. Complicated or extensive burns.
e. Injury that may involve litigation or compensation.
f. Any case where surgical intervention may be needed.
Further diagnostic tests.
Skin/wound care appropriate to injury.
Apply or furnish appropriate medications and/or immunizations.
Refer to appropriate support services which may include Rehabilitative services.
Develop appropriate follow-up care plan to maximize healing and rehabilitation.
a. Provide appropriate health education materials including, but not limited
to, cast care and precautions, head trauma, suture care, and use of oral or
topical medications.
b. Schedule follow-up appointments as appropriate.
7. Update problem list.

SARNANE el N

REFERENCES:
1. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years.

Supersedes: v.2 Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 88 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee =~ Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 89 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
4.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9.

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 90 of 153



V/

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
CLINICAL STANDARDIZED PROCEDURE

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or
Certified Nurse Midwife

Owner: MEDICAL STAFF DIRECTOR

| Department: Medical Staff

Scope: Nurse Practitioner, Certified Nurse Midwife

Date Last Modified: 12/14/2021 | Last Review Date: 09/16/2021

| Version: 4

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 02/20/2019

PURPOSE:

This standardized procedure developed for the use by the Nurse Practitioner (NP) and the Certified Nurse
Midwife (CNM) is designed to establish guidelines that will allow the NP or CNM to manage minor surgical

procedures.

POLICY:

1. This standardized procedure and those authorized to work through this standardized procedure will meet
all guidelines as outlined in the General Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife.

2. This standardized procedure is designed to establish guidelines that will allow NP and CNM to perform
minor surgical procedures incidental to the provision of routine primary care to ambulatory patients
presenting to the listed settings.

3. Circumstances:

a. Patient population: neonates, pediatrics, adults and geriatrics — as appropriate for specialty.
b. Settings: Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) and affiliated locations
c. Supervision: Physicians indicated in the supervisory agreements for the NP or CNM.

PROCEDURE:

1. Conditions

a. After appropriate training and experience (which includes a minimum of 5 proctored procedures
each by a supervising physician), minor surgical procedures that can be performed by the NP or
CNM without direct physician supervision include:

1.
1i.
1ii.
1v.
V.
Vi.
Vil.
Viil.
1X.
X.
X1.
Xil.

Pessary placement

Electrocautery of external, non-malignant lesions, e.g. warts
Epidermal cyst removal

Incision and drainage of abscess (excluding peri-rectal abscesses)
Suture laceration without nerve or tendon involvement
Mole removal (non-facial)

Punch or shave biopsy

Toe nail removal

Cryotherapy

IUD insertion and removal

Excision of simple lesions

Simple foreign body removal

Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 91 of 153



Xlil.
X1v.
XV.
XVL.
XVIl.

2. Data Base

Endometrial biopsy
Arthrocentesis/Steroid joint injection
Excision of hemorrhoid thrombus
Nexplanon insertion/removal
Circumcision of newborn

a. Subjective

1.

ii.

Obtain pertinent history including involved organ system, injury, trauma, dermatology
problems, etc.

Obtain information regarding review of system, risk taking behaviors, prior surgery,
allergies, and immunizations.

b. Objective

1.
ii.

Perform physical examination pertinent to assessment of the problem.
Collect appropriate diagnostic/radiological studies.

c. Assessment

1.

d. Plan

1.
ii.

1ii.
1v.
V.
Vi.
Vil.
Viil.

REFERENCES:

Formulate diagnosis consistent with the above data base.

Develop therapeutic regimen

Provide informed consent. Utilize universal protocol “Time Out” prior to all invasive
procedures.

Perform appropriate procedure utilizing standard aseptic technique.

Obtain additional diagnostic studies as indicated.

Physician consultation/assistance in performing the procedure as per policy statement or
above conditions.

Patient education and self-care techniques.

Development of appropriate follow-up care plan.

Update problem list.

1. (2021) Title 16, California Code of Regulations, Section 1474. Standardized Procedure Guidelines.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
1. Life of policy, plus 6 years.

Supersedes: v.3 Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse
Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 92 of 153



APPROVALS

Chairman, Interdisciplinary Practice Committee =~ Date

Administrator Date
Chief of Staff Date
President, Board of Directors Date

Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 93 of 153



ATTACHMENT 1 - LIST OF AUTHORIZED NP’s or CNM’s

NAME DATE
2.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
4.

NAME DATE
3.

NAME DATE
6.

NAME DATE
7.

NAME DATE
8.

NAME DATE
9.

NAME DATE
10.

NAME DATE

Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy for the Nurse Practitioner or Certified Nurse Midwife

Page 94 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

V/

NorTHERN INvO HEALTHCARE DiSTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health

Cardiovascular Disease - Telemedicine
Delineation of Privileges

Applicant's Name: ,
Instructions:
1. Click the Request checkbox at the top of a group to request all privileges in that group.

2. Uncheck any privileges you do not want to request in that group.
3. Sign form electronically and submit with any required documentation.

NIHD

Required Qualifications

Education/Training Completion of an ACGME or AOA accredited Residency training program in Internal Medicine.

AND Completion of an ACGME accredited fellowship training program in Cardiovascular
Disease or an AOA accredited fellowship training program in Cardiology.

Certification Current certification or active participation in the examination process leading to certification
in Internal Medicine by the American Board of Internal Medicine or AOA equivalent.

AND Current certification or active participation in the examination process leading to
certification in Cardiovascular Disease by the American Board of Internal Medicine or AOA
equivalent.

Clinical Experience Applicant must provide documentation of provision of cardiovascular disease services
(Initial) representative of the scope and complexity of the privileges requested during the previous 24
months. (waived for applicants who completed training during the previous year).

Clinical Experience Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services representative of the
(Reappointment) scope and complexity of privileges requested during the previous 24 months.

Additional
Qualifications for
Device Related
Privileges

Applicant must have completed manufacturer designated training including human subjects
experience when device related privileges are requested OR provide documentation of
training and current clinical competence if training occurred during fellowship.

Core Privileges in Cardiovascular Disease

Description: Evaluation, diagnosis, consultation and treatment of patients with acute and chronic cardiovascular

conditions.

X Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
2 Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.
5

7]

-~

E- Currently Granted privileges

Evaluate, diagnose, provide consultation and medically manage and treat patients with cardiovascular
|:| complaints. Privileges include medical management of general medical conditions which are encountered in
the course of caring for the cardiovascular patient.

Published: 4/13/2022 11:20:08 AM Cardiovascular Disease - Telemedicine

Page 1 of 2

Page 95 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

FPPE (Department Chief to select) |

|:| |5 retrospective chart reviews reflective of the scope and complexity of privileges granted

Telemedicine/Telehealth Privileges

Description: Practitioners should request this privilege when all of the privileges they are granted are to be
exercised via an electronic link, such as with a proxy credentialing agreement in which the practitioner is at the
Distant Site. This restriction for remote clinical services applies to any privileges granted on this privilege form.

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

3sonbay

I:I- Currently Granted privileges

|:| Privileges granted to be provided remotely via an electronic telemedicine link only.

Acknowledgment of Applicant

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience, and demonstrated
competency I believe that I am competent to perform and that I wish to exercise at Northern Inyo Healthcare District and I
understand that:

A. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by applicable Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules
applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation.

B. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are
governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

Practitioner's Signature NIHD

Department Chief Recommendation - Privileges

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and my recommendation is based
upon the review of supporting documentation and/or my personal knowledge regarding the applicant's performance
of the privileges requested:

Privilege |Condition/Modification/DeIetion/Epra nation

Published: 4/13/2022 11:20:08 AM Cardiovascular Disease - Telemedicine Page 2 of 2

Page 96 of 153



Y N

NorTHERN INvO HEALTHCARE DiSTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health

Applicant's Name: ,

Instructions:

Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Nurse Practitioner - General

Delineation of Privileges

1. Click the Request checkbox at the top of a group to request all privileges in that group.
2. Uncheck any privileges you do not want to request in that group.
3. Sign form electronically and submit with any required documentation.

NIHD
Required Qualifications
Education/Training Completion of a master's/post-master's or doctorate degree in an accredited nursing program
accredited by the Commission on the Collegiate of Nursing Education (CCNE) or the National
League for Nursing Accrediting Commission (NLNAC) with emphasis on the NPs specialty
area.
Certification Current certification by the American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC), American Academy

Clinical Experience
(Initial)

Clinical Experience
(Reappointment)

Additional
Qualifications

of Nurse Practitioners (AANP) or National Certification Board of Pediatric Nurse Practitioners &
Nurses (NCBPNP&N) or (NAPNAP).

OR Successfully passed the certification exam of the American Nurses Credentialing Center,
or other certifying organizations approved by the California Board of Nursing relative to the
NPs designated specialty.

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services in the specific privileges
requested during the previous 24 months (waived for applicants who completed training
within the past year).

Applicant must have provided clinical services in the specific privileges requested during the
past 24 months.
Applicant must have a supervising or collaborating physician in the same practice specialty.

AND Current California furnishing certificate and DEA Registration with schedules 2, 2N, 3,
3N, 4and 5

AND Current BLS certification

AND The NP must abide by the applicable Northern Inyo Healthcare District Standardized
Procedures.

Core Privileges in Nurse Practitioner - General

Description: Assessment of Health Status, Diagnosis and Development of Treatment Plan

3sonbay

I:I- Currently Granted privileges

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

|:| Perform history and physical examination

Published: 04/07/2023

Nurse Practitioner - General Page 1 of 4

Page 97 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Perform, order and interpret preventive and non-invasive diagnostic tests

Formulate a diagnosis and establish priorities to meet the patient's health and medical needs

Furnish/order pharmacologic and non-operative therapeutic interventions

Procedures

Arthrocentesis and joint injection

Bladder catheterization

Cerumen impaction removal

Circumcision, pediatric only

Cryo ablation of superficial lesions

Incision and drainage or aspiration of abscess or cyst

Laceration repair, simple

Local anesthetic techniques including nerve blocks, peripheral nerve blocks and trigger point injections

Nail removal

Perform simple skin biopsy or excision

Remove non-penetrating foreign body from the eye, nose, or ear

Simple superficial debridement; wound closure; and general care for wounds including performance of topical
or field infiltration of anesthetic solutions. Select and apply appropriate wound dressings including liquid or
spray occlusive materials, removal of drains, application of immobilizing dressing (soft or rigid)

Stabilization of non-displaced closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations including skeletal immobilization
techniques (e.g., splinting, slings)

Subungual hematoma drainage

Treatment of burns, superficial and partial thickness

Thrombosed external hemorrhoid incision and drainage (less than 48 hours)

Vasectomy

Gynecology and Reproductive Health

Pap smear and endocervical culture

Biopsy of cervix, endometrium

Excision/biopsy of vulvar lesions

IUD placement

IUD removal

| O |

Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device (e.g., Nexplanon)

FP

E (Department Chief to select)

100% chart review for two weeks

5 directly observed procedures by a practitioner who has privileges in that procedure

Core Privileges in Medication Assisted Treatment

Description: Provide on-going recovery support/coaching to high-risk patients who are in active addiction or early
recovery, who are struggling with Substance Use Disorders (SUD) and may be struggling with co-occurring disorders.

Published: 04/07/2023 Nurse Practitioner - General

Page 2 of 4

Page 98 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Continuing

(Reappointment)

Qualifications

Participates in trainings required by the funding source and/or as required by their practice

Education area.

Certification Buprenorphine waivered practitioner

Clinical I - i . - .

Experience Verification of current clinical competence as achieved via training, education and reference
(Initial) reviews.

Clinical e L . . .

Experience Verification of current clinical competence as achieved via peer review or other comparable

methods.

1sanbay

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

I:l— Currently Granted privileges

Coordination of Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) / Referral

Provide care coordination regarding Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and Mental Health, including assisting
patients in identifying their specific needs and working with them to identify and access resources in the
community to meet those needs

FPPE (Department Chief to select) |

[ ]

|Direct observation by a clinician for the first 2 weeks

Point of Service Provider Performed Microscopy

Description: Microscopic exam of fluids at the point of service by a non-pathologist.

(Reappointment)

Qualifications

Clinical For practitioners new to NIHD or newly requesting PPM privileges, successful initial

Experience competency testing must be completed and followed by a 6-month and 12-month

(Initial) evaluation. After the first year, all practitioners will be evaluated annually or as needed.
Initial competency testing includes: (1) successful completion of an online module for each
type of test and (2) completion of observed assessment by an observer holding PPM
privileges.

Clinical . . L o .

Experience Documentation of successful completion of organization sponsored annual training and skills

validation in provider performed microscopy as per policy.

1sanbay

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

I:l— Currently Granted privileges

Urine Sediment (Rural Health Clinic only)

KOH (potassium hydroxide) preparation

Published: 04/07/2023 Nurse Practitioner - General

Page 3 of 4

Page 99 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

|:| Direct Wet Mount
|:| Fern Test (Women's Clinic only)

FPPE (Department Chief to select) \

DConcurrent review (over-reading) of 1 PPM in each type of exam by a practitioner with unrestricted privileges in
this area or lab personnel as outlined in policy.

|Acknowledgment of Applicant

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience, and demonstrated
competency I believe that I am competent to perform and that I wish to exercise at Northern Inyo Healthcare District and I
understand that:

A. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by applicable Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules
applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation.

B. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are
governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

Practitioner's Signature NIHD

Department Chief Recommendation - Privileges

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and my recommendation is based
upon the review of supporting documentation and/or my personal knowledge regarding the applicant's performance
of the privileges requested:

Privilege |Condition/Modification/DeIetion/Epra nation

Published: 04/07/2023 Nurse Practitioner - General Page 4 of 4

Page 100 of 153



Y N

NorTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DisTRICT
1 ur [ !}

One Team, One Goal, Your Health.

Applicant's Name: ,

Instructions:

Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Physician Assistant - General

Delineation of Privileges

1. Click the Request checkbox at the top of a group to request all privileges in that group.
2. Uncheck any privileges you do not want to request in that group.
3. Sign form electronically and submit with any required documentation.

NIHD

Required Qualifications

Education/Training Completion of a physician assistant training program accredited by the Accreditation Review

Certification

Clinical Experience
(Initial)

Clinical Experience
(Reappointment)

Additional
Qualifications

Commission on Education for the Physician Assistant (ARC-PA).

Current PA-C designation. To attain the PA-C designation, PAs must pass the Physician
Assistant National Certifying Exam (PANCE) administered by the National Commission on
Certification of Physician Assistants.

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services in the specific privileges
requested during the previous 24 months (waived for applicants who completed training
within the past year).

Applicant must provide documentation of provision of clinical services in the specific privileges
requested during the past 24 months.
Applicant must have a supervising physician in the same practice specialty.

AND Current DEA Registration with schedules 2, 2N, 3, 3N, 4 and 5 and proof of completion
of a controlled substance education course as per CA law (one-time; initial).

AND Current BLS certification

AND The PA must abide by the applicable Northern Inyo Healthcare District Standardized
Protocols.

Core Privileges in Physician Assistant - General

Description: Assessment of Health Status, Diagnosis and Development of Treatment Plan

1sanboay

I:l- Currently Granted privileges

Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

Published: 04/07/2023

Physician Assistant - General Page 1 of 5

Page 101 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Perform history and physical examination

Perform, order and interpret preventive and non-invasive diagnostic tests

Formulate a diagnosis and establish priorities to meet the patient's health and medical needs

Prescribe/order pharmacologic and non-operative therapeutic interventions

Procedures

Arthrocentesis and joint injection

Bladder catheterization

Cerumen impaction removal

Circumcision, pediatric only

Cryo ablation of superficial lesions

Incision and drainage or aspiration of abscess or cyst

Laceration repair, simple

Local anesthetic techniques including nerve blocks, peripheral nerve blocks and trigger point injections

Nail removal

Perform simple skin biopsy or excision

Remove non-penetrating foreign body from the eye, nose, or ear

Simple superficial debridement; wound closure; and general care for wounds including performance of topical
or field infiltration of anesthetic solutions. Select and apply appropriate wound dressings including liquid or
spray occlusive materials, removal of drains, application of immobilizing dressing (soft or rigid)

Stabilization of non-displaced closed fractures and uncomplicated dislocations including skeletal immobilization
techniques (e.g., splinting, slings)

Subungual hematoma drainage

Treatment of burns, superficial and partial thickness

Thrombosed external hemorrhoid incision and drainage (less than 48 hours)

Vasectomy

Gynecology and Reproductive Health

Pap smear and endocervical culture

Biopsy of cervix, endometrium

Excision/biopsy of vulvar lesions

IUD placement

IUD removal

T s O

Insertion/removal of implanted contraceptive device (e.g., Nexplanon)

Surgical

[]

Act as surgical first assistant, including privileges to perform deep and simplified tissue closure/cautery,
cutting tissue; application of appliances and any other action delegated and directly supervised by the
physician

FPPE (Department Chief to select)

[ ]

100% chart review for two weeks

Published: 04/07/2023 Physician Assistant - General Page 2 of 5

Page 102 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

|E] |5 directly observed procedures by a practitioner who has privileges in that procedure

Core Privileges in Medication Assisted Treatment

Description: Provide on-going recovery support/coaching to high-risk patients who are in active addiction or early
recovery, who are struggling with Substance Use Disorders (SUD) and may be struggling with co-occurring disorders.

Qualifications

Continuing

- Participates in trainings required by the funding source and/or as required by their practice
Education

area.

Certification Buprenorphine waivered practitioner

Clinical L . . ) - i
Experience Ver_lﬁcatlon of current clinical competence as achieved via training, education and reference
(Initial) reviews.
Clinical e o . . .
Experience Verification of current clinical competence as achieved via peer review or other comparable
(Reappointment) Methods.

~ Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.

2 Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.

c

0

(0]

-+

D— Currently Granted privileges
|:| Coordination of Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) / Referral

Provide care coordination regarding Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and Mental Health, including assisting
|:| patients in identifying their specific needs and working with them to identify and access resources in the
community to meet those needs

FPPE (Department Chief to select)

|E] |Direct observation by a clinician for the first 2 weeks |

Point of Service Provider Performed Microscopy

Description: Microscopic exam of fluids at the point of service by a non-pathologist.

Published: 04/07/2023 Physician Assistant - General Page 3 of 5

Page 103 of 153



Dr. Provider Test, MD Granted:

Qualifications

Clinical For practitioners new to NIHD or newly requesting PPM privileges, successful initial

Experience competency testing must be completed and followed by a 6-month and 12-month

(Initial) evaluation. After the first year, all practitioners will be evaluated annually or as needed.
Initial competency testing includes: (1) successful completion of an online module for each
type of test and (2) completion of observed assessment by an observer holding PPM
privileges.

Clinical . . L I .

Experience Documentation of successful completion of organization sponsored annual training and skills

(Reappointment) validation in provider performed microscopy as per policy.

~ Check the Request checkbox to select all privileges listed below.
2 Uncheck any privileges you do not wish to request in the group.
c
0
(0]
-~

D— Currently Granted privileges

Urine Sediment (Rural Health Clinic only)

KOH (potassium hydroxide) preparation

Direct Wet Mount

L O

Fern Test (Women's Clinic only)

FPPE (Department Chief to select)

DConcurrent review (over-reading) of 1 PPM in each type of exam by a practitioner with unrestricted privileges in
this area or lab personnel as outlined in policy.

|Acknow|edgment of Applicant

I have requested only those privileges for which by education, training, health status, current experience, and demonstrated
competency I believe that I am competent to perform and that I wish to exercise at Northern Inyo Healthcare District and I
understand that:

A. In exercising any clinical privileges granted, I am constrained by applicable Hospital and Medical Staff policies and rules
applicable generally and any applicable to the particular situation.

B. Any restriction on the clinical privileges granted to me is waived in an emergency situation and in such situation my actions are
governed by the applicable section of the Medical Staff Bylaws or related documents.

Practitioner's Signature NIHD

Department Chief Recommendation - Privileges

I have reviewed the requested clinical privileges and supporting documentation and my recommendation is based
upon the review of supporting documentation and/or my personal knowledge regarding the applicant's performance
of the privileges requested:

Privilege |Condition/Modification/DeIetion/Epranation

Published: 04/07/2023 Physician Assistant - General Page 4 of 5

Page 104 of 153



/ NORTHERN INYO HOSPITAL
Northern Inyo Healthcare District
150 Pioneer Lane, Bishop, California 93514

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

One Te

am. One Goal. Your Health.

TO: NIHD Board of Directors

FROM: Sierra Bourne, MD, Chief of Medical Staff
DATE: September 5, 2023

RE: Medical Executive Committee Report

Medical Staff Office
(760) 873-2174  voice
(760) 873-2130  fax

The Medical Executive Committee met on this date. Following careful review and consideration, the

Committee agreed to recommend the following to the NIHD Board of Directors:

A. Policies (action item)
1. Chemical Hygiene Plan for Clinical Laboratory

. DI — Communication of Mammography Results to the Patient

. Diagnostic Imaging — Peer Review Policy
. Infection Prevention Plan

2

3

4

5. Standardized Procedure — Furnishing Medications/Devices Policy

6. Standardized Procedure — Laboratory and Diagnostic Testing Policy
7
8
9.
1

. Standardized Procedure — Management of Acute Illness Policy

. Standardized Procedure — Management of Chronic Illness Policy
Standardized Procedure — Management of Minor Trauma Policy

0. Standardized Procedure — Minor Surgical Procedures Policy

B. Medical Staff Appointments (action item)
1. Elizabeth Haun, FNP (family practice) — APP Staff
Maria Ramirez, MD (hospitalist) — Courtesy Staff
James Tur, MD (hospitalist) — Active Staff
Steven Arbogast, DO (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff

Aravind Reddy, MD (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff

Nk

C. Staff Category Changes (action item)

Swati Laroia Coon, DO (feleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff

Gautam Sachdeva, MD (teleneurology) — Telemedicine Staff

1. Joy Engblade, MD (internal medicine) — change from Active Staff to Courtesy Staff
2. Monika Mehrens, DO (family medicine) — change from Active Staff to Courtesy Staff

D. Privilege Forms (action item)
1. Cardiovascular Disease

2. Nurse Practitioner
3. Physician Assistant

E. Medical Staff Resignations in Good Standing (action item)
1. Alissa Dell, NP (family practice) — effective 7/14/23

F. Medical Executive Committee Meeting Report (information item)

Page 105 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 1 of 7

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Mary Mae Kilpatrick,
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair.

PRESENT Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Chair
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair
Jean Turner, Secretary
Ted Gardner, Treasurer
Jody Veenker, Member-at-Large
Stephen DelRossi, MSA, Interim Chief Executive Officer / Chief
Financial Officer
Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer / Chief Operations
Officer (present via zoom)

Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer (present via zoom)
Stefan Schunk, MD, Chief Medical Officer

OPPORTUNITY FOR Chair Kilpatrick reported that at this time, members of the audience may

PUBLIC COMMENT speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction
of the District Board. Public comments shall be received at the beginning
of the meeting and are limited to three minutes per speaker, with a total
time limit of thirty minutes for all public comment unless otherwise
modified by the Chair. The general Public Comment portion of the
meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public
comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is
considered. No comments were heard from the public.

NEW BUSINESS

CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT  Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the Chief of Staff report. Dr. Arndal
(TAKEN OUT OF ORDER)  reported for Dr. Bourne.

MEDICAL STAFF Dr. Arndal introduced the Medical Staff appointments and asked if the
APPOINTMENTS Board had any questions.

Jean Turner motioned to approve medical staff appointments a-f as
presented, Jody Veenker seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

Dr. Arndal called attention to the medical staff resignations and thanked
the providers for their service.

Ted Gardner motioned to approve the medical staff resignations, Melissa
Best-Baker seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

Dr. Arndal provided an overview of the policies and procedures for
approval.

Page 106 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023

Regular Meeting Page 2 of 7
a. DI CT Radiation Safety Policy
b. Nursing Bedside Swallow Screen
Melissa Best-Baker motioned to approve the policies as written, Jean
Turner seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.
MEDICAL EXECUTIVE Dr. Arndal provided a report of the Medical Executive Committee
AD HOC COMMITTEE Chair Kilpatrick called attention to Ad Hoc Committee reports.
REPORTS Jean Turner reported the Governance Committee has submitted the first
grouping of policies for approvals on this agenda. The rest will follow in
the August and September Board of Directors meetings.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE Chair Kilpatrick introduced the Chief Executive Officer Report. Interim
OFFICER REPORT

CEO Stephen DelRossi provided updates on the following items:

e Bi-monthly Town Halls will continue indefinitely, once in the
morning and once in the evening for better employee access.

e Anesthesia Department has had two resignations. Staff is working
to optimize the OR department, and they are continuing
recruitment efforts for new anesthesiologists.

e New Urologist and General Surgeon, Dr. Davis and Dr. Wiles, will
be joining NIHD in August.

e Accountable Care Organization (ACO) Update: Staff is currently
vetting two organizations. They will continue work on it
throughout the next few months. Jean Turner asked for an
explanation of what an ACO is. Dr. Schunk stated ACOs consist of
groups of doctors, hospitals, and other health care professionals
that work together to give patients high-quality, coordinated
service and health care, improve health outcomes, and manage
costs. ACOs are compensated by sharing in the savings they create
by improving care. Currently the government allows this to be a
voluntary program, but as of 2030 it will be mandatory.

e Beta Insurance Review: CEO DelRossi reported at the time of
renewal for our Beta insurance, we did not have time to vet the
entire insurance package, but we did vet workers comp which
resulted in Beta lowering their fees by $57,000.

e Legislation, hospital revenue: There are two State bills in effect or
upcoming that will impact NIHD. We have applied for part of
$150M loan for hospitals in distress. This is a 7 year, 0 interest
loan, with the possibility of forgiveness.

e Contract Savings: Neil’s team in Material Management
renegotiated our contract with GE, and the contract was lowered by
approximately $85,000 per year for the next 5 years

Page 107 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 7
CHIEF FINANCIAL Chair Kilpatrick introduced the Chief Financial Officer report.
OFFICER REPORT
FINANCIAL & CFO DelRossi reported with respect to the month of May, we had more

STATISTICAL REPORTS inpatient days and more outpatient visits than this time a year ago, but
RHC visits, outpatient surgeries, emergency room visits, nursing visits and
observations were all down. We were busier with inpatient days,
outpatient visits, clinic visits, inpatient surgeries, diagnostic imaging and
rehab. Mr. DelRossi pointed out we had an error with respect to Pharmacy
resulting in the financial statements are misstated by approximately
$300,000. As a whole, the hospital lost about $1,200,000 change in net
position and we lost about $1,450,000 in terms of operating income.

It was motioned by Jody Veenker to approve the financial and statistical
reports, seconded by Melissa Best-Baker and the motion passed 5-0.

FY 2023 BUDGET CFO DelRossi reported he is in the process of reviewing the FY 2024

EXTENSION budget with management. It will be finished in next two weeks, and he
will present it at next meeting. CFO DelRossi asked for approval to extend
the FY 2023 budget through August.

It was motioned by Jean Turner to approve the extension of the FY 2023
budget through August, seconded by Ted Gardner and the motion passed

5-0.
FY 2022 AUDIT CFO DelRossi stated he will report audit deficiencies quarterly. The FY
DEFICIENCIES 2022 Audit findings included:

e Balance Sheet reconciliations: The Accounting department is in
final stages of reconciling all balance sheets and he is confident we
will not have a finding with balance sheets this year, except for two
cash clearing accounts which will take 6-8 months to reconcile.

e Pension administration: Records were not available for the FY
2022 audit, but they were here in the building and will be available
for this year’s audit.

e The Pension program had been reported as an expense; this has
been corrected.

e Contractual allowance in third party settlements: The last
controller wrote the balances off in FY 2022. We reestablished
those balances and will continue to audit them as settlements roll
through.

TAG UPDATE The Labor Committee has worked through a high of 459 FTEs last fiscal
year, and it is now at 404 paid FTEs. With respect to Supply Chain, we
continue to see improvement from Neil’s team in Purchasing.
Improvements in Services and Revenues are coming at a slower pace than
we originally expected. We want to be very thoughtful about where we
trim services.

Page 108 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023

Regular Meeting Page 4 of 7
PMA BUILDING MOVE Internal Medicine’s move will be complete next week. Roofing supplies
UPDATE have been ordered for the PMA building, and work should begin in the

next 45 days. Vendors are in the process of drawing plans for the Rehab
clinic.
RSM UPDATE Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the RSM Update. CFO DelRossi

introduced Michael Brown who provided an update on RSM’s
engagement. All objectives were completed except for the implementation
of denial analytics which was removed and in its place they completed
charge bill audit to identify opportunities to capture more revenue. They
are now in a transition period, and they are ensuring NIH employees are
fully trained.

REVISED AMENDMENT Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the revised Amendment No. 2 to the

NO.2 TO THE NORTHERN  Northern Inyo Healthcare District 401(a) Retirement Plan.
INYO HEALTHCARE

DISTRICT Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, presented a summary of

the amendment. The amendment was originally approved by the Board on
May 17, 2023, but needed further clarification regarding how long the
contributions would continue from the District and when the actual
effective date was going to be for the matching contributions would come
from the employees. The clarifying language is included in this
amendment.

It was motioned by Jean Turner to approve the revised Amendment No. 2
to the Northern Inyo Healthcare District, seconded by Jody Veenker and
the motion passed 5-0.

CHIEF NURSING Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the Chief Nursing Officer/Chief

OFFICER/CHIEF Operations Officer Report. Allison Partridge reported department updates.
OPERATIONS OFFICER

REPORT e Cardiopulmonary welcomed Adam Wells, one of the District’s

respiratory therapists, to the Echocardiograpy training program.

e Diagnostic Imaging is optimizing current workflows and
expanding opportunities to provide services to the community.

¢ In Pharmacy, Jeff Kneip, Director of Pharmacy is expecting their
annual inspection by the Pharmacy State Board toward the end of
August.

¢ In the Facilities department, the Chiller project is close to complete
and should be done by the end of the year. The Pharmacy project
is moving along, also on track for end of year.

e Environmental Services is working in collaboration with Sterile
Processing to help assist with picking up and delivering
instruments that go out to other departments and make it a more
efficient process.

e Security conducted a security assessment, and as a result they will
add security cameras.

Page 109 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 5 of 7

e Within Inpatient Nursing, Med-surg currently has one open full-
time position, and they are using three travelers; ICU is
completely staffed with our own team members and they have no
travelers; the perinatal department is using a third party agency to
recruit permanent staff.

e With regard to Outpatient Nursing, the ER is fully staffed with one
traveler who will be exiting shortly, PACU is fully staffed with no
travelers.

¢ Infection Prevention is preparing for next flu season, and they are
implementing an antibiotic use and resistance program.

Chair Kilpatrick asked when the Pharmacy will be up and running. Allison
Partridge stated it is on track to be up and running by the end of the year.

Chair Kilpatrick asked how many nurses have left the District in the past
six months. Allison Partridge did not have the exact statistic, but stated it
is a small number.

CONSENT AGENDA Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the consent agenda which contained
the following items.

1. Approval of minutes of the June 21, 2023 Regular Board
Meeting
Chief Medical Olfficer Report
Compliance Department Quarterly Report
Department Reports
Approval of Policies and Procedures
i. Leaves of Absence — Leave Donation
ii. District Competency Plan
6. Approval of Policies and Procedures — Biennial Review
i. Chief Executive Officer Compensation Philosophy
ii. Compensation of the Chief Executive Officer
iii. Authority of the Chief Executive Olfficer for
Contracts and Bidding
iv. Basis of Authority Role of Directors
v. Reimbursement of Expenses

SR

Jody Veenker motioned to approve the Consent Agenda, Melissa Best-
Baker seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

REPORTS FROM BOARD  Chair Kilpatrick opened up reports to Board Members.

MEMBERS
Chair Kilpatrick recognized the passing of Dr. John Ungersma, who
served on the NIHD Board for many years. His service will be in October.
Ms. Kilpatrick thanked him very much for his contributions to NIHD and
the community.

Page 110 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 7

Chair Kilpatrick also reported she attended quite a few meetings, including
the Chamber of Commerce, Healthy Lifestyles presented by Dr. Richard
Meredick, the District’s first town hall meeting with the employees, and
the Foundation meeting. Ms. Kilpatrick asked how many grants the
District has outstanding. CEO DelRossi stated there are three grants.

Chair Kilpatrick announced the Foundation is planning a Meet and Greet
fundraiser in September with Dr. Clayton Davis, our new Urologist.

Jean Turner stated she shares Chair Kilpatrick’s appreciation of CEO
DelRossi’s thoughtful comments at the employee town hall. She also
reminded the Board members of the ACHD conference coming up in
September.

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON Chair Kilpatrick announced at this time, persons in the audience may
CLOSED SESSION ITEMS  gpeak only on items listed on the Closed Session portion of this meeting.
She announced there is one case on item b. There were no public

comments.
ADJOURNMENT TO At 7:33, Chair Kilpatrick announced the meeting would adjourn to Closed
CLOSED SESSION Session to allow the District Board of Directors to:

a. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation.

Government Code 54956.9(d)(4). Number of potential cases (1).

b. Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation.
Government Code 54956.9(d)(1). Name of case: Tillemans
v. NIHD

c. Conference with Legal Counsel — Anticipated Litigation.

Government Code 54956.9(d)(2). Number of potential cases
.

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation pursuant to

Government Code Section 54957(b)(1). Title: Interim CEO
Reconvened to open session at 8:43 p.m.

Chair Kilpatrick reported the Board voted 5 to 0 to reject a claim that was
presented in closed session.

ADJOURNMENT Adjournment at 8:43 p.m.

Page 111 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors July 19, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 7 of 7

Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Northern Inyo Healthcare
District, Chair

Attest:

Jean Turner, Northern Inyo Healthcare District,
Secretary

Page 112 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 1 of 6

CALL TO ORDER The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Mary Mae Kilpatrick,
Northern Inyo Healthcare District (NIHD) Board Chair.

PRESENT Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Chair
Melissa Best-Baker, Vice Chair
Jean Turner, Secretary
Ted Gardner, Treasurer
Jody Veenker, Member-at-Large
Stephen DelRossi, MSA, Interim Chief Executive Officer / Chief
Financial Officer
Allison Partridge RN, MSN, Chief Nursing Officer / Chief Operations
Officer (present via zoom)
Adam Hawkins, DO, Chief Medical Officer
Alison Murray, Chief Human Resources Officer, present via Zoom

OPPORTUNITY FOR Chair Kilpatrick reported that at this time, members of the audience may

PUBLIC COMMENT speak on any items not on the agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction
of the District Board. Public comments shall be received at the beginning
of the meeting and are limited to three minutes per speaker, with a total
time limit of thirty minutes for all public comment unless otherwise
modified by the Chair. The general Public Comment portion of the
meeting allows the public to address any item within the jurisdiction of the
Board of Directors on matters not appearing on the agenda. Public
comments on agenda items should be made at the time each item is
considered. No comments were heard from the public.

NEW BUSINESS

CHIEF OF STAFF REPORT  Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the Chief of Staff report. Dr. Bourne
(TAKEN OUT OF ORDER)  presented the MEC report.

Dr. Bourne provided an overview of the policies and procedures for
approval.

a. Medical Ethics Referrals and Consultation

b. Medical Records Delinquency Policy

c. Medical Staff History & Physical (H&P) Policy

It was motioned by Jody Veenker to approve the policies as written,
Melissa Best-Baker seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

MEDICAL EXECUTIVE Dr. Bourne provided a report of the Medical Executive Committee
COMMITTEE REPORT meeting.

e From the ED committee, it was reported Reach has replaced Coast
to Coast for local EMS services.

e They are continuing to work with UASI to get feedback on
provider documentation.

Page 113 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 2 of 6

e The Surgery Tissue committee is looking into optimizing OR room
utilization.

e The District welcomed Dr. Conner Wiles of general surgery and
Dr. Clayton Davis in urology.

e Dr. Lindsey Ricci is our new Peri-peds chair

Dr. Arndal reported she received 45 minutes of great feedback on coding
from USAL

AD HOC COMMITTEE Chair Kilpatrick called attention to Ad Hoc Committee reports.

REPORTS
Governance, Jean Turner reported the consent agenda includes Board
policies that are up for annual review. She called attention to corrections
needed to replace the titles “President” and “Vice President” with “Chair”
and “Vice Chair” as was approved in August 2020.

Finance, Melissa Best-Baker reported she attended the Finance Meeting.
Stephen did good job explaining the financials and budget.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE Chair Kilpatrick introduced the Chief Executive Officer Report. Interim
OFFICER REPORT CEO Stephen DelRossi provided updates on the following items:

e The Chiller project has been completed ahead of schedule, we have
moved Internal Medicine into the RHC.

e The Executive Team is looking at 11 topics they are going to work
on over next month.

e We have signed an agreement with Dr. Rowan to provide
cardiology services once a month. This service has no extra cost
resulting in a pure contribution margin.

e (Greg Bissonette provided an update on the Foundation’s FY 2024
budget. They are implementing the Grateful Patient program, and
are holding a fundraiser in October.

Jean Turner asked if the total budget for the Foundation is $30,000
or is the District subsidizing the Foundation at all. CEO DelRossi
stated this department runs the Foundation and Grant Writing with
a combined budget which is considerably more than $30,000. Greg
stated grants tend to bring in hundreds of thousands of dollars and
the Foundation typically brings in $20,000 to $30,000 per year
through fundraising efforts.

Ted Gardner stated it is important to look back 5-10 years for what

has occurred in fundraising and he is very proud of the
Foundation’s efforts.

e CEO DelRossi introduced the new Chief Medical Officer, Dr.
Adam Hawkins.

Page 114 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023

Regular Meeting Page 3 of 6
CHIEF FINANCIAL Chair Kilpatrick introduced the Chief Financial Officer report.
OFFICER REPORT
FINANCIAL & CFO DelRossi reported the FY 2023 audit has started; the auditors, CLA,
STATISTICAL REPORTS are satisfied at this point, there are no surprises, and the audit is well
underway.

CFO DelRossi highlighted several projects:

e RSM finished their official engagement and are now in the
maintenance phase which will last six months.

e Staffis looking at Chart Assist in Cerner, which looks for missing
documentation with a charge. If documentation is missing or does
not match a charge, it sends a message to the provider.

e Staffis also looking at the Insurance Contract Management portion
of the software. This provides guidance on whether we have been
underpaid by insurance.

e Staff has sent over 18,000 charts to Novus, our Medicaid data
clearing house.

e Staff has also been working on 121, a software solution for
reminding patients.

e Staff is working to optimize the accounting software Multiview,
which was implemented incorrectly. Multiview has the ability to
propose a budget using statistics. It is also the capable of using
optical character recognition where we can scan invoices and the
software will code them for payment. This will free up time for the
AP team to check for variances and work on other projects.

CEO DelRossi introduced Andrea Mossman to present the financials for
the month of June.

e June was pretty strong, volumes are stable year over year. Surgical
volume was down due to issues with anesthesia, resulting in the
OR being down for one week.

e Net patient revenue was down about $3,000,000 from the prior
year due to methodology changes in revenue analysis.

e Expenses were up for the month of June, as well as year to date.
The main driver of that is wages. MOU negotiations this year
resulted in wage increases. The increases are offset by savings in
benefits which will result in a net zero increase, but the savings are
not realized in this month.

e Net income showed a $5,000,000 loss of for June, and a loss of
$17,400,000 for the year.

It was motioned by Jody Veenker to approve the financial and statistical
reports, seconded by Melissa Best-Baker and the motion passed 5-0.

Page 115 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023

Regular Meeting

Page 4 of 6

TAG UPDATE

REVENUE CYCLE
REPORT

SECURITY REPORT

CEO DelRossi stated the TAG committee’s efforts are making a
difference, however some of the savings are anticipated and not yet
realized. Changes to the benefit plans will go into effect in August.
Reduction in labor will show benefits. The Internal Medicine clinic’s
relocation to the RHC was just completed and has not yet yielded the
financial benefits that will result. Relocation of surgery clinic to the PMA
building will eliminate a modular building and the related expense. RSM’s
work has already shown positive net cash flow with an expectation that it
will increase over time. TAG committee has a list of eleven places to look
for more revenue, better cost savings, or more efficient work flow
throughout the hospital.

Chair Kilpatrick asked if the hospital will pay to have the vacated modular
buildings removed. CEO DelRossi stated Scott Hooker was able to
confirm the company that owns the buildings is responsible for the cost of
removing them.

Chair Kilpatrick asked if staff is still looking at services that may have to
be eliminated. CEO DelRossi stated staff is looking at this but they are not
ready to report on it.

Jean Turner stated she appreciates the high level of detail reported every
month with respect to the financials.

Melissa Best-Baker asked if RSM gave us the tools to continue the work
they implemented, and CEO DelRossi confirmed they did.

Chair Kilpatrick called attention the Revenue Cycle Report. CEO
DelRossi stated we have seen tremendous professional growth in staff, and
we have seen 45 - 52 corrections in Cerner. The front end staff is working
very well in onboarding patients. Our billing and coding companies are
stepping up their dedication to us as a result of Gloria Sacco, Revenue
Cycle Director, working with them every day and pushing them very hard.

Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the Security Report. Bryan Harper, ITS
Director, introduced Jon Sternstein, CEO of Stern Security. Mr. Sternstein
presented results of the 2023 Penetration Test.

Ted Gardner asked if Mr. Sternstein had any observations in general on
the types of detrimental activity in the healthcare industry. Mr. Sternstein
reported physical theft used to be the highest risk and is now the lowest
form of breach. Hacking is now the top form of breach, including an
increase in ransomware and phishing.

ITS Director Bryan Harper reported the IT department is addressing the
vulnerabilities sited in the penetration test.

Page 116 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023

Regular Meeting Page 5 of 6
DISASTER PLAN Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the Disaster Plan Manual. Bryan
MANUAL Harper, ITS Director, presented the Disaster Plan Manual.

Jody Veenker and Jean Turner commended Bryan for creating the plan
and preparing for a table top exercise.

It was motioned by Jean Turner to approve the Disaster Plan Manual,
seconded by Ted Gardner and the motion passed 5-0.

BUSD AND NIHD MOU Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the BUSD and NIHD MOU for Bronco
FOR BRONCO CLINIC Clinic.

Patty Dickson, Compliance Officer, stated this is an update to the MOU to
be sure it is consistent with regulations and District policy. The MOU
allows the hospital to continue the Bronco Clinic.

Melissa Best-Baker asked if NIHD is providing services the school nurse
is capable of providing. CNO Allison Partridge stated the scope of
services we provide as outlined in the MOU are not within the purview of
the school nurse.

Jean Turner asked if the hospital is billing for services performed at the
Bronco Clinic. CEO DelRossi stated every patient is billed and we should
be at break even with the cuts to the schedule.

Jody Veenker stated students and parents appreciate the access to
healthcare provided by the Bronco Clinic and she thanked Colleen
McEvoy, NP for her efforts.

It was motioned by Melissa Best-Baker to approve the BUSD and NIHD
MOU for Bronco Clinic, seconded by Jean Turner and the motion passed
5-0.

CONSENT AGENDA Chair Kilpatrick called attention to the consent agenda which contained
the following items.
1. Approval of minutes of the July 17, 2023 Regular Board
Meeting
2. Approval of Policies and Procedures — Biennial Review
i. Attendance at Meetings
ii. NIHD Board Meeting Minutes
iii. Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of
Directors Meetings
iv. Officers and Committees of the Board of Directors
v. Requests for Public Funds, Community Grants,
Sponsorships
vi. Use by NIHD Directors of District Email Accounts

Page 117 of 153



Northern Inyo Healthcare District Board of Directors August 16, 2023
Regular Meeting Page 6 of 6

It was motioned by Jean Turner to approve the Consent Agenda with the
corrections noticed in the Board policies and previously discussed, Ted
Gardner seconded, and the motion passed 5-0.

REPORTS FROM BOARD  Chair Kilpatrick opened up reports to Board Members.

MEMBERS
Jody Veenker reported this will be her last meeting as a Board member
and she submitted a letter of resignation to Chair Kilpatrick and CEO
DelRossi.

Jean Turner reported SB525, the healthcare minimum wage law, was
heard in the Assembly Appropriations Committee and was moved to the
suspense file. It will be heard last week of this month and is expected to

pass the Assembly.
ADJOURNMENT Adjournment at 6:52 p.m.
Mary Mae Kilpatrick, Northern Inyo Healthcare
District, Chair
Attest:

Jean Turner, Northern Inyo Healthcare District,
Secretary

Page 118 of 153



V/

NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Northern Inyo Healthcare District 150 Pioneer Lane
www.nih.org Bishop, CA 93514
(760) 873-5811

Date: 09/08/2023

To: Board of Directors

From: J. Adam Hawkins, DO Chief Medical Officer
Re: Bi-Monthly CMO report

Medical Staff Department update

Project Updates:

e We are working closely with the Specialty Clinic leadership to quickly expand cardiology services.
This will both fill a vital clinical need for our community and provide sustainable revenue for The
District.

e | am working closely with our RHC leaders to improve efficiency with the aim of improving
patient access to primary care and increasing revenue.

* We have worked to make adjustments to Sue Park’s schedule in the Behavioral Health /
Psychiatry clinic which has already improved patient volumes. We will be offering tele-health
visits through this department which will also greatly improve much needed access to care and
also will allow for a significant increase in revenue.

Physician Recruitment update:

e We have invited Dr. Catherine Manuel, MD to Bishop for an in person visit and interview for the
open pediatrician appointment. We have had two additional pediatricians inquire about the
open position.

e We have received a contract proposal from an anesthesiologist who would like to take over
staffing of our Anesthesia Department starting next year. We have been engaged in these
discussions over multiple months and feel very optimistic about the future of this service line.

e We are in the process of vetting the possibility of new service lines to be offered through the
Specialty Clinic that will fill a clinical need in our community and also contribute to increased
revenue generation for The District.

Quality Department update

e | am very proud to announce that the Quality Department successfully completed the HSAG
audit of QIP PY5 (2022). As a result, The District will receive approximately 1.4 million dollars for
the following 4 measures that we reported on:

o Developmental Screening in the First Three Years of Life
o Exclusive Breast Milk Feeding

o Timeliness of Prenatal Care

o Timeliness of Postpartum Care

Page 119 of 153



e | meet with the Quality Department team on a weekly basis to monitor our progress on the

metrics we are tracking for PY6 (2023) and to strategize how to improve our reporting for the
upcoming reporting year.

Dietary Department

e We have recently received two inquiries regarding our open per-diem position. Interviews are
being conducted this month.

Rehab Department

e We currently have two full-time physical therapy positions and one physical therapy aide
position posted and available.

First Month on the Job

The first month serving as the Chief Medical Officer for The Northern Inyo Healthcare District has not
been without its challenges. That being said, | feel a deep sense of both humility and motivation as |
have had the opportunity to work with the other members of the executive team and the leaders
throughout The District. | am deeply proud of the clinical care that is provided throughout The District. |
am honored to serve as a liaison between The District and the Medical Staff to enhance our partnership.
| recognize there are challenges that still lie ahead. | am energized by the progress we have already
made and | look forward to the work yet to come.

Page 120 of 153



150 Pioneer Lane
Bishop, CA 93514
NoORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DisTRICT (760) 873-5811

Improving our communities, one life at a time.
One Team, One Goal, Your Health!

DATE: September 2023

JIE: Board of Directors
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

FROM: Stephen DelRossi, Interim CEO
Greg Bissonette, Foundation Executive Director/Grant Writer
RE; Department Update
REPORT DETAIL
FOUNDATION

At the July and August board meetings the upcoming fundraising event was discussed. The
District leadership had approached the Foundation to support the new urology service and that will
be the focus of the fundraising event. I reached out to Dr. Davis to request he be present to speak
at the event and he is on board to support however he can. The date of Saturday, October 7" was
selected. I and a board member approached the Catholic Church as a possible venue and secured
that location. Entertainment and a caterer have also been hired for the event. Corporate vendors
of the District have been approached as potential sponsors and the Foundation Board is actively
seeking raffle prizes as well as selling tickets. Notice has been sent out to staff and physicians
about supporting the event either through volunteering or purchasing tickets.

GRANT WRITING

The new grant opportunity to help support the adoption of AB 133, CalHHS’ Data Exchange
Framework is being pursued and an application was submitted for this grant in the amount of
$100,000. We are waiting to hear back on funding announcements. Administration and
maintenance for all other current grants is ongoing.

Page 121 of 153



V/

150 Pioneer Lane
Norrers Ivvo Hearnscare Disrricr Bishop,California 93514

Improving our communities, one life at a time. (760) 873-5811
One Team, One Goal, Your Health!

DATE: September 2023
6 > Board of Directors

Northern Inyo Healtheare District
FROM: Stephen DelRossi, Interim CEO

Tanya De Leo, Patient Access
RE: Department Update

REPORT DETAIL
NEW BUSINESS
None

OLD BUSINESS

Auth & Referral moved to the Administration Bldg. All is going well.

Auth & Referral will be adding a new team member which will be huge help to our
current team.

RHC phones are now being answered in the Administration Building which provides a
quiet space to communicate with patients.

RHC has added a 3™ check-in window, avoiding long lines for patients checking in.

Page 122 of 153



/ 150 Pioneer Lane

Bishop, California 93514

NORTHERN INvO HEALTHCARE DisTRICT (760) 873-5811 Ext. 3415
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

DATE:
TO:
FROM:

RE:

September 2023
Board of Directors, Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Stephen DelRossi, Interim CEO
Barbara Laughon, Manager, Marketing, Communications, & Strategy

Department Update

REPORT DETAIL

With sincerest apologies for shortened report, illness kept me out for 10 days.
COMMUNITY OUTREACH:

Healthy Lifestyle Talks: Hoping to return to these this month in collaboration with Dr.
Hawkins. High hopes for featuring Dr. Davis (Urology) and Dr. Wiles (General Surgery).

Podcast: NIHD’s New Mountain Medicine podcast is available on our website at
https://www.nih.org/resources/nihd-mountain-medicine/ or available on Apple Podcasts,
iHeart, Google Podcasts, or Spotify. Newest segment: Navigating Options for Care in the Later
Years with Dr. Anne Wakamiya.

MARKETING:

Foundation Fall Fundraiser support: Assisted Foundation Executive Director preparing
collateral for upcoming Oct. 7" event.

Same Day Care Brochure update: Brochure updated to reflect current service line and
staff. Printing waiting for direction from Primary Care Clinic leadership.

New doctors, APP spotlight: Working to introduce Sue Park (Behavioral Health), and Drs.
Davis and Wiles to the community using multi-channel marketing and news efforts.

COMMUNICATIONS:

Internal:
* Employee Town Hall held August 17; next scheduled for Monday, Sept. 25, 8:30 a.m.
External:
= Working to develop email newsletter and in-home geo-targeted postcard program.
* We will be pivoting slightly this quarter as we pause work with Scorpion Health and
allow our Digital Marketing consultant Amanda Long to handle boosting and paid
advertising to better reach people within our geographic zones.

Page 123 of 153




yV/

150 Pioneer Lane
NorrHERS Invo Heatricare Districy Bishop,California 93514

Improving our communities, one life at a time. (760) 873-5811
One Team, One Goal, Your Health!

DATE: September 2023

LS Board of Directors
Northern Inyo Healthcare District

FROM: Stephen DelRossi, Interim CEO
Jannalyn Lawrence, Outpatient Clinics
RE: Department Update
REPORT DETAIL
NEW BUSINESS

1. Internal Medicine has successfully integrated with RHC. This transition was completed
July 24 and has gone very smoothly!

2. Surgery Clinic moved into Suite G on July 24 and the old modular buildings were
removed from our campus on 8/30. New surgeon, Dr. Wiles, started 8/14 and is ramping up
in clinic and OR.

3. Dr. Davis, urologist, is seeing patients in Specialty Clinic and his schedule is filling
rapidly, including many surgeries.

4. Dr. Rowan, cardiologist from Reno, will be starting to see patients in Specialty Clinic end

of Sept or early Oct. With departure of Toiyabe’s visiting cardiologist, we expect to fill 2-3
clinic days per month with Dr. Rowan.

OLD BUSINESS
None

Page 124 of 153




NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE

V/

NortHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Check Signing

Owner: Chief Financial Officer | Department: Fiscal Services
Scope: CEO, CFO, CMO, CNO, COO, CHRO

Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Review | Version: 3
08/21/2023 Date

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 04/16/2003

PURPOSE: To identify who has approval to sign checks and to set limits as to the amount
needed for signatures.

POLICY: The Board of Directors assigns and approves signatory authority for all contracts,
legal documents, and related papers to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), Chief Medical Officer (CMO), Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), Chief Operating
Officer (COO), Chief Human Resource Officer (CHRO) and Administrator on Call (AOC). No
other person regardless of their position is authorized to sign such documents on behalf of
Northern Inyo Healthcare District. This authority is to be used in connection and compliance
with the current approved Board policy and all contracts, actions, and borrowings approved by
the Board of Trustees.

PROCEDURE:
Disbursement Account
1. A facsimile signature bearing the name of either the CEO, CFO, CMO, COO, CHRO or
CNO may be used for signing disbursement account checks not exceeding $9,999.99.
2. Checks exceeding $9,999.99 must be hand signed by at least one of the following — the
second signature can be presented via facsimile:

a. CEO d. CNO g. AOC
b. CFO e. COO
c. CMO f. CHRO

Payroll Accounts
1. A facsimile signature bearing the name of the CEO, CFO, CMO, COO, CHRO, or CNO
may be used for signing payroll checks issued in lieu of direct deposit.

Wire Transfer, ACH, EFT

1. A wire transfer, ACH, and EFT can only be released by the following: CEO, CFO, CMO,

COO, CHRO, and CNO.
REFERENCES: N/A

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:

Page 125 of 153



Maintenance of Fiscal records, including documents associated with procurement contracts and
purchase orders is for fifteen (15) years.

CROSS REFERENCE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Purchasing and Signature Authority

| Supersedes: v.2 Check Signing

Page 126 of 153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

V/

PLAN
NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DisTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.
Title: Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District
Owner: Compliance Officer | Department: Compliance
Scope: District Wide
Date Last Modified: Last Review Date: No Version: 5
08/16/2023 Review Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 11/18/2016

Contents

INTRODUCGTION ...ttt ettt et e st e et e s et e e s ae e et e s e e st ess e s e ansessesseens et e essensanseenseaseensensesseensansennnans 3

Section 1 — Compliance Program SUMIMATY ..........ccoeiiiiiiiiieiiieit ettt ettt et e st e steete e bt e beesbeesaeesaeeeneeeneeas 4
Definitions of ComMmONLY USEA TEIIMS ......ueeiuiiiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt ettt e bt e b e saeesaresabesbeenbeenbeesnees 4
Purpose of this COmMPlIANCE PIOGIAIM.........couiiiiriiiieieiiieiese ettt sttt s e st sbe et sbeeatenbesaeetesneeanenes 4
AT LI TN 15T 1<« PRSPPI 5
How to Use This COmMPHAanCe PrOZIamm ........ceveriiiieiiiiiriesieneeiesie ettt sttt sttt sbe et b et e b saeentesbeeanenees 5

SECTION II — CODE OF CONDUCT ..ottt ettt ettt ettt sat et e eae et e e st ententeeneensesaeeneans 6
COMPUANCE WIth LLAWS...eetiiriiiiiiiiiiie ettt st sttt e te e s te e s teesatesate s beenbe e seesaeesaeesaseenseeteessaesssesasesnseenseenseesnes 6
OPEN COMIMUINICATION 1.uteevveerveereresireeteesteesttestesseeseeseesseesseesseesssesssesssesssessssesssesssesssesssessseesssesnsesnsesssessseesssesssesnsesnsesssessnees 6
Y OUT PEISONAL COMAUCT ..c..viuvieiiitiitieie sttt ettt ettt s bt e at e b s ae et s bt e e sk e eb e et e s beeab e bt sab et e sbeeabesbeebbebesaeentesbeeanenes 6
The WOTK ENVITONITIENE ......eeiuiiiiiiiiiiiiitt ettt ettt ettt sttt et e bt e s bt e s b e e sbeesateeateeabeenbeesbeesaeesmbesabesabeenbeenseesneas 7
EMPLOYEE PIIVACY ..ttt ettt h ettt st et b e bt e sb e e s bt e sa bt e ateeabe e bt e sbeesaeesabesabesbeebeenbeesneas 7
USE OF DISITICE PTOPETLY ..uveeuririiieeiiiieetester ettt et st e b st e e s bt e s e e s bt e b e s reemeeanesene e e sneeanenres 7
USE Of DISIIICE COMPULETS. ...eeuveervierirerteeieesteesttestestesseesseesseesseesseesssesssesssesssessseesssesssesssesssessseessessssesssesssesssesssessseessesnsesnns 8
Use of Proprietary INfOrMAtION .........cccuiiriiiierieiieeie ettt ettt et ste e saeesaeesatesabessbeesbaesseesasessseenteenteesseesseesasesnsesnns 8
Recording and Reporting INFOIMAtION .......cuverveireiiiiiiiiieeseeseeseests sttt eeseesee e st e saeessteesteesteesteesraesssesssesnseensesssessnns 9
LR CeT 015 o) L TSP U UR TSROSO 9
Gifts and ENTETtAINIMENE ... .eoiuiiiiiiiie ittt sttt et e s bt e s he e sat e e ate e be e be e beeabeesaeeeateeabeeabeesbeesatesabesabeebeenbeenaeas 9
L 4 S 1 TSP U TSP PSPPSR 10
CONTIICES OF INEETESE. ...eueeveeteenieeteetete ettt ettt sttt s bttt sb e et e s bt eat et s bt et e s bt s ate st e sbe et e ebeeaee bt eat et e sbeenbenbeeutebesaeeneenne 11
ANTI-COMPELITIVE ACTIVITICS 1euvvervrirerieteesteereeseesteesteesteesteeseesseessseesseesseesseessessssssssesssesssesssessssssssesssesssesssesssssssesssessseessesns 13
REPOTTING VIOIATIONS .veeuveevietieriieitieieeieesteeseeste e bt esteesteesteessaesssessbeesseesseesseesseessseenseensesstessseesssesnsesnsesnsessseesssessseensesnseens 13

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 127 of 153



Section III — Compliance Program Systems and PrOCESSES ........ccuiiiviiiciiieiiiieiiiiecieeeiee et sreeeieeesveeeseveesbeeeereeseveans 14

Compliance Officers and COMMUILLEE. ......cvververrieriieteereeseeseeseeseeeteesteesteeseesreeasteesseesseesseesseessesssseeseessesssesssesssessssesnns 14
Compliance and Business Ethics COMMUILIEE. ........ccviuiiiiiieriieeiiieeriee et e sieesseeesteeesieeesereesaeessaeeessbeeessseessessnsseesnsessnsens 15
Compliance as an Element of Performance .........c.coociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiec ettt e s seee s sbe e e sate e sta e s naeeesabaesnaees 17
Training and EQUCALION ......cciiiiiiiiieicise ettt sttt b et s bt et e bt s et e e s bt sasesbesbe e b e sbeeneennesreennenne 17
Lines of Communicating and REPOTEING .......cceeveriirierierieieie sttt sttt sr e st be e e sneseee e e 18
Enforcing Standards and POLIICIES ........ccceeieiriiiieiieeieee ettt sttt et e sb e sbe e st s bt e bt e beesbeesmeesaeeenneereens 19
AUAItiNG ANA MONIEOTIIIE «.uveeveeitiiitieteeteert ettt ettt et e st e satesate s bt e b e e bt e sbeeab et saeeeat e et eesbeesaeesasesabeeabeebeeabeeaneesneeenseenseens 20
COTTEOLIVE ACEION ...c.utiutieiteeteeitee ettt et et e st e st e sat e st e bt e bt e s b e e sb et sae e e at e e abe e bt e sbeesaeesabesas e e e bt e bt e b e e abeesbeeemteenbeenbeesheesaeesanenane 21
SECTION IV — COMPLIANCE POLICIES ...ttt ettt et se et asesseesesseenaesesneenes 22
2

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 128 of 153



INTRODUCTION

It is the fundamental policy of NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT (hereinafter “NIHD” or “the
District”), that quality patient care and governance is provided by the District, its governing board, medical
staff, employees and affiliates, in a manner that fully complies with all applicable state and federal laws, and
that all of the District’s business and other practices be conducted at all times in compliance with all applicable
laws and regulations of the United States, the State of California, all other applicable state and local laws and
ordinances, and the ethical standards and practices of the medical profession, the health care industry and this
organization.

There is significant concern about "waste, fraud and abuse" in healthcare. In light of this, the Office of the
Inspector General (OIG) has issued a document entitled "Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals." The
OIG has recommended that an effective compliance program should contain the following seven elements:

1. The development and distribution of written standards of conduct, as well as written policies and
procedures that promote the Company’s commitment to compliance (e.g., by including adherence to
compliance as an element in evaluating managers and employees) and that address specific areas of
potential fraud, such as claims development and submission processes, code gaming, and financial
relationships with physicians and other health care professionals;

2. The designation of a compliance officer and other appropriate bodies charged with the responsibility
of operating and monitoring the compliance program, and who report directly to the CEO and the
governing body;

3. The development and implementation of regular, effective education and training programs for all
affected employees;

4. The maintenance of a process, such as a hotline, to receive complaints, and the adoption of
procedures to protect the anonymity of complainants and to protect complainants from retaliation;

5. The development of a system to respond to allegations of improper/illegal activities and the
enforcement of appropriate disciplinary action against employees who have violated internal
compliance policies, applicable statutes, regulations or federal health care program requirements;

6. The use of audits and/or other evaluation techniques to monitor compliance and assist in the
reduction of identified problem areas; and

7. The investigation and remediation of identified systemic problems and the development of policies
addressing the non-employment or retention of sanctioned individuals.

This Compliance Program outlines the process NIHD will utilize to assure that it is in compliance with all the
various laws and regulations established by both the Federal government as well as the State of California.

This Compliance Program (the “Program”) is intended as a guide to help implement this policy of compliance
with all applicable standards. The federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ethical rules that govern health
care are too numerous to list in the Program. Fundamentally, all individuals associated with NIHD by
employment, contract or otherwise, are expected to conduct all business activities honestly and fairly. Each
employee or contractor is responsible for his or her own conduct in complying with the Program.

The Program provides for the designation of a Compliance Officer who has ultimate responsibility and
accountability for directing, monitoring, and reporting on compliance matters. The Compliance Officer shall
implement and administer this Program, together with training and education as necessary to affect the full
participation of District governing board, medical staff, employees, affiliates, and other agents.

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 129 of 153



This Program provides a framework for individual or departmental compliance efforts, and applies to all
District Personnel and activities. However, each individual employee or agent of the District remains
responsible and accountable for his or her own compliance with applicable laws, regulations, standards,
policies, and procedures.

The Program identifies those organizational imperatives necessary to prevent accidental and intentional non-
compliance with applicable laws. It is further designed to detect non-compliance should it occur. Additionally,
it is designed to promote such steps as are necessary to prevent future non-compliance, including education and
corrective action.

Northern Inyo Healthcare District is committed to maintaining in the community a positive reputation for
conduct in accordance with the highest levels of business ethics. This Program supports that objective. The
Program fully supports the NIHD mission: Improving our communities, one life at a time. One team. One goal.
Your health!

SECTION 1 — COMPLIANCE PROGRAM SUMMARY

Definitions of Commonly Used Terms

A list of words that are commonly used in this Compliance Program and their meanings follows:

o “Affiliate” means any person or entity controlled by, or under common control with, Northern
Inyo Healthcare District.

o “District” means Northern Inyo Healthcare District, and all of its subsidiaries and affiliates that
are covered by this Compliance Program.

e “Personnel” means all members of the governing board, medical staff, employees of the District,
and all contractors or others who are required to comply with this Compliance Program. Each of
these persons must sign an Acknowledgment of Receipt of District Compliance Program and a
Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form.

e “Board” means the Board of Directors of the District.

Purpose of this Compliance Program

Northern Inyo Healthcare District is committed to ensuring compliance with all applicable statutes,
regulations, and policies governing our daily business activities. To that end, the District will have a
Compliance Program. The document is to serve as a practical guidebook that can be used by all Personnel to
assist them in performing their job functions in a manner that complies with applicable laws and policies.
Additionally this Compliance Program is to serve as a mechanism for preventing violations and for reporting
any violation in a manner that protects those that identify and report the lack of compliance with those laws.

While this Compliance Program contains policies regarding the business of Northern Inyo Healthcare District,
it does not contain every policy that Personnel are expected to follow. For example, this Compliance Program
does not cover payroll, vacation and benefits policies. Northern Inyo Healthcare District maintains other
policies with which employees are required to comply. If you have questions about which policies apply to
you, please ask your supervisor.

It is the policy of the District that:
e All employees are educated about applicable laws and trained in matters of compliance;
e There is periodic auditing, monitoring and oversight of compliance with those laws;

e An atmosphere exists that encourages and enables the reporting of noncompliance without fear of

4
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 130 of 153



retribution; and

e Mechanisms exist to investigate and take corrective actions in the event of noncompliance.

Who is Affected

Everyone employed by Northern Inyo Healthcare District is required to comply with our Compliance
Program. Because not all sections will apply to your job function, you will receive training and other materials
to explain which portions of this Compliance Program apply to you.

While this is not intended to serve as the compliance program for all of our contractors, it is important that all
contractors perform services in a manner that complies with the law. To that end, agreements with contractors
may incorporate certain provisions of this Compliance Program.

Please note that compliance requirements are subject to change as a result of new laws and changes to existing
laws and regulations. Collectively, we must all keep this Compliance Program current and useful. Therefore,
you are encouraged to let the Compliance Officer or your supervisor know when you become aware of
changes in law or District policy that might affect this Compliance Program.

How to Use This Compliance Program

The District has organized this Compliance Program to be understandable and easy to navigate. A brief
description of how this manual is organized follows.

1. Section I - Compliance Program Summary

2. Section II — Code of Conduct
This section contains specific policies related to your personal conduct while performing your job function.
The primary objective of these policies is to create a work environment that promotes cooperation,
professionalism, and compliance with the law. Compliance with the Code of Conduct is a significant factor in
employee performance evaluations. All Personnel will receive training on this section.

3. Section III — Compliance Program Systems and Processes
This section explains the roles of the Compliance Officer and the Compliance and Business Ethics
Committee. It also contains information about Compliance Program education and training, auditing, and
corrective action. Most importantly, this section explains how to report violations anonymously, either in
writing or by calling the Compliance Confidential Report Line at 1-888-200-9764 or by emailing the
Compliance Officer directly. All Personnel will receive training on this section.

4. Section IV — Compliance Policies
The District electronic policy management system houses NIHD Compliance Policies. Some of these policies
may not apply to your specific job function, but it is still important that you are aware of their existence and
importance. All Personnel will receive training regarding the policies that apply to their job.

Here are some tips on how to use this Compliance Program effectively:

e Refer to Table of Contents. The Table of Contents contains a thorough list of topics covered in
this Compliance Program. Use the Table of Contents to locate the topic you are looking for
quickly.

e Important Reference Tool. This Compliance Program should be viewed as an important
reference manual that you can refer to on a regular basis to answer questions about how to perform
your job. Although it may not contain all of the answers, it will contain many and can save you
time.

e Read it in Context. The District has created this Compliance Program to incorporate numerous
compliance policies, many of which may not apply to you. When reviewing this Compliance

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 131 of 153



Program and the policies contained in it, keep in mind that the policies are to be applied in the
context of your job. If you are uncertain about if or how a policy applies to you, ask your
supervisor.

e Keep it Handy. Keep this Compliance Program information easily accessible and refer to it on a
regular basis.

o Talk to Your Co-Workers. Regular dialogue among co-workers and supervisors is a great way to
ensure that policies are applied uniformly. While this discussion is encouraged, always remember
that the provisions of this Compliance Program should guide you on compliance matters.

SECTION II - CODE OF CONDUCT

Our Compliance Mission

The mission of Northern Inyo Healthcare District’s Compliance Department is to promote an organizational
culture that encourages ethical conduct and a commitment to compliance with the law in order to improve our
communities, one life at a time.

Northern Inyo Healthcare District believes that dedication to high ethical standards and compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations is essential to its mission. This Code of Conduct is a critical component of the
overall District Compliance Program. It guides and assists the District in carrying out daily activities in
accordance with appropriate ethical and legal standards. These obligations apply to the District’s relationship
with patients, affiliated physicians, third-party payers, regulatory agencies, subcontractors, contractors,
vendors, consultants, and one another. They require that all program participants comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws and regulations. Participants must also comply with all Northern Inyo Healthcare
District Standards of Conduct. The absence of a specific guideline practice or instruction covering a particular
situation does not relieve an employee from exercising the highest ethical standards applicable to the
circumstances.

Compliance with Laws
It is the policy of the District, its affiliates, contractors, and employees to comply with all applicable laws.
When the application of the law is uncertain, the District Chief Executive Officer or Compliance Officer will
seek guidance from legal counsel.

Open Communication

The District encourages open lines of communication among Personnel. If you are aware of an unlawful or
unethical situation, there are several ways you can bring this to the District’s attention. Your supervisor is the
best place to start, but you can also contact the District’s Compliance Officer or call the Compliance
Confidential Report Line (1-888-200-9764) to express your concerns. All reports of unlawful or unethical
conduct will be investigated promptly. The District does not tolerate threats or acts of retaliation or retribution
against employees for using these communication channels.

Your Personal Conduct

The District’s reputation for the highest standards of conduct rests not on periodic audits by lawyers and
accountants, but on the high measure of mutual trust and responsibility that exists between Personnel and the
District. It is based on you, as an individual, exercising good judgment and acting in accordance with this
Code of Conduct and the law.

Ethical behavior on the job essentially comes down to honesty, trust, and fairness in dealing with other
Personnel and with patients, vendors, competitors, the government and the public. It is no exaggeration to say

6
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 132 of 153



that the District’s integrity and reputation are in your hands.

The District’s basic belief in the importance of respect for the individual has led to a strict regard for the
privacy and dignity of Personnel. When management determines that your personal conduct adversely affects
your performance, that of other Personnel, or the legitimate interests of the District, the District may be
required to take corrective action.

The Work Environment

The District strives to provide Personnel with a safe and productive work environment. All Personnel must
dispose of medical waste, environmentally sensitive materials, and any other hazardous materials correctly.
You should immediately address and report to your supervisor any situations that are likely to result in falls,
shocks, burns, or other harm to patients, visitors, or Personnel.

The work environment also must be free from discrimination and harassment based on race, color, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, age, national origin, disability, veteran status, or other factors that are unrelated to the
District’s legitimate business interests. The District will not tolerate sexual advances, actions, comments or
any other conduct in the workplace that creates an intimidating or otherwise offensive environment. Similarly,
the use of racial or religious slurs — or any other remarks, jokes or conduct that encourages or permits an
offensive work environment — will not be tolerated.

If you believe that you are subject to such conduct, you should bring such activity to the attention of the
District, either by informing your supervisor, the District’s Compliance Officer, or by calling the Compliance
Confidential Report Line (1-888-200-9764). The District considers all complaints of such conduct to be
serious matters, and all complaints will be investigated promptly.

Some other activities that are prohibited because they clearly are not appropriate are:
e Threats;
e Violent behavior;

e The possession of weapons of any type on the premises, except for exempt or authorized
Personnel,

e The distribution of offensive jokes or other offensive materials via e-mail or any other manner; and

e The use, distribution, sale, or possession of illegal drugs or any other controlled substances, except
to the extent permitted by law for approved medical purposes.

In addition, Personnel may not be on the District premises or in the District work environment if they are
under the influence of or affected by illegal drugs, alcohol or controlled substances used other than as
prescribed.

Employee Privacy

The District collects and maintains personal information that relates to your employment, including medical
and benefit information. Access to personal information is restricted solely to people with a need to know this
information. Personal information is released outside the District or to its agents only with employee approval,
except in response to appropriate investigatory or legal requirements, or in accordance with other applicable
law. Employees who are responsible for maintaining personal information and those who are provided access
to such information must ensure that the information is not disclosed in violation of the District’s Personnel
policies or practices.

Use of District Property

District equipment, systems, facilities, corporate charge cards, and supplies must be used only for conducting

7
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 133 of 153



District business or for purposes authorized by management.

Personal items, messages, or information that you consider private should not be placed or kept in telephone
systems, computer systems, offices, workspaces, desks, credenzas, or file cabinets. Employees should have no
expectation of privacy with regard to items or information stored or maintained on District equipment or
premises. Management is permitted to access these areas. Employees should not search for or retrieve articles
from another employee’s workspace without prior approval from that employee or management.

Since supplies of certain everyday items are readily available at District work locations, the question of
making personal use of them frequently arises. The answer is clear: employees may not use District supplies
for personal use.

Use of District Computers

The increasing reliance placed on computer systems, internal information, and communications facilities in
carrying out District business makes it absolutely essential to ensure their integrity. Like other District assets,
these facilities and the information they make available through a wide variety of databases should be used
only for conducting District business or for purposes authorized by management. Their unauthorized use,
whether or not for personal gain, is a misappropriation of District assets.

While the District conducts audits to help ensure that District systems, networks, and databases are being used
properly, it is your responsibility to make sure that each use you make of any District system is authorized and
proper.

Personnel are not allowed to load or download software or data onto District computer systems unless it is for
business purposes and is approved in advance by the appropriate supervisor. Personnel shall not use District e-
mail systems to deliver or forward inappropriate jokes, unauthorized political materials, or any other
potentially offensive materials. Personnel are strictly forbidden from using computers to access the Internet
for purposes of gambling, viewing pornography or engaging in any illegal activities.

Employees should have no expectation of privacy with regard to items or information stored or maintained on
District premises or computer, information, or communication systems.

Use of Proprietary Information

Proprietary Information

Proprietary information is generally confidential information that is developed by the District as part of its
business and operations. Such information includes, but is not limited to, the business, financial, marketing
and contract arrangements associated with District services and products. It also includes computer access
passwords, procedures used in producing computer or data processing records, Personnel and medical records,
and payroll data. Other proprietary information includes management know-how and processes; District
business and product plans with outside vendors; a variety of internal databases; and copyrighted material,
such as software.

The value of this proprietary information is well known to many people in the District industry. Besides
competitors, they include industry and security analysts, members of the press, and consultants. The District
alone is entitled to determine who may possess its proprietary information and what use may be made of it,
except for specific legal requirements such as the publication of certain reports.

Personnel often have access to information that the District considers proprietary. Therefore, it is very
important not to use or disclose proprietary information except as authorized by the District.

Inadvertent Disclosure

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 134 of 153



The unintentional disclosure of proprietary information can be just as harmful as intentional disclosure. To
avoid unintentional disclosure, never discuss with any unauthorized person proprietary information that has
not been made public by the District. This information includes unannounced products or services, prices,
earnings, procurement plans, business volumes, capital requirements, confidential financial information,
marketing and service strategies, business plans, and other confidential information. Furthermore, you should
not discuss confidential information even with authorized District employees if you are in the presence of
others who are not authorized — for example, at a meeting, conference or in a public area. This also applies to
discussions with family members or with friends, who might innocently or inadvertently pass the information
on to someone else.

Direct Requests for Information

If someone outside the District asks you questions about the District or its business activities, either directly or
through another person, do not attempt to answer them unless you are certain you are authorized to do so. If
you are not authorized, refer the person to the appropriate source within the District. Under no circumstances
should you continue contact without guidance and authorization. If you receive a request for information, or
to conduct an interview from an attorney, investigator, or any law enforcement officer, and it concerns the
District’s business, you should refer the request to your supervisor, the office of the District’s Chief Executive
Officer, or Compliance Officer. Similarly, unless you have been authorized to talk to reporters, or to anyone
else writing about or otherwise covering the District or the industry, direct the person to your supervisor.

Disclosure and Use of District Proprietary Information

Besides your obligation not to disclose any District proprietary information to anyone outside the District, you
are also required to use such information only in connection with the District’s business. These obligations
apply whether or not you developed the information yourself.

Proprietary and Competitive Information about Others

In the normal course of business, it is not unusual to acquire information about many other organizations,
including competitors (competitors are other Districts and health facilities). Doing so is a normal business
activity and is not unethical in itself. However, there are limits to the ways that information should be
acquired and used. Improper solicitation of confidential data about a competitor from a competitor’s
employees or from District patients is prohibited. The District will not tolerate any form of questionable
intelligence gathering.

Recording and Reporting Information

You should record and report all information accurately and honestly. Every employee records information of
some kind and submits it to the District (for example, a time card, an expense account record, or a report). To
submit a document that contains false information — an expense report for meals not eaten, miles not driven,
or for any other expense not incurred — is dishonest reporting and is prohibited.

Dishonest reporting of information to organizations and people outside the District is also strictly prohibited
and could lead to civil or even criminal liability for you and the District. This includes not only reporting
information inaccurately, but also organizing it in a way that is intended to mislead or misinform those who
receive it. Personnel must ensure that they do not make false or misleading statements in oral or written
communications provided to organizations outside of the District.

Exception

Nothing contained herein is to be construed as prohibiting conduct legally protected by the National Labor
Relations Act or other applicable state or federal law.

Gifts and Entertainment

The District understands that vendors and others doing business with the District may wish to provide gifts,

Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 135 of 153



promotional items, or entertainment to District Personnel as part of such vendors’ own marketing activities.
The District also understands that there may be occasions where the District may wish to provide reasonable
business gifts to promote the District’s services. However, the giving and receipt of such items can easily be
abused and have unintended consequences; giving and receiving gifts, particularly in the health care industry,
can create substantial legal risks.

General Policy

It is the general policy of the District that neither you nor any member of your family may solicit, receive,
offer or pay any money or gift that is, or could be reasonably construed to be, an inducement in exchange for
influence or assistance in conducting District business. It is the intent of the District that this policy be
construed broadly such that all business transactions with vendors, contractors, and other third parties are
transacted to avoid even the appearance of improper activity. Pharmaceutical samples provided to physicians
by manufacturers for patient use are generally allowed. Please discuss any concerns with your supervisor or
the Compliance Officer.

Spending Limits — Gifts, Dining and Entertainment

The District has developed policies that clearly define the spending limits permitted for items such as gifts,
dining, and entertainment. Occasional gifts from vendors, of nominal value (less than $10), that do not
influence or appear to influence the objective judgment of personnel, such as sales promotional items (an
inexpensive pen), or business related meal or snack for a department are permitted with approval. All
Personnel are strictly prohibited from making any expenditure of District or personal funds for gifts, dining or
entertainment in any way related to District business, unless such expenditures are made in strict accordance
with District policies.

Marketing and Promotions in Health Care

As a provider of health care services, the marketing and promotional activities of the District may be subject
to anti-kickback and other laws that specifically apply to the health care industry. The District has adopted
policies elsewhere in this Compliance Program to specifically address the requirements of such laws.

It is the policy of the District that Personnel are not allowed to solicit, offer or receive any payment,
compensation or benefit of any kind (regardless of the value) in exchange for referring, or recommending the
referral of, patients or customers to the District.

Marketing

The District has expended significant efforts and resources in developing its services and reputation for
providing high-quality patient care. Parts of those efforts involve advertising, marketing, and other
promotional activities. While such activities are important to the success of the District, they are also potential
sources of legal liability as a result of health care laws (such as the anti-kickback laws) that regulate the
marketing of health care services. Therefore, it is important that the District closely monitor and regulate
advertising, marketing and other promotional activities to ensure that all such activities are performed in
accordance with District objectives and applicable law.

This Compliance Program contains various policies applicable to specific business activities of the District. In
addition to those policies, it is the general policy of the District that no Personnel engage in any advertising,
marketing, or other promotional activities on behalf of the District unless such activities are approved in
advance by the appropriate District representative. You should ask your supervisor to determine the
appropriate District representative to contact. In addition, no advertising, marketing, or other promotional
activities targeted at health care providers or potential patients may be conducted unless approved in advance
by the District’s Chief Executive Officer or Compliance Officer.

All content posted on Internet websites maintained by the District must be approved in advance by the
District’s Compliance Officer or designee.

10
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 136 of 153



Conflicts of Interest

A conflict of interest is any situation in which financial or other personal considerations may compromise or
appear to compromise any Personnel’s business judgment, delivery of patient care, or ability of any Personnel
to do his or her job or perform his or her responsibilities. A conflict of interest may arise if you engage in any
activities or advance any personal interests at the expense of the District’s interests.

An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when any Personnel is in a position to influence a decision
that may result in personal gain for that Personnel, a relative or a friend as a result of the District’s business
dealings. A relative is any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the
Personnel is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage, including a domestic partner, and
any person residing in the Personnel’s household. You must avoid situations in which your loyalty may
become divided.

An obvious conflict of interest is providing assistance to an organization that provides services and products
in competition with the District’s current or potential services or products. You may not, without prior
consent, work for such an organization as an employee (including working through a registry or
“moonlighting” and picking up shifts at other health care facilities), independent contractor, a consultant, or a
member of its Governing Board. Such activities may be prohibited because they divide your loyalty between
the District and that organization. While many of these activities are approved with a management plan or
Non-Disclosure agreement, failure to obtain prior consent in advance from the District’s Compliance Officer
may be grounds for corrective action, up to and including termination.

Outside Employment and Business Interests

You are not permitted to work on any personal business venture on the District premises or while working on
District time. In addition, you are not permitted to use District equipment, telephones, computers, materials,
resources, or proprietary information for any business unrelated to District business. You must abstain from
any decision or discussion affecting the District when serving as a member of an outside organization or board
or in public office, except when specific permission to participate has been granted by the District’s
Compliance Officer or Chief Executive Officer.

Contracting with the District

You may not contract with the District to be a supplier, to represent a supplier to the District, or to work for a
supplier to the District while you are an employee of the District. In addition, you may not accept money or
benefits, of any kind, for any advice or services you may provide to a supplier in connection with its business
with the District.

Required Standards

All decisions and transactions undertaken by Personnel in the conduct of the District’s business must be made
in a manner that promotes the best interests of the District, free from the possible influence of any conflict of
interest of such Personnel or the Personnel’s family or friends. Personnel have an obligation to address both
actual conflicts of interest and the appearance of a conflict of interest. You must always disclose and seek
resolution of any actual or potential conflict of interest — whether or not you consider it an actual conflict —
before taking a potentially improper action.

No set of principles or standards can cover every type of conflict of interest. The following standards address
conduct required of all Personnel and provide some examples of potential conflict of interest situations in
addition to those discussed elsewhere in the Compliance Program.

1. Personnel may not make or influence business decisions, including executing purchasing agreements
(including but not limited to agreements to purchase or rent equipment, materials, supplies or space) or
other types of contracts (including contracts for personal services), from which they, a family member,
or a friend may benefit.

11
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 137 of 153



2. Personnel must disclose their “significant” (defined below) financial interests in any entity that they
know to have current or prospective business, directly or indirectly, with the District. There are two
types of significant financial interests:

a. Receipt of anything of monetary value from a single source. Examples include salary, royalties,
gifts and payments for services including consulting fees and honoraria; and

b. Ownership of an equity interest exceeding 5 percent in any single entity, excluding stocks, bonds
and other securities sold on a national exchange; certificates of deposit; mutual funds; and
brokerage accounts managed by third parties.

3. Personnel must disclose any activity, relationship, or interest that may be perceived to be a conflict of
interest so that these activities, relationships, and interests can be evaluated and managed properly.

4. Personnel must disclose any outside activities that interfere, or may be perceived to interfere, with the
individual’s capacity to satisfy his or her job or responsibilities at the District. Such outside activities
include leadership participation (such as serving as an officer or member of the board of directors) in
professional, community, or charitable activities; self-employment; participation in business
partnerships; and employment or consulting arrangements with entities other than the District.

5. Personnel may not solicit personal gifts or favors from vendors, contractors, or other third parties that
have current or prospective business with the District. Personnel may not accept cash gifts and may not
accept non-monetary gifts including meals, transportation, or entertainment from vendors, contractors,
or other third parties that have current or prospective business with the District. Questions regarding the
gifts should be directed to the District’s Compliance Officer.

6. Any involvement by Personnel in a personal business venture shall be conducted outside the District
work environment and shall be kept separate and distinct from the District’s business in every respect.

7. Personnel should not accept employment or engage in a business that involves, even nominally, any
activity during hours of employment with the District, the use of any of the District’s equipment,
supplies, or property, or any direct relationship with the District’s business or operation. Certain
emergency situations may require collaboration with suppliers, vendors, or other healthcare
organizations. Disclosure and approval by Chief Executive Officer or Compliance Officer at an
appropriate time would further clarify compliance; however, nothing in this Program should be
interpreted as interfering with the provision of high quality, efficient patient care in a legally compliant
manner. Questions should be directed to the District’s Compliance Officer.

8. Personnel must guard patient and District information against improper access, disclosure, or use by
unauthorized individuals.

9. The District’s materials, products, designs, plans, ideas, and data are the property of the District and
should never be given to an outside firm or individual, except through normal channels with appropriate
prior authorization.

10. Personnel must avoid even the appearance of impropriety when dealing with clinicians and referral
sources.

11. All vendors and contractors who have or desire business relationships with the District must abide by
this Code of Conduct. Personnel having knowledge of vendors or contractors who violate these
standards in their relationship with the District must report these to their supervisor, manager, the
District Compliance Officer, or by using the Confidential Compliance Report Line (1-888-200-9764).

12. Personnel shall not sell any merchandise on District premises and shall not sell any merchandise of a
medical nature that is of a type or similar to what is sold or furnished by the District, whether on or off
District premises, unless prior approval is obtained from the District’s Compliance Officer.

12
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 138 of 153



13. Personnel shall not request donations for any purpose from other Personnel, patients, vendors,
contractors or other third parties, unless prior approval is obtained from the District’s Compliance
Officer.

14. Personnel may not endorse any product or service without explicit prior approval to do so by the
District’s Compliance Officer.

Disclosure of Potential Conflict Situations

You must disclose any activity, relationship, or interest that is or may be perceived to be a conflict of interest
and complete the attached Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form within 90 days of being subject to this
Compliance Program (that is, being hired by the District, beginning to volunteer at the District, or assuming
any responsibilities at the District). At least annually thereafter, you must review this Compliance Program
and Conflict of Interest Questionnaire. You are required to file a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire Form
annually, and when there is a change in your circumstances that you have not previously reported. At any time
during the year, when an actual, potential, or perceived conflict of interest arises, you must revise your
questionnaire form and contact the District’s Compliance Officer. It is your responsibility to report promptly
any actual or potential conflicts.

All questionnaire forms must be sent to the District’s Compliance Officer. The Compliance Officer will
review all disclosures and determine which disclosures require further action. The Compliance Officer will
consult with the Business Compliance Team if an actual or perceived conflict of interest may exist. The
District’s Chief Executive Officer or legal counsel may be consulted by the Compliance Officer as needed to
determine if further action is required. The outcome of these consultations will result in a written
determination stating whether or not an actual conflict of interest exists. If a conflict of interest is determined
to exist, the written determination shall set forth a plan to manage the conflict of interest, which may include
that:

1. The conflict of interest is not significant and is generally permissible;

2. The activity may represent a potential or perceived conflict of interest, but in many cases would be
permitted to go forward after disclosure with a Management Plan or Non-Disclosure Agreement;

3. The conflict of interest will require the Personnel to abstain from participating in certain
governance, management or purchasing activities related to the conflict of interest;

4. The activity represents an actual conflict of interest which may be permitted to go forward after
disclosure with an appropriate Management Plan or Non-Disclosure Agreement to eliminate the
conflict, safeguard against prejudice toward Northern Inyo Healthcare District activities, and
provide continuing oversight; or

5. The conflict of interest must be eliminated or, if it involves a proposed role in another organization
or entity, must not be undertaken.

The Compliance Officer, or designee, will review any written determination with you and discuss any
necessary action you are to take.

Anti-Competitive Activities

If you work in community relations, sales, or marketing, the District asks you to perform your job not just
vigorously and effectively, but fairly, as well. False or misleading statements about a competitor are
inappropriate, invite disrespect and complaints, and may violate the law. Be sure that any comparisons you
make about competitors’ products and services are fair and accurate. (Competitors are other Districts,
hospitals, and health facilities.)

Reporting Violations

13
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 139 of 153



The District supports and encourages each employee and contractor to maintain individual responsibility for
monitoring and reporting any activity that violates or appears to violate any applicable statutes, regulations,
policies, or this Code of Conduct.

The District has established a reporting mechanism that permits anonymous reporting, if the person making
the report desires anonymity. Employees who become aware of a violation of the District Compliance
Program, including this Code of Conduct, must report the improper conduct to the District’s Compliance
Officer. That officer, or a designee, will then investigate all reports and ensure that appropriate follow-up
actions are taken.

District policy prohibits retaliation against an employee who makes such a report in good faith. In addition, it
is the policy of the District that no employee will be punished on the basis that he/she reported what he/she
reasonably believed to be improper activity or a violation of this Program.

However, employees are subject to corrective action, if after an investigation the District reasonably
concludes that the reporting employee knowingly fabricated, or knowingly distorted, exaggerated or
minimized the facts either to cause harm to someone else or to protect or benefit himself or herself.

Additional, detailed information may be found in the NIHD Code of Business Ethics and Conduct.

SECTION III — COMPLIANCE PROGRAM SYSTEMS AND PROCESSES
This Compliance Program contains a comprehensive set of policies. In order to effectively implement and
maintain these policies, the District has developed various systems and processes. The purpose of this section
of the Compliance Program is to explain the various systems and processes that the District has established for
the purpose of providing structure and support to the Compliance Program.

Compliance Officers and Committee

Compliance Officer

The District has a Compliance Officer who serves as the primary supervisor of this Compliance Program. The
District’s Compliance Officer occupies a high-level position within the organization and has authority to carry
out all compliance responsibilities described in this Compliance Program. The Compliance Officer is
responsible for assuring that the Compliance Program is implemented to ensure that the District at all times
maintains business integrity and that all applicable statutes, regulations and policies are followed.

The Compliance Officer provides frequent reports to the Governing Board about the Compliance Program and
compliance issues. The Governing Board is ultimately responsible for oversight of the work of the
Compliance Officer, and maintaining the standards of conduct set forth in the Compliance Program. The
Governing Board oversees all of the District’s compliance efforts and takes any appropriate and necessary
actions to ensure that the District conducts its activities in compliance with the law and sound business ethics.

The Compliance Officer and Governing Board shall consult with legal counsel as necessary on compliance
issues raised by the ongoing compliance review.

Responsibilities of the Compliance Olfficer
The Compliance Officer’s responsibilities include the following:

e Overseeing and monitoring the implementation and maintenance of the Compliance Program.

e Reporting on a regular basis to the Governing Board (no less than quarterly) on the progress of
implementation and operation of the Compliance Program and assisting the Governing Board in
establishing methods to reduce the District’s risk of fraud, waste, and abuse.

e Periodically revising the Compliance Program in light of changes in the needs of the District and
changes in applicable statutes, regulations, and government policies.
14
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 140 of 153



e Reviewing at least annually the implementation and execution of the elements of this Compliance
Program. The review includes an assessment of each of the basic elements individually and the
overall success of the Program, and a comprehensive review of the compliance department.

e Developing, coordinating and participating in educational and training programs that focus on
elements of the Compliance Program with the goal of ensuring that all appropriate Personnel are
knowledgeable about, and act in accordance with, this Compliance Program and all pertinent
federal and state requirements.

e Ensuring that independent contractors and agents of the District are aware of the requirements of
this Compliance Program as they affect the services provided by such contractors and agents.

e Ensuring that employees, independent contractors, and agents of the District have not been
excluded from participating in Medicare, Medicaid (Medi-Cal) or any other federal or state heath
care program.

e Ensuring that the District does not employ or contract with any individual who has been convicted
of a criminal offense related to health care within the previous five years, or who is listed by a
federal or state agency as debarred, excluded, or otherwise ineligible for participation in Medicare,
Medicaid (Medi-Cal), or any other federal or state health care program.

e Coordinating internal compliance review and monitoring activities.

¢ Independently investigating and acting on matters related to compliance, including design and
coordination of internal investigations and implementation of any corrective action.

e Maintaining a good working relationship with other key operational areas, such as quality
improvement, coding, billing and clinical departments.

e Designating work groups or task forces needed to carry out specific missions, such as conducting
an investigation or evaluating a proposed enhancement to the Compliance Program.

The Compliance Officer has the authority to review all documents and other information relevant to
compliance activities, including, but not limited to, patient records, billing records, records concerning
marketing efforts and all arrangements with third parties, including without limitation employees, independent
contractors, suppliers, agents and physicians.

The Compliance Officer has direct access to the Governing Board, Chief Executive Officer and other senior
management, and to legal counsel.

Compliance and Business Ethics Committee

The District has established a Compliance and Business Ethics Committee to advise the Compliance Officer
and assist in monitoring this Compliance Program. The Compliance and Business Ethics Committee (CBEC)
provides the perspectives of individuals with diverse knowledge and responsibilities within the District.

Members of the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee

The Compliance and Business Ethics Committee consists of multiple representatives. The members of the
CBEC include those individuals designated below and other members as requested, including representatives
of senior management, chosen by the District’s Chief Executive Officer in consultation with the Compliance
Officer:

e Compliance Officer
e Chief Financial Officer
e Cybersecurity Officer

15
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 141 of 153



e Chief Medical Officer

e Chief Nursing Officer

e Chief Executive Officer

e Chief Human Resource Officer

e Board of Directors’ Representative

e As appropriate, Health Information Management Manager, Revenue Cycle Director, or department
designee from Emergency, Human Resources Director Laboratory, Pharmacy, Imaging,
Purchasing, and other areas

The Compliance Officer serves as the chairperson of the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee. The
CBEC serves in an advisory role and has authority to adopt or implement policies following Board approval.
The Compliance Officer will consult with members of the CBEC on a regular basis and may call meetings of
all or some members of the CBEC.

The Board of Directors’ representative to the CBEC shall be appointed by the full Board of Directors. The
Board of Directors’ representative shall meet the following qualifications prior to consideration for
appointment:

e Completion of ethics and governance training as required by AB1234; and,

e Attended an Association of California Healthcare District (ACHD) Leadership Academy within
past two years; and,

e Has completed and filed CA Form 700; and,

e NIHD Conflict of Interest for Members of the Board of Directors has been completed, returned,
and reviewed by the Business Compliance Team.

Each member of the CBEC shall sign a Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA).

Functions of the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee
The Compliance and Business Ethics Committee’s functions include the following:

e Assessing existing and proposed compliance policies for modification or possible incorporation
into the Compliance Program.

e Working with the Compliance Officer to develop standards of conduct and policies to promote
compliance.

e Development on Annual Compliance Department Work Plan and Audit Plan, including review and
re-prioritizing as necessary

e Recommending and monitoring, in conjunction with the Compliance Officer, the development of
internal systems and controls to carry out the standards and policies of this Compliance Program.

e Reviewing and proposing strategies to promote compliance and detection of potential violations.

e Assisting the Compliance Officer in the development and ongoing monitoring of systems to solicit,
evaluate, and respond to complaints and problems related to compliance.

e Assisting the Compliance Officer in coordinating compliance training, education and other
compliance-related activities in the departments and business units in which the members of the
Compliance and Business Ethics Committee work.

e Consulting with vendors of the District on a periodic basis to promote adherence to this

16
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 142 of 153



Compliance Program as it applies to those vendors and to promote their development of formal
Compliance Programs.

The tasks listed above are not intended to be exhaustive. The CBEC may also address other compliance-
related matters as determined by the Compliance Officer.

The CBEC may, from time to time, create one or more sub-committees which shall have that authority
specifically designated thereto. Each sub-committee shall answer directly to the respective Compliance and
Business Ethics Committee.

The District has established a Billing, Coding, and Compliance Committee (BCCC), which is a sub-
committee of the Compliance and Business Ethics Committee, to advise the Compliance Officer and assist in
monitoring of billing, coding, and revenue cycle management. The Billing, Coding, and Compliance
Committee shall be renamed the Billing and Coding Compliance Subcommittee (BCCS).

The District has established a Business Compliance Team (BCT) to assist the Compliance Officer in
appropriate determinations and plans of action for reported, actual, or perceived conflicts of interest. The
Business Compliance Team is a subcommittee of the CBEC.

Compliance as an Element of Performance

The promotion of, and adherence to, the elements of this Compliance Program is a factor in evaluating the
performance of all District employees. Personnel will be trained periodically regarding the Compliance
Program, and new compliance policies that are adopted. In particular, all managers and supervisors involved
in any processes related to the evaluation, preparation, or submission of medical claims must do the
following:

e Discuss, as applicable, the compliance policies and legal requirements described in this
Compliance Program with all supervised Personnel.

e Inform all supervised Personnel that strict compliance with this Compliance Program is a condition
of continued employment.

e Inform all supervised Personnel that disciplinary action will be taken, up to and including
termination of employment or contractor status, for violation of this Compliance Program.

Managers and supervisors will be subject to discipline for failure to adequately instruct their subordinates on
matters covered by the Compliance Program. Managers and supervisors will also be subject to discipline for
failing to detect violations of the Compliance Program where reasonable diligence on the part of the manager
or supervisor would have led to the discovery of a problem or violation and thus would have provided the
District with the opportunity to take corrective action.

Training and Education

The District acknowledges that this Compliance Program will be effective only if it is communicated and
explained to Personnel on a routine basis and in a manner that clearly explains its requirements. For this
reason, the District requires all Personnel to attend specific training programs on a periodic basis. Training
requirements and scheduling are established by the District for its departments and affiliates based on the
needs and requirements of each department and affiliate. Training programs include appropriate training in
federal and state statutes, regulations, guidelines, the policies described in this Compliance Program, and
corporate ethics. Training will be conducted by qualified internal or external personnel. New employees are
trained early in their employment. Training programs may include sessions highlighting this Compliance
Program, summarizing fraud and abuse laws, physician self-referral laws, claims development and submission
processes, and related business practices that reflect current legal standards.

All formal training undertaken as part of the Compliance Program is documented. Documentation includes at
17
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 143 of 153



a minimum the identification of the Personnel participating in the training, the subject matter of the training,
the time and date of the training, the training materials used, and any other relevant information.

The Compliance Officer evaluates the content of the training program at least annually to ensure that the
subject content is appropriate and sufficient to cover the range of issues confronting the District’s employees.
The training program is modified as necessary to keep up-to-date with any changes in federal and state health
care program requirements, and to address results of the District’s audits and investigations; results from
previous training and education programs; trends in Hotline reports; and guidance from applicable federal and
state agencies. The appropriateness of the training format is evaluated by reviewing the length of the training
sessions; whether training is delivered via live instructors or via computer-based training programs; the
frequency of training sessions; and the need for general and specific training sessions.

The Compliance Officer seeks feedback to identify shortcomings in the training program, and administers
post-training tests as appropriate to ensure attendees understand and retain the subject matter delivered.

Specific training for appropriate corporate officers, managers, and other employees may include areas such as:
e Restrictions on marketing activities.
e General prohibitions on paying or receiving remuneration to induce referrals.
e Proper claims processing techniques.
e Monitoring of compliance with this Compliance Program.
e Methods for educating and training employees.
e Duty to report misconduct.

The members of the District’s Governing Board will be provided with periodic training, not less than
annually, on fraud and abuse laws and other compliance matters.

Attendance and participation in compliance training programs is a condition of continued employment.
Failure to comply with training requirements will result in disciplinary action, including possible termination.

Adherence with the provisions of this Compliance Program, including training requirements, is a factor in the
annual evaluation of each District employee. Where feasible, outside contractors will be afforded the
opportunity to participate in, or be encouraged to develop their own, compliance training and educational
programs to complement the District’s standards of conduct and compliance policies. The Compliance Officer
will ensure that records of compliance training, including attendance logs and copies of materials distributed
at training sessions, are maintained.

The compliance training described in this program is in addition to any periodic professional education
courses that may be required by statute or regulation for certain Personnel. The District expects its employees
to comply with applicable education requirements; failure to do so may result in disciplinary action.

Lines of Communicating and Reporting

Open Door Policy

The District recognizes that clear and open lines of communication between the Compliance Officer and
District Personnel are important to the success of this Compliance Program. The District maintains an open
door policy in regards to all Compliance Program related matters. District Personnel are encouraged to seek
clarification from the Compliance Officer in the event of any confusion or question about a statute, regulation,
or policy discussed in this Compliance Program.

Submitting Questions or Complaints
The District has established a telephone hotline for use by District Personnel to report concerns or possible

18
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 144 of 153



wrongdoing regarding compliance issues. We refer to this telephone line as our “Compliance Confidential
Report Line.”

The Compliance Confidential Report Line contact number is:

Phone: 1-888-200-9764

Personnel may also submit compliance-related questions or complaints in writing. Letters may be sent
anonymously. All such letters should be sent to the Compliance Officer at the following address:

Compliance Officer

Northern Inyo Healthcare District
150 Pioneer Lane

Bishop, CA 93514

The Compliance Confidential Report Line number and the Compliance Officer’s contact information are
posted in conspicuous locations throughout the District’s facilities.

All calls to the Compliance Confidential Report Line are treated confidentially and are not traced. The caller
need not provide his or her name. The District’s Compliance Officer or designee investigates all calls and
letters and initiates follow-up actions as appropriate.

Communications via the Compliance Confidential Report Line and letters mailed to the Compliance Officer
are treated as privileged to the extent permitted by applicable law; however, it is possible that the identity of a
person making a report may become known, or that governmental authorities or a court may compel
disclosure of the name of the reporting person.

Matters reported through the Compliance Confidential Report Line or in writing that suggest violations of
compliance policies, statutes, or regulations are documented and investigated promptly. A log is maintained
by the Compliance Officer of calls or communications, including the nature of any investigation and
subsequent results. A summary of this information is included in reports by the Compliance Officer to the
District’s Governing Board and Chief Executive Officer.

Non-Retaliation Policy

It is the District’s policy to prohibit retaliatory action against any person for making a report, anonymous or
otherwise, regarding compliance. However, District Personnel cannot use complaints to the Compliance
Officer to insulate themselves from the consequences of their own wrongdoing or misconduct. False or
deceptive reports may be grounds for termination. It will be considered a mitigating factor if a person makes a
forthright disclosure of an error or violation of this Compliance Program, or the governing statutes and
regulations.

Enforcing Standards and Policies

Policies

It is the policy of the District to use appropriate corrective action with District Personnel who fail to comply
with the Code of Conduct or the policies set forth in, or adopted pursuant to, this Compliance Program or any
federal or state statutes or regulations.

The guiding principles underlying this policy include the following:

e Intentional or reckless noncompliance will subject Personnel to significant sanctions, which may
include oral warnings, suspension, or termination of employment, depending upon the nature and
extent of the noncompliance.

e Negligent failure to comply with the policies set forth in this Compliance Program, or with

19
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 145 of 153



applicable laws, will also result in sanctions.

e Corrective action will be taken where a responsible employee fails to detect a violation, if this
failure is attributable to his or her negligence or reckless conduct.

e Internal audit or review may lead to discovering violations and result in corrective action.

Because the District takes compliance seriously, the District will respond to Personnel misconduct.

Corrective Action Procedures

Employees found to have violated any provision of this Compliance Program are subject to discipline
consistent with the policies set forth herein, including termination of employment if deemed appropriate by
the District. Any such discipline is within the sole discretion of the District. Each instance involving
disciplinary action shall be thoroughly documented by the employee’s supervisor and the Compliance Officer.

Upon determining that an employee of the District or any of its affiliates has committed a violation of this
Compliance Program, such employee shall meet with his or her supervisor to review the conduct that resulted
in violation of the Compliance Program. The employee and supervisor will contact the Compliance Officer to
discuss any actions that may be taken to remedy such violation. All employees are expected to cooperate fully
with the Compliance Officer during the investigation of the violation. The Chief of Human Resources,
Compliance Officer, or Chief Executive Officer may consult legal counsel prior to final actions or disciplinary
measures, as appropriate.

Auditing and Monitoring

The District conducts periodic monitoring of this Compliance Program. Compliance reports created by this
monitoring, including reports of suspected noncompliance, will be reviewed and maintained by the
Compliance Officer.

The Compliance Officer will develop and implement an audit plan. The plan will be reviewed at least
annually to determine whether it addresses the proper areas of concern, considering, for example, findings
from previous years’ audits, risk areas identified as part of the annual risk assessment, and high volume
services.

Periodic compliance audits are used to promote and ensure compliance. These audits are performed by
internal or external auditors who have the appropriate qualifications and expertise in federal and state health
care statutes and regulations and federal health care program requirements. The audits will focus on specific
programs or departments of the District, including external relationships with third-party contractors. These
audits are designed to address, at a minimum, compliance with laws governing kickback arrangements,
physician self-referrals, claims development and submission (including an assessment of the District’s billing
system), reimbursement, and marketing. All Personnel are expected to cooperate fully with auditors during
this process by providing information, answering questions, etc. If any employee has concerns regarding the
scope or manner of an audit, the employee should discuss this with his or her immediate supervisor.

The District shall conduct periodic reviews, including unscheduled reviews, to determine whether the
elements of this Compliance Program have been satisfied. Appropriate modifications to the Compliance
Program will be implemented when monitoring discloses that compliance issues have not been detected in a
timely manner due to Compliance Program deficiencies.

The periodic review process may include the following techniques:

e Interviews with Personnel involved in management, operations, claim development and
submission, and other related activities.

e Questionnaires developed to solicit impressions of the District Personnel.

20
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 146 of 153



e Reviews of all billing documentation, including medical and financial records and other source
documents, that support claims for reimbursement and claims submissions.

e Presentations of a written report on compliance activities to the Compliance Officer. The report
shall specifically identify areas, if any, where corrective actions are needed. In certain cases,
subsequent reviews or studies may be conducted to ensure that recommended corrective actions
have been successfully implemented.

Error rates shall be evaluated and compared to error rates for prior periods as well as available norms. If the
error rates are not decreasing, the District shall conduct a further investigation into other aspects of the
Compliance Program in an effort to determine hidden weaknesses and deficiencies.

Corrective Action

Violations and Investigations

Violations of this Compliance Program, failure to comply with applicable federal or state laws, and other
types of misconduct threaten the District’s status as a reliable and honest provider of health care services.
Detected but uncorrected misconduct can seriously endanger the District’s business and reputation, and can
lead to serious sanctions against the District. Consequently, upon reports or reasonable indications of
suspected noncompliance, prompt steps to investigate the conduct in question will be initiated under the
direction and control of the Compliance Officer to determine whether a material violation of applicable law or
the requirements of the Compliance Program has occurred. The Compliance Officer may create a response
team to review suspected noncompliance including representatives from the compliance, audit and other
relevant departments.

If such a violation has occurred, prompt steps will be taken to correct the problem, taking into account the root
cause of the problem. As appropriate, such steps may include an immediate referral to criminal and/or civil
law enforcement authorities, a corrective action plan, a report to the Office of Inspector General (OIG) or any
other appropriate government organization, and/or submission of any overpayments. The specific steps that
are appropriate in any given case will be determined after consultation between the Chief Executive Officer or
Compliance Officer and legal counsel.

Depending upon the nature of the alleged violations, the Compliance Officer’s internal investigation could
include interviews with relevant Personnel and a review of relevant documents. Legal counsel, auditors or
health care experts may be engaged by the Compliance Officer to assist in an investigation where the
Compliance Officer deems such assistance appropriate. Complete records of all investigations will be
maintained which contain documentation of the alleged violations, a description of the investigative process,
copies of interview notes and key documents, a log of the witnesses interviewed and the documents reviewed,
results of the investigation (e.g., any disciplinary action taken), and corrective actions implemented.

If an investigation of an alleged violation is undertaken and the Compliance Officer believes the integrity of
the investigation may be at stake because of the presence of employees under investigation, those employees
will be removed from their current work activity until the investigation is completed. Where necessary, the
Compliance Officer will take appropriate steps to secure or prevent the destruction of documents or other
evidence relevant to the investigation.

Reporting

If the Compliance Officer or a management official discovers credible evidence of misconduct from any
source and, after reasonable inquiry, has reason to believe that the misconduct may violate criminal, civil, or
administrative law, then the misconduct will promptly be reported as appropriate to the OIG or any other
appropriate governmental authority or federal and/or state law enforcement agency having jurisdiction over
such matter. Such reports will be made by the Compliance Officer on a timely basis.

All overpayments identified by the District shall be promptly disclosed and/or refunded to the appropriate
21
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 147 of 153



public or private payer or other entity.

SECTION 1V — COMPLIANCE POLICIES

The District electronic policy management system houses NIHD Compliance Policies. Some of these policies
may not apply to your specific job function, but it is still important that you are aware of their existence and
importance. All Personnel will receive training regarding the policies that apply to their job.

REFERENCES:

1. Supplemental Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals (70 Fed. Reg. 4858; January 31,
2005)
2. Compliance Program Guidance for Hospitals (63 Fed. Reg. 8987; February 23, 1998)

CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Authority of the Chief Executive Officer for Contracts and Bidding
. Business Associate Agreements Execution and Management
California Public Records Act — Information Requests
Communicating Protected Health Information via Electronic Mail (Email)
Disclosures of Protected Health Information Over the Telephone
Disposal of Equipment
Electronic Communication (Email) Acceptable Use Policy
False Claims Act Employee Training and Prevention Policy
9. Family Member and Relatives in the Workplace
10. Investigation and Reporting of Unlawful Access, Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information
11. Language Access Services Policy
12. NIHD Code of Business Ethics and Conduct
13. Non-Retaliation Policy
14. Nondiscrimination Policy
15. Patient Rights
16. Pricing Transparency Policy
17. Purchasing Signature Authority
18. Equal Employment Opportunity
19. Sanctions for Breach of Patient Privacy Policies
20. Sending Protected Health Information via Fax
21. Using and Disclosing Protected Health Information for Treatment, Payment and HealthCare Operations
22. Vendor Credentialing
23. Workforce Access to His or Her Own Protected Health Information
24. Workforce Investigations
25. InQuiseek — #100 Regulatory Compliance Policy
26. InQuiseek - #105 Formal Corporate or Organization Compliance Plan Policy

N LR W

\ Supersedes: v.4 Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

22
Compliance Program for Northern Inyo Healthcare District

Page 148 of 153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Owner: Chief Human Resources Officer | Department: Human Resources

Scope: District Wide — Applies to Employees, travelers, Non-medical Staff contractors, and Temporary

Employees

Date Last Modified: 03/09/2023 Last Review Date: No Review Version: 6

Date

Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 01/01/2013

DEFINITIONS:

Harassment — Under this policy, harassment is verbal, written or physical conduct that denigrates or shows
hostility or aversion toward and individual because of the employee’s race, color, religion, sex, sexual
orientation, gender identity or expression, national origin, age, disability, marital status, citizenship, genetic
information, or any other characteristic protected by law, and that: a) has the purpose or effect of creating an
intimidating, hostile or offensive work environment, b) has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering
with an individual’s work performance, or c¢) otherwise adversely affects an individual’s employment
opportunities.

PROCEDURE:

1. Employees are encouraged, but not required to discuss problems and complaints in an informal manner with
their immediate supervisor, Coordinator, Manager, Director, Chief, or Director of Human Resources.

2. Ifnotresolved in step 1, a written formal complaint must be filed with the Human Resources Department
within thirty (30) working days of the occurrence of the event. (Reference note a.) Employee Written
Formal Complaint Form

3. Within five (5) working days of receipt (Reference note a.): 1) the Human Resources Department will
initially respond to the formal written complaint assessing the complaint as: 1) discrimination or unfair
treatment relating to or caused by gender, race, religious beliefs, age, or other legally protected status; i1)
harassment; 1i1) problems concerning wages or hours; 1iv) working conditions; v) interpretation or
application of policies and procedures; vi) disciplinary action employee(s) feel was not for just cause; or vii)
any other matters related to employment. Then, accordingly, two (2) copies of the written complaint and HR
response will be forwarded as appropriate up the employee’s chain of command by HR. If the subject of the
complaint is a Medical Staff member, the Medical Staff Office will be notified and receive copies of the
written complaint so it may be addressed through the Medical Staff Practitioner Complaint Resolution
Process.

4. Each level of the chain of command, as determined appropriate, will discuss the written complaint with the
Director of HR or designee and respond to the employee in writing within five (5) working days of receipt
of the written complaint from Human Resources. (Reference note a.)

5. If the employee does not accept the decision of the level of leadership, the employee may appeal the
decision in writing up the chain of command, and ultimately to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) within
five (5) working days of the employee’s receipt of each leader’s decision. (Reference note a.)

6. Ifitreaches the level of the CEO, the CEO or designee will completely and impartially investigate the
complaint and within (5) working days provide the employee with a written decision. (Reference note a.)

Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Page 149 of 153



7. All decisions of the CEO or designee shall be final and not subject to further appeal.

8. Throughout the complaint and grievance process stated in the policy, if still scheduled to work, the
employee is required to continue to perform the employee’s duties in a satisfactory manner or be subject to
disciplinary action.

9. Employees terminated or suspended, as the result of disciplinary action will remain terminated or suspended
during the grievance process stated in this policy.

10. At each stage of the grievance process, if the employee prevails, the employee shall be reinstated. Back
pay, in whole or in part, may or may not be granted at the discretion of the CEO or designee.

11. Human Resources will receive a copy of all communication related to the grievance process, for inclusion in
the employee’s personnel file.

12. Retaliation against the employee making a complaint or using the grievance process is prohibited and will
lead to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

Notes:

a. There may be occasions when, because of the time or the particular circumstances involved, either the
employee or management of NIHD may request that the time requirements in this procedure be waived
or extended.

b. In order to most appropriately or effectively investigate or resolve a complaint/grievance, management

may invoke other options during the grievance process, e.g. use of a Task Force or outside consultant or
mediator.

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
Retain employee complaint records for minimum of 6 years.

CROSS REFERENCES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:
1. Equal Employment Opportunity Procedure

Bullying in the Workplace

Required - Harassment by Employees (23-01)

Medical Staff Professional Conduct Policy

. InQuiseek - #520 Grievance Policy

Supersedes: Required - Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process (23-02)*
Legal Review: Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo 10/30/2020

Employee Complaints and the Grievance Process

Page 150 of 153



NORTHERN INYO HEALTHCARE DISTRICT
NON-CLINICAL POLICY AND PROCEDURE

V/

NorrHERN INYo HEALTHCARE DIsTRICT
One Team. One Goal. Your Health.

Title: Nursing Certification
Owner: Chief Nursing Officer-Interim COO | Department: Nursing Administration
Scope: Registered Nurses
Date Last Modified: 06/21/2023 Last Review Date: No Review Version: 4
Date
Final Approval by: NIHD Board of Directors | Original Approval Date: 04/20/2016

PURPOSE: To identify eligible nursing certification for wage adjustments that are not required as part of the
position qualifications.

POLICY:

1. Nursing Staff that complete and maintain specialty certification to approved categories may receive an
education pay differential.

2. Up to two certifications will be eligible for education pay differential.

Certification’s that are required as part of the job description will not be eligible for increase.

4. Registered Nurses who have received certification may have the initial RN-BC (Registered Nurse —
Board Certified) placed on their identification badge and may include those initials in their signature.

[98)

PROCEDURE:

1. The below listed certifications are approved for the following categories of staff:
a. RN:
e Acute/Critical Care Knowledge Professional
e Ambulatory Care Nursing
e Cardiac Vascular Nursing
e Certified Emergency Nurse
e Certified Nurse Operating Room
e Certified Occupational Health Nurse (COHN)
e Certified Occupational Health Nurse Specialist (COHN-S)
e Certified Pediatric Emergency Nurse (CPEN)
e Certified Vascular Nursing*
e Certification in Infection Control (CIC)
e Critical Care Registered Nurse
¢ Diabetes Management — Advanced
¢ General Nursing Practice™
e Gerontological Nursing
e Hemostasis Nursing
e Informatics Nursing
e Inpatient Obstetric Nursing — RNC-OB
e International Board Certified Lactation Consultant
e Medical-Surgical Nursing

Nursing Certification

Page 151 of 153



¢ Nurse Executive

¢ Nurse Executive Advanced

¢ Nursing Case Management

¢ Pain Management Nursing

e Pediatric Nursing

e Perinatal Nursing*

e Trauma Certified Registered Nurse (TCRN)

*Exam retired. The credential can still be renewed

b. CNA:
e Restorative Certified Aide
c. Department Clerk:
e Health Unit Clerk Certification

2. Staff that complete certification to approved certification categories (that are not required as part of
employment), from the American Nurses Credentialing Center or other designated sources may turn
their certificate into their manager for recognition and education pay differential.

a. The manager completes the Personnel Action Form.
b. The education pay differential is applied on the first day of the start of new pay period.

3. Once certification has been achieved the RN may have an updated identification badge made within the
HR identification badge constraints.
a. The preferred order of listing credentials is:
i. Highest earned degree
ii. Licensure
iii. State designations or requirements
1v. National Certifications
v. Other recognitions
1.e. John Doe, PhD, MSN.
b. If you have a second degree in another relevant field you may choose to list it,
1.e. John Doe, MBA, MS.
1. Note that the highest non-nursing degree is listed first followed by the highest
nursing degree.
2. If you have a doctorate and a master’s degree, omit the baccalaureate degree. i.e.
John Doe PhD, MSN.
c. Multiple nursing credentials may be listed in the order you prefer, but consider listing them
either in order of relevance to your practice or in the order they were obtained with the most
recent first. i.e. John Doe, BSN RN, MICN, CEN

4. HR will oversee the record of certifications and the renewal dates.
a. HR will notify the employee’s manager who notifies the employee that the updated certification

is due.
b. If the certification is no longer active, the 2% adjustment will be discontinued.

REFERENCES:

Nursing Certification

Page 152 of 153



1. How to List the Order of Credentials After a Name; Indeed, Editorial Team (October 4, 2021).
2. How to display your credentials; ANCC American Nurse Credentialing Center Certification. (June
2013).

CROSS REFERENCED POLICIES AND PROCEDURES:

1. Licensing of Nursing Personnel

RECORD RETENTION AND DESTRUCTION:
Records are maintained in the workforce member’s personnel record for the length of employment, plus 6 years.

| Supersedes: v.3 Nursing Certification |

Nursing Certification

Page 153 of 153



